
PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

Thursday, June 14, 2018 
SCRD Boardroom, 1975 Field Road, Sechelt, B.C. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 9:30 a.m. 

AGENDA 

1. Adoption of Agenda

PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS  

2. David Hendry, Director, Strategic Planning and Community Engagement, BC
Ferries and Carrie McIntosh, Senior Consultant, Context Research
Regarding BC Ferries Horseshoe Bay Terminal Redevelopment Plan
Engagement (INVITED)

Annex A 
pp 1 - 3  

REPORTS 

3. Senior Planner – Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc.
Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway – Electoral Area F
Electoral Area F (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F)

Annex B 
pp 4 - 15  

4. Senior Planner – Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022
(Pownall) – Electoral Area A
Electoral Area A (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F)

Annex C 
pp 16 - 27  

5. Senior Planner – Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw
No. 310.178, 2018 for Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading
Electoral Area F (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F)

Annex D 
pp 28 - 36  

6. Senior Planner – Revised OCP Amendments – Densification Strategies to
Support Affordable Housing – Considerations for Second Reading
Electoral Areas A, B, D, E, F (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F)

Annex E 
pp 37 - 64  

7. Senior Planner – Provincial Referral 102649829-002 – Sunshine Coast
Mountain Adventures
(Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F)

Annex F 
pp 65 - 134  

8. Senior Planner – District of Sechelt Referral – OCP and Zoning Amendment
Application 3360-20 2018-04 (Greencourt)
(Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F)

Annex G 
pp 135 - 163  

9. Planner – Advisory Committees’ Comments on BCTS 2018-2022 Operation
Plans
(Regional Planning) (Voting – All)

Annex H 
pp 164 - 174  

10. Planner – Provincial Referral 102115507-001 for a Private Moorage (Stoddard)
– Electoral Area A
Electoral Area A (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F)

Annex I 
pp 175 - 201  



Planning and Community Development Committee Agenda – June 14, 2018 Page 2 

11.  Planner – Provincial Referral 102850995–002 for a Private Moorage Baker Bay 
(Johnston) – Electoral Area A 
Electoral Area A (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F) 
 

Annex J 
pp 202 - 232   

12.  Planning Technician – Development Variance Permit Application DVP00032 
(Pender Harbour Resort and Marina)  - Electoral Area A 
Electoral Area A (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F) 
 

Annex K 
pp 233 - 239   

13.  Agricultural Advisory Committee Minutes of April 24, 2018 
(Regional Planning) (Voting – All) 
 

Annex L 
pp 240 - 241   

14.  Agricultural Advisory Committee Minutes of May 22, 2018 
(Regional Planning) (Voting – All) 
 

Annex M 
pp 242 - 243   

15.  Natural Resource Advisory Committee Minutes of May 16, 2018 
(Regional Planning) (Voting – All) 
 

Annex N 
pp 244 - 246   

16.  Electoral Area A (Egmont/Pender Harbour) APC Minutes of May 30, 2018 
Electoral Area A (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F) 

Annex O 
pp 247 - 248   

17.  Electoral Area B (Halfmoon Bay) APC Minutes of May 22, 2018 
Electoral Area B (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F) 
 

Annex P 
pp 249 - 252   

18.  Electoral Area D (Roberts Creek) APC Minutes of May 14, 2018 
Electoral Area D (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F) 
 

Annex Q 
pp 253 - 256   

19.  Electoral Area E (Elphinstone) APC Minutes of May 30, 2018  
Electoral Area E (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F) 
 

Annex R 
pp 257 - 261   

20.  Electoral Area F (West Howe Sound) APC Minutes of May 22, 2018 
Electoral Area F (Rural Planning) (Voting – A, B, D, E, F) 
 

Annex S 
pp 262 - 264   

COMMUNICATIONS 

21.  Hon. Catherine McKenna, M.P., Minister of Environment and Climate Change, 
dated May 16, 2018 
Regarding BURNCO Aggregate Mine Project. 

Annex T 
pp 265 - 278   

 

IN CAMERA 

That the public be excluded from attendance at the meeting in accordance with Section 
90 (1) (e), (i) and (k) of the Community Charter – “the acquisition, disposition or 
expropriation of land or improvements…”, “the receipt of advice that is subject to solicitor-
client privilege, including communications necessary for that purpose;” and “negotiations 
and related discussions respecting the proposed provision of a municipal service that are 
at their preliminary stages…” 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



Horseshoe Bay Terminal Visioning Engagement Process

1 2 3 4 5

Activities: 
• Key stakeholder

meetings

Engagement outcome: 
• A better understanding of

the role the terminal plays
for communities and
customers emerges

Phase One – Definition
Winter 2018

Activities: 
• Key stakeholder

workshops

Engagement outcome: 
• A shared understanding of

project challenges is
established

• Key opportunities are
identi�ed

Phase Two – Discovery
Winter 2018

Establish key design themes
Review public input and 
generate key design themes 
for discussion in Phase Three.

Activities: 
• Community

workshops and/or
events

• Online engagement

Engagement outcome:
• Re�nements to design

options identi�ed

Phase Four – Design
Summer 2018

Activities: 
• Community

workshops
• Online engagement

Engagement outcome: 
• Key design themes

con�rmed
• A vision for the future

terminal emerges

Phase Three – Visioning
Spring 2018

Activities: 
• Report back

Engagement outcome: 
• Final design option(s) for

draft Terminal Development
Plan are established

Phase Five – Deliver
Fall 2018

Finalize design option(s)
Use re�ned design option(s) to 
complete draft Terminal 
Development Plan. 

Re�ne design option(s)
Review public input and re�ne design 
option(s) for inclusion in draft 
Terminal Development Plan.

Develop terminal design options
Combine public input with 
technical requirements to develop 
design options for review in 
Phase Four.

Start

ANNEX A

1



Horseshoe Bay Terminal Development
Creating a Vision for the Future

The terminal is at Technology & travel patterns are

The physical 
environment:

Making e�cient use of 
the space the terminal 

occupies today

Our 
neighbours:

Operating in a way that 
respects our Horseshoe 
Bay Village neighbours

Safety and 
security:

Safety and security 
for our customers

Flexibility for 
the future: 

Capacity to accommodate 
changes in transportation 

technology, digital 
communications etc.

Customer 
experience:

Delivering a seamless 
and enjoyable 

customer experience

Sustainability:
Respecting and 

preserving the natural 
the environment

Financial 
feasibility:

A�ordability and 
cost-e�ectiveness

capacity

aging
Terminal infrastructure is

changing

We want to hear from you.
Public input will be used to help create a draft 
Terminal Development Plan (TDP), the 
document that will guide future development 
at the Horseshoe Bay Terminal.

How will public input be used?

Shifting travel 
preferences:

Supporting long-term 
shifts in travel 

preferences including 
increased car sharing, 
walking, cycling, and 

more transit ridership

There are several considerations that will play a signi�cant 
role in our decision-making about the terminal.

What factors will be considered when making decisions?

Why are we redeveloping the Horseshoe Bay terminal?

bcferries.com/about/hsbvision2



We recently wrapped up Phase 2 of our Visioning Engagement for the Horseshoe Bay Terminal Redevelopment project. Phase 2 was our 
Discovery phase and saw us conduct five workshops in West Vancouver, the Sunshine Coast, Bowen Island and Nanaimo. Each workshop 
involved 5-10 key community stakeholders who have a vested interest in the future of Horseshoe Bay terminal as well as one employee 
workshop with terminal and vessel staff. These meetings outlined challenges and constraints, as well as ideas and opportunities related 
to travel trends and desires, and asked participants what their ideal vision for the future of Horseshoe Bay terminal looks like. We heard six 
major themes and several key considerations from workshop participants including:

Horseshoe Bay Terminal Redevelopment

THEME KEY CONSIDERATIONS

• Provide safe and easy access for all modes of transportation 
(e.g. private vehicle, public transit, bicycles, walking)

• Ensure easy access to other regional connections (transit, ferry routes, rail)
• Create easy, stress-free movement during arrival and throughout the time spent at the terminal
• Ensure easy access for all ages and abilities
• Provide clear, visible signage & wayfinding
• Create easy and freer access between the terminal and the village

• Provide fast, reliable Wi-Fi
• Create separate ‘zones’ – for example, work stations, kids play areas, family space
• Develop common community spaces that can be enjoyed by the village and customers 
• Include retail space (this included ensuring retail opportunities bring benefit to the Horseshoe 

Bay community and businesses)
• Provide shelter for shade and rain cover
• Create large and comfortable waiting areas

• Create a sense of arrival with aesthetics and architecture that the community can be proud of
(e.g. along the lines of YVR)

• Install local and First Nations art 
• Create a warm and welcoming feel
• Consider changing name from “terminal” to “hub” or “gateway”
• Pay attention to comfort and ambience

• Create amenities that benefit the surrounding neighbourhoods and businesses
• Provide green space
• Ensure territorial acknowledgement and integration/collaboration with First Nations
• Work with the natural beauty of the space
• Provide access to surrounding parks and trails
• Ensure minimal noise, light pollution disruption to residents 
• Establish ongoing and open dialogue with surrounding residents and businesses

• Provide paperless ticketing 
• Install a countdown clock for departure/arrival 
• Provide clear, timely information on sailings/delays available on site, through apps, etc. 
• Make upgrades to technology for ticketing, reservations, scheduling 
• Consider going to 100% reservations

• Ensure terminal can accommodate passenger ferries
• Leave room to integrate future technology and travel patterns

Terminal 
access

Terminal  
amenities 

Gateway  
aesthetics and 
experience

Integration with 
surrounding 
environment  
and history

Technology and 
information

Future  
flexibility

Welcome

?

3



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT 

TO: Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 

AUTHOR: David Rafael, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: PROVINCIAL REFERRAL CRN00054 FOR BC FERRY SERVICES INC. 
LANGDALE FERRY TERMINAL PEDESTRIAN WALKWAY- ELECTORAL AREA F 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

THAT the report titled Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. 
Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F be received;  

AND THAT the following comments be forwarded to the Ministry of Forests, Lands, 
Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development: 

1. Subject to the following conditions, SCRD has no objections to the Province
issuing a licence of occupation to BC Ferry Services Inc.:

a) The environmental assessment report should be amended to:

i. consider potential impacts to spawning fish in the foreshore;

ii. consider potential impacts to migrating shore birds;

iii. provide a broader description of the best management practices to be
used during construction with respect to sediment;

b) A public notification system be developed and implemented for informing
users of the float serving Keats and Gambier Islands of work schedule;

2. BC Ferries submits the project to the Department of Fisheries and Oceans for
their review and authorization under the Fisheries Act, 2012; and

3. Building Permit application is made for the walkway.

BACKGROUND 

The SCRD received a referral from BC Ferries for a licence of occupation at the Langdale ferry 
terminal to allow the construction of an elevated pedestrian walkway. The walkway will be 
accessed from the ferry terminal on land and from the vessel on water. This walkway will permit 
foot passengers to come on and off the ferry during construction of the new terminal buildings. 
The project is contributing to the proposed redevelopment of the Langdale terminal. 

The walkway will be accessed on land by a temporary ramp located about 55 metres north of 
the existing bus stop (Attachment A). Staff understand from BC Ferries that, as part of the 

ANNEX B

4



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F Page 2 of 12 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

terminal redevelopment, the walkway will be connected to and accessed through a new building 
near the bus stop and pick up/drop off area. 

The existing causeway will be widened on the north side (where the current pedestrian access 
is located) to accommodate installation of a dedicated bike lane, and a dedicated bagger 
‘tugger’ lane to improve safety and efficiency. 

Owner / Applicant: BC Ferry Services Inc. 

Civic Address: 1376 Marine Drive          Legal Description:         N/A 

Electoral Area: West Howe Sound – Electoral Area A 

Parcel Area: 2.06 Hectares 

OCP Land Use: Marine Transportation 

Land Use Zone: W1 (Water One) 

Application Intent: Licence of Occupation for a period of 10 to 30 years to allow the construction of 
a walkway to permit the foot passengers to come on and off the ferry in a safe 
manner during construction of the new terminal buildings 

Table 1 - Application Summary 

Figure 1 – Terminal and Application Area (2014 Air Photo) 

The purpose of this report is to provide information on the referral and obtain direction from the 
Planning and Community Development Committee. 

5



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F  Page 3 of 12 
 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

DISCUSSION 

Analysis 

Environmental Assessment 

BC Ferries provided an environmental assessment report prepared by Aquaparian 
Environmental Consulting Ltd. in support of the referral and the following sections focus on 
those aspects. .  

Walkway Design and Piles 

The report notes that: 

“The east end of the pedestrian loading ramp will be supported by the recently 
installed Berth 1 floating pontoon which is held in position by three 2m diameter piles 
and has a series of steel panels on the east side of the pontoon. The construction of 
the pontoon included the replacement of the previously existing pair of sheet piled cell 
dolphins. 

The new overhead walkway will be supported by three concrete pier structures 
supported by steel pipe piles placed within the intertidal zone. Pier 1 will have 2 piles; 
Pier 2 will have 4 piles and pier 3 will have 7 piles. Pile size may change during 
detailed design but are currently anticipated to be comprised of a 1067 mm diameter 
outer steel pipe pile with a 914 mm inner steel pipe pile. A grouted annulus will be 
between the inner and outer piles and the inner pile will be filled with sand to the sea 
bed. 

… 

The north side of the existing causeway is 140 m in length and is to be widened to 
create additional surface area (top of revetment bank) of approximately 810 m2.” 

Figures showing the walkway’s proposed location and design are included in Attachment A. 

The report notes that installation of the 13 steel piles can be undertaken to avoid impacts to 
fish and marine mammals. Installation will be by vibro-hammer and impact hammer. There is 
potential to impact water quality and cause underwater acoustic impacts to marine 
mammals. Mitigation measures are proposed, such as an environmental monitor to be 
onsite during construction.  

No residual impacts are anticipated if mitigation measures are taken. Attachment B includes 
summaries of proposed mitigation and monitoring measures. 

Other Works in the Area 

The causeway that is currently used as the pedestrian access from the parking/bus 
stop/drop-off area to the ferry is proposed to be widened. This will remove about 1150 
square metres of intertidal area (Attachment A). 

6



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F Page 4 of 12 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

The report states that no sensitive species or significant habitat values were found in the 
area. The existing larger rip-rap which is covered by acorn barnacles and blue mussels will 
be removed and replaced following placement of fill.  

Mitigation measures are proposed to reduce silt contamination and protect water quality and 
fish. Any turbidity caused during construction would be localized and dissipate within a few 
hours. There is a low potential of hazardous material from spills entering the marine 
environment. 

Marine Environment 

The environmental assessment included a site visit on June 8, 2017 along with desk-top 
study to gather information. The report provided an analysis of marine flora and fauna along 
the shoreline, the intertidal and subtidal areas. No marine mammals were observed during 
the assessment, however they following are expected to use the area close to the terminal: 
river otter, harbour seal, seasonal Steller sea-lion and California sea-lion. The intertidal area 
proposed for infilling is dominated by cobble and gravel with little intertidal life present. 

A variety of bird species use the marine environment and shoreline. No heron or raptor 
nests were observed in trees close to the terminal. The only species observed during the 
site visit were crows and gulls. 

There may be other species using the area, especially during migration of shorebirds. While 
the report considered herring spawning (and did not find any spawning sites in the 
application area), there was no reference to other forage fish spawning opportunities near 
the shore.  

Socio-Cultural Environment 

The report notes that two archaeological impact assessments have been completed at the 
Langdale Terminal; in 1992 in support of a parking lot expansion and in 2006 which consisted of 
a site inventory. Stantec recently provided a review of the studies and guidance to BC Ferries. 
The Province will be referring this application to the Sḵwx̱wú7mesh Nation.  

Regarding public health and safety, the report states that the public will be isolated from the 
construction area. In addition construction will be scheduled to limit any disruption to daily ferry 
use by the public. Transport Canada will also require signage and navigational markers and set 
marine traffic rules. 

The adjacent dock serving Gambier and Keats Islands is used as a drop-off/pick-up for private 
marine craft and a portion is leased to the SCRD through Langdale Port Function 346. Signage 
should be posted well ahead of any scheduled construction to inform regular users of any 
service impacts and providing contact information to assist with questions. 

7



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F  Page 5 of 12 
 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

Permit and Approval Requirements 

In addition to the need for a licence of occupation other authorizations may be required. 

The report states that no significant habitat (such as eelgrass or clam beds) was identified in the 
proposed fill area. However, as a precaution, there is a recommendation to submit a request for 
a project review by the Department of Fisheries and Ocean (DFO) to determine if the project will 
cause serious harm and federal authorization is required under the Fisheries Act, 2012.  

No species at risk were observed, however there is potential for Northern Abalone to be in the 
area. The report states that the proposed causeway expansion is “not anticipated to impact 
subtidal rocky substrate that might support this species”. Thus federal approval under the 
Species at Risk Act is not triggered.  

The report states that there are potential effects associated with the project related to navigable 
waters such as interaction of project works/operations. Thus it is expected that the project 
needs a “Notice of Works” review and approval under the Transport Canada Navigation 
Protection Program. 

Mitigation 

The report contains a range of mitigation measures: 

Causeway Expansion Intertidal Fill - relocate motile marine invertebrates, floating silt 
containment curtain, and monitor turbidly outside containment area to confirm guidelines 
are met; 

Pile and Concrete Cap Installation – use of DFO best management practices, monitor 
presence of marine mammals and fish near pile, emergency spill management 
equipment on-site, if possible pile driving during low tide to reduce underwater acoustics. 

Report Conclusion  

The report’s conclusion states:  

“All relevant environmental factors were considered in the preparation of this report 
including impacts to fish, wildlife and human health and as well as direct residual effects 
and cumulative effects. Based on the assessment, it is Aquaparian’s professional 
judgement that no adverse impacts to fish or fish habitat are likely to occur if the owner 
and contractor follow mitigation protection measures identified within Section 5 of this 
report and that environmental monitoring by a third party with professional experience 
with marine construction projects is retained.” 

West Howe Sound Official Community Plan 

The entire application area is designated Marine Transportation. The Transportation section 
includes an objective to recognize the appropriate locations for commercial and recreational 
marine transportation opportunities within the OCP area. There is policy support for Langdale 
Ferry Terminal to continue to be the primary location for ferry service. 

8



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F Page 6 of 12 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

Figure 2 –OCP Land Use Designations 

The application area is also with Development Permit Areas #1A (Coastal Flooding) and #6 
(Shoreline Protection and Management). Staff analysis is that a development permit is not 
required for development of the elevated walkway as the structure is designed to consider 
ocean level rise and does not directly impact the shoreline.  

A development permit will be required for the expansion of the causeway as this requires 
alteration of the shoreline. The information provided in the environmental assessment report 
plus any feedback from DFO will inform the permit process. 

Zoning Bylaw No. 310 

The application area is zoned W1 (Water One), which permits small scale moorage facilities. 

Figure 3 –Zoning 

9



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F  Page 7 of 12 
 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

The ferry terminal site predates adoption of the current zoning bylaw (Bylaw No. 310 adopted in 
1989) which includes the Water One (W1) zone. Earlier zoning bylaws (Bylaw No. 96 adopted in 
1976 and Bylaw No. 35, adopted in 1970) did not include zoning for the water area.  

Access to/from the ferry is considered to be ancillary to and a vital component of the ferry 
terminal. Interpretation of the Coastal Ferry Act indicates that facilities directly relating to 
loading/unloading of the ferry are exempt from zoning requirements. Thus the walkway does not 
trigger a requirement to rezone this portion of the foreshore. 

Consultation 

The application was referred to the West Howe Sound Advisory Planning Commission (APC) 
and the Natural Resources Advisory Committee (NRAC). 

At the NRAC meeting on May 16, 2018 the following recommendation was adopted: 

Recommendation No. 3 Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. 
Regarding Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway – 
Electoral Area F. 

The Natural Resources Advisory Committee recommended that the BC Ferry Services Inc. 
assessment report provide a broader description of best management practices be used 
during construction with respect to sediment. 

At the APC meeting on May 22, 2018 the following recommendation was adopted: 

Recommendation No. 1 Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. 
Regarding Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway - Electoral Area F  

The APC recommended that Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. 
regarding Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway – Electoral Area F be supported, 
with the following concerns:  

• access to and from the ferry for Stormaway riders, handicapped people, dog walkers, 
and bicycles;  

• size of the application area; 
• output of marine environmental assessment regarding birds; and 
• suggest referral of the application to all SCRD APCs and Islands Trust.  

Recommendation No. 2 Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. 
Regarding Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway - Electoral Area F  

The APC recommended support for the “recommendation to submit a request for project 
review by the Department of Fisheries and Oceans to determine if the project will cause 
serious harm and federal authorization is required under the Fisheries Act, 2012.” 

  

10



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F Page 8 of 12 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

Options 

The walkway will separate pedestrians from vehicles and should improve safety and efficiency 
for loading/unloading. The widened causeway will provide separate lanes for bikes and the 
baggage tugger to improve safety and efficiency. 

The environmental assessment report sets out several actions that should mitigate negative 
impacts and staff consider that the province make these conditions of the licence of occupation. 
Staff recommend that the environmental assessment report should: 

• provide a broader description of best management practices be used during
construction with respect to sediment; and

• consider potential impacts to fish that may use the foreshore for spawning; and
migrating shore birds.

The environmental report recommends that BC Ferries submits a request for a project review by 
the Department of Fisheries and Ocean (DFO). Staff recommend that this review should take 
place. 

The requirement for a building permit should also be noted. 

Organization and Intergovernmental Implications 

The proposed license of occupation does not have a direct impact on transit service at the 
terminal. The redevelopment of the terminal will have implications for SCRD Transit with respect 
to location of the bus stop, and Sunshine Coast Transit and BC Transit were jointly consulted 
and given the opportunity to provide preliminary input on bus passenger amenities. This will be 
reviewed further as the detailed terminal development plan becomes available. 

A building permit is required for the elevated walkway. Future development needs to be 
reviewed to determine if additional building permits are required. 

Staff recommend that the licence of occupation can be supported as it will facilitate a key 
component of the Langdale Ferry Terminal redevelopment. 

STRATEGIC PLAN AND RELATED POLICIES 

Consideration and referral of this application supports the SCRD Values of Collaboration and 
Transparency. 

CONCLUSION 

The SCRD received a referral from the Province with respect to an application from BC Ferry 
Services Inc. for a license of occupation for an area of water between the ferry dock and the 
upland terminal. The area is proposed to be the location of an elevated walkway from the 
terminal to the ferry for pedestrian access. The causeway is also proposed to be widened by 
adding fill within the application area. 

11



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F  Page 9 of 12 
 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

The application is supported by an environmental assessment report which concluded that there 
will be no negative impacts if recommended mitigation measures are taken. The proposed 
development is considered to support ferry service by providing a revised access arrangement 
for pedestrians and cyclists.  

Staff recommend that subject to the following conditions, the SCRD has no objections to the 
Province issuing a licence of occupation to BC Ferry Services Inc.: 

a) The environmental assessment report should be amended to consider potential 
impacts to: 

i. consider potential impacts to forage fish that may use the foreshore for 
spawning;  

ii. consider potential impacts to migrating shore birds;  

iii. provide a broader description of best management practices be used during 
construction with respect to sediment; 

b) BC Ferries submits a request for project review by the Department of Fisheries 
and Oceans to determine if the project will cause serious harm and federal 
authorization is required under the Fisheries Act, 2012; and 

c) A public notification system be developed and implemented for informing users of 
the float serving Keats and Gambier Islands of work schedule. 

In addition, a Building Permit will be required for the elevated walkway. 

Attachments 

Attachment A –  Site Plan and Design 

Attachment B –  Extracts from Environmental Assessment Report regarding Implimentation 
and Monitoring Commitments 

 

Reviewed by: 
Manager X – A. Allen Finance  
GM X – I. Hall Legislative  

CAO X- J. Loveys Mgr Transit 
and Fleet X – G. Dykstra 

  

12



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F Page 10 of 12 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

ATTACHMENT A 

Figure 4 – Proposed Walkway Location 

Figure 5 –Walkway Plan and Elevation 

13



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F  Page 11 of 12 
 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

 

Figure 6 –Walkway access from land 

 
Photo 1:  A narrow strip of upland vegetation, primarily introduced species, will be removed for the causeway 

expansion (Source: Marine Foreshore and Langdale Creek Assessment Report   

14



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway- Electoral Area F Page 12 of 12 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC report re CRN00054 BC Ferries Langdale Terminal walkway 

ATTACHMENT B 
Extacts from Marine Foreshore and Langdale Creek Assessment Report – 

Aquaparian Environmental Consulting Ltd, February 2018 

15



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT 

TO: Planning and Community Development Committee– June 14, 2018 

AUTHOR: David Rafael, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT APPLICATION DVP00022 (POWNALL) - 
ELECTORAL AREA A 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. THAT the report titled Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) -
Electoral Area A be received;

2. AND FURTHER THAT Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 to vary:

a) the setback to Hotel Lake, as required in Section 516 (1) (b) of Zoning Bylaw
337,1990, from 30 metres to 15 metres; and

b) the setback to the natural boundary of an unnamed watercourse, as required in
Section 516 (1) (f) of Zoning Bylaw 337,1990, from 15 metres to 10 metres; and

be issued subject to: 

c) covenant registered on title that confirms the addition is one time only and that
any further extensions within the 30 metre setback to Hotel Lake will only be
permitted if the entire dwelling meets the lake setback; and

d) completion of a Preliminary Field Reconnaissance.

BACKGROUND 

SCRD received a Development Variance Permit application for a property located at 13490 
Acadian Road, Garden Bay, on the north side of Hotel Lake, as shown on Figure 1. The 
variance request is to relax the setback to Hotel Lake (from 30 metres to 15 metres) and the 
setback to a stream (from 15 metres to 10.45 metres) to enable a 28 square metre addition to 
an existing lawful non-conforming dwelling.  

The addition is proposed to be located on an area that was previously cleared. Attachment A 
includes the applicant’s reasons for the addition and Attachment B includes the concept plans, 
survey plan and site photos. 

The extension is within Development Permit Area 1 (Riparian Assessment Areas) thus a 
development permit is required. The application included a riparian assessment report. The 
development permit cannot be issued unless the development variance permit is issued. 

ANNEX C

16



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  

Page 2 of 12 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

The purpose of this report is to provide information about the applications and obtain direction 
from the Planning and Community Development Committee. 

Figure 1 – Location Map with subject parcel shown in hatched area 

Below is a summary of the application. 

Owner / Applicant: Kelly & Anthony Pownall / Scott Davis 

Civic Address: 13490 Acadian Road, Garden Bay 

Legal Description: Lot 8. Block 4, District Lot 2951, Plan 12304 

Electoral Area: A (Egmont/Pender Harbour) 

Parcel Area: 1821 m² (0.45 acre) 

OCP Land Use: Lake Watershed Protection B 

Land Use Zone: RU5 (Rural Watershed Protection) 

Application Intent: Addition to single family dwelling requiring variance to lake setback 
(from 30 m to 15 m) and to the creek (from 15 m to 10.45 m) and an 
extension within the setback of 28 sq. m 

Table 1 - Application Summary 

17



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  
 Page 3 of 12 
 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

DISCUSSION 

Egmont/Pender Harbour Official Community Plan  

Policy 4.17 of the current OCP states that the SCRD may give consideration to development 
variance permits for additions to existing lakefront dwellings within the setback to a lake 
provided that: 

• maximum 28 square metres including deck space; 
• does not encroach any closer to the lake;  
• septic disposal system for sewage and grey water disposal system meet current 

standards; 
• Riparian Areas Regulation (RAR) assessment report is provided; and 
• Covenant registered that confirms the addition is one time only and will be removed or 

relocated to meet setbacks before a building permit for a second dwelling is issued. 

The same policy is included in the draft OCP which received First Reading on April 13, 2017. 

The proposed addition within the lakefront setback does not exceed the 28 square metre 
requirement and does not encroach any closer to Hotel Lake. 

The subject property is located within Development Permit Area (DPA) 1: Riparian Assessment 
Areas. Development within DPA 1 requires a report completed by a qualified environmental 
professional as the DPA is intended to protect fish and fish habitat. The owners submitted a 
report completed by FSCI Biological Consultants which notes the following: 

• The lake Streamside Protection and Enhancement Area (SPEA) is 10 metres and the 
proposed addition is outside of the SPEA for the stream and a small portion of the 
extension is within the SPEA for Hotel Lake. 

• There is no anticipated new clearing of the property. 
• The building footprint appears to be located on a significant amount of bedrock. 
• The location of the addition is the only appropriate site for the addition. 

The qualified environmental professional provided the opinion that if the development is 
implemented as proposed, there will be no harmful alteration, disruption or destruction (HADD) 
of natural features, functions and conditions that support fish life processes in the riparian 
assessment area. 

Zoning Bylaw No. 337, 1990 

The property is zoned RU5 (Rural Watershed Protection) which allows one single family 
dwelling with a 35% parcel coverage.  

For the purpose of flood protection: 

• Section 516(1)(b) requires a 30 metre building setback from the natural boundary of 
Hotel Lake; and  

18



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  

Page 4 of 12 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

• Section 516(1) (f) requires a 15 metre building setback from the natural boundary of all
other watercourses (in this case the stream).

The addition also needs to meet Section 516 (3) (a) to ensure that the underside of the floor is 
at least 1.5 metres above the natural boundary of the lake. The elevation data shown in the 
SCRD property mapping system indicates that the construction location is about 5 metres above 
the lake level. 

The proposed setbacks are shown on a survey included in Attachment B. 

Analysis 

The applicant provided a survey dated October 16, 2017 that shows the present natural 
boundary to the lake is further away from the existing dwelling and proposed extension than the 
natural boundary that forms the parcel boundary. The parcel boundary was established by 
Subdivision Plan 12304 in 1966. Land has accreted or been extended but has not been formally 
added to the parcel.  

The proposed 9.26 metre lake setback shown in the 2017 plan is measured to the plan natural 
boundary. The actual distance to the Hotel Lake’s present natural boundary is 15 metres and 
the survey plan was updated (Attachment A) to show the actual setback to the present natural 
boundary of Hotel Lake.  

The environmental assessment report identifies that the SPEA is 15 metre from the natural 
boundary of Hotel Lake and 10 metres from the natural boundary of the stream. Thus the 
proposed extension is outside of the SPEA. The report also notes that the proposed location is 
the only appropriate site for the addition and there will be no HADD.  

Staff consider that as the watercourse SPEA is 10 metres, the setback can be reduced to 10 
metres rather than 10.45 metres as proposed to allow for some flexibility during construction. 

The parcel does not qualify for a second dwelling or an auxiliary dwelling within its zoning, 
however an application for another extension could be submitted. Thus it is recommended to 
require a covenant as set out in the OCP policy that the addition is one time only and that any 
additional extensions within the 30 metre setback to Hotel Lake will only be permitted if the 
entire dwelling meets the lake setback. 

The applicant confirmed that the septic disposal system for sewage and grey water disposal 
system meet current standards by providing a copy of the record of sewage system submitted in 
December 2016 to Vancouver Coastal Health for a three bedroom dwelling with a maximum 
floor area of 175 square metres. The system was installed in late 2017. The dwelling after 
extension will provide three bedrooms and will be 123 square metres. 

The shíshálh Nation requires that a Preliminary Field Reconnaissance (PFR) for archaeological 
and heritage reasons be conducted and the applicant has spoken with the Nation regarding this. 
Completion of a PFR should be a condition to be met before the DVP is issued. 

19



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  
 Page 5 of 12 
 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

If issued, the permit would include the following general conditions: 

1. substantial compliance to the survey plan prepared by Straight Land Surveys, BCLS, 
dated May 14, 2018; and  

2. substantial compliance to the design specified in the drawings prepared by Scott Davis, 
Design dated April 10, 2018. 

Consultation 

The development variance permit application has been referred to the following agencies, 
departments, and parties. 

Referral Comments 

SCRD Building Department 
The Building Department has no objections. 
Variance must be issued prior to approval of 
building permits. 

shíshálh Nation 

Applicants will need to complete a Riparian Area 
Assessment (RAA) with a Registered Professional 
Biologist (R.P. Bio) and observe at a minimum a 
15 m setback from the lake's highest high water 
mark.  
 
shíshálh Nation requires a Preliminary Field 
Reconnaissance prior to ground disturbance. 

Egmont/Pender Harbour Advisory Planning 
Commission 

At the May 30, 2018 meeting the APC adopted the 
following recommendation: 
 

The APC recommends approval of Development 
Variance Permit Application DVP00022 with the 
following comments: 

 
• SCRD conditions are met. 
• No strenuous objections are received from 

neighbours once they have been notified. 
• The APC would like information regarding 

any covenants on title for all referrals in 
the future. 

Neighbouring Property Owners/Occupiers 

On May 23, 2018 notifications were mailed and on 
May 24 hand delivered to owners and occupiers of 
properties within a 100-metre radius of the subject 
property.  

Table 2: Referral Comments 

Neighbours were notified as per the Planning and Development Fees and Procedures Bylaw 
No. 522, 2003 and Section 499 of the Local Government Act. One letter of consent to the 
extension was received from the owners of 13483 Lakeview Road. 

20



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  

Page 6 of 12 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

STRATEGIC PLAN AND RELATED POLICIES 

Consideration of this application supports the Values of Collaboration and Transparency. 

CONCLUSION 

The SCRD has received a development variance permit application requesting to relax a 30-
metre setback to Hotel Lake to 15 metres and a 15-metre setback to a steam to 10 metres. The 
proposed development is a 28 square metre addition behind an existing dwelling located within 
the lakefront setback.  

The proposal is consistent with the requirements in the OCP. A qualified environmental 
professional provided a report that notes the proposed location is the only appropriate site for 
the addition and there is no HADD. The septic system meets current standards and is designed 
to accommodate the proposed dwelling with extension. 

Staff recommend support issuance of DVP00022 to vary: 

a) the setback to Hotel Lake, as required in Section 516 (1) (b) of Zoning Bylaw 337,1990,
from 30 metres to 15 metres; and

b) the setback to the natural boundary of an unnamed watercourse, as required in Section
516 (1) (f) of Zoning Bylaw 337,1990, from 15 metres to 10 metres.

Issuance is recommended to be subject to. 

a) covenant registered on title that confirms the addition is one time only and that any
additional extensions within the 30 metre setback to Hotel Lake will only be permitted if
the entire dwelling meets the lake setback; and

b) completion of a Preliminary Field Reconnaissance.

The DVP will include general conditions regarding adhering to the survey plan and general 
design. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Variance Criteria  

Attachment B – Concept Plans and Site Photos 
Reviewed by: 

Manager X – A. Allen Finance 

GM X – I. Hall Legislative 

CAO X – J. Loveys Other 

21



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  
 Page 7 of 12 
 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

  

22



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  

Page 8 of 12 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

ATTACHMENT B 

Figure 2: Survey -the measurement to the closest point of the extension is labelled “STK Proposed Addition” 

23



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  
 Page 9 of 12 
 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

 

Figure 3: 2014 Air Photo 

24



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  

Page 10 of 12 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

Figure 4: Annotated Site Plan 

25



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  
 Page 11 of 12 
 

 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

 

 
Figure 5: Proposed Design 

26



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) - Electoral Area A  

Page 12 of 12 

2018-Jun-14 PCDC Report DVP00022 (Pownall) Area A 

Figure 6: Site Photos (Looking towards Hotel Lake from “STK”, noted on survey plan, and Proposed Construction 
Site) 

27



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT 

TO: Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 

AUTHOR: Yuli Siao, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 
2018 for Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

THAT the report titled Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 
310.178, 2018 for Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading be received; 

AND THAT Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018 be forwarded to the Board for 
Second Reading; 

AND THAT a public hearing to consider Bylaw 310.178 be scheduled for 7:00 pm, July 17,  
2018, at Eric Cardinal Hall, located at 930 Chamberlin Road, West Howe Sound; 

AND FURTHER THAT Director ___________ be delegated as the Chair and Director 
____________ be delegated as the Alternate Chair for the public hearing. 

BACKGROUND 

On February 22, 2018, the SCRD Board adopted the following resolution: 

075/18 Recommendation No. 12    SCRD Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018 

THAT the report titled Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
No. 310.178, 2018 for Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of First Reading be 
received; 

AND THAT Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 
2018 be forwarded to the Board for First Reading; 

AND THAT Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 
2018 be referred to the following agencies for comment: 

i. West Howe Sound Advisory Planning Commission;

ii. Sḵwx̱wú7mesh Nation;

iii. Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource Operations & Rural Development;

iv. Managed Forest Council;

v. Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure;

vi. Vancouver Coastal Health Authority.

ANNEX D

28



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018 for 
Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading 

Page 2 of 9 
 

2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-ZBL310.178-2nd read-Plowden Eco Lodge

AND FURTHER THAT a Public Information Meeting be held with respect to Sunshine 
Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018. 

Pursuant to the Board’s resolution, the bylaw was referred to agencies for comments, and a 
public information meeting was held. This report summarizes comments received from the 
referrals and public information meeting, and recommends second reading of the bylaw and the 
holding of a public hearing. 

The subject development site is located northeast of Port Mellon. The closest community hub - 
the Langdale Village core is approximately 11 km (direct distance) to the south. 

DISCUSSION 

Referral Comments 

The first staff report for this application and the draft bylaw were referred to the above listed 
agencies.  A summary of referral comments can be found in the following table.  

Referred Agency Comments 

West Howe Sound Advisory Planning 
Commission 

The West Howe Sound APC recommended that SCRD 
Zoning Bylaw Amendment No. 310.178, 2018 – Plowden 
Eco Lodge be supported for the following reasons: 

• Support the direction towards ecotourism.
• It should not be difficult to remove the land from Private

Managed Forest Lands as the property has high
visibility and likely would not be logged.

• Support for the SCRD staff suggestion to narrow the
scale and uses of the C3 zoning “by setting special
provisions tailored to the proposed development for the
site”, as described in the staff report.

Skwxwú7mesh Nation No comments received. 

Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural 
Resource Operations & Rural Development No comments received. 

Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure 

The proposed bylaw amendment affects a parcel that is 
greater than 800 metres from a Controlled Access 
Highway; therefore, the Ministry’s interests are unaffected. 
However, the Ministry has the following comment to 
provide: The Ministry encourages the District to consider 
the volume of traffic that is expected from the Eco Lodge 
in order to ensure the access and forest service road are 
safe for the travelling public, and sufficient for the 
intended use. 

Vancouver Coastal Health Authority No comments received. 

29



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018 for 
Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 
2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-ZBL310.178-2nd read-Plowden Eco Lodge 

Managed Forest Council 

The Managed Forest Council has accepted the applicant’s 
management commitment amendment dated March 13, 
2018 to remove a portion of a parcel from MF 360. The 
amendment complies with the Private Managed Forest 
Land Act and regulations. The Council advises BC 
Assessment that the identified portion of the parcel is no 
longer subject to a management commitment. The 
Council advises the SCRD that the identified portion of the 
parcel is no longer subject to the Private Managed Forest 
Land Act and regulations.  

Public Information Meeting 

A public information meeting was held on April 16, 2018. The applicant, SCRD staff, the Area 
Director, three area residents and three representatives of the Howe Sound Pulp and Paper 
Corporation attended the meeting. A number of topics were discussed regarding the 
background, purpose, design, layout and operation of the development. There was no objection 
to the application by any of the attendants. The meeting notes can be found in Attachment A.   

Discussion of Key Topics 

The following is a summary of key topics that are relevant to the proposed zoning amendment. 

Structure for Tourist Accommodation 

As discussed in the previous report introducing this application, the proposed tourist resort will 
use portable pre-fabricated tourist accommodation buildings that contain sleeping quarters, 
cooking and sanitary facilities. Such buildings were defined as “Sleeping Cabin” in the bylaw for 
first reading. The term “Sleeping Cabin” is not defined in the current zoning bylaws, but a similar 
term “Sleeping Unit” is. To prevent confusion in terminology and capture the unique nature of 
small and movable shelters, it is recommended that they be defined as “Portable Cabin” 
specifically for this zoning amendment.  Detail of the definition is as follows.   

“Portable Cabin” means a building with a maximum floor area of 60 m2 that may contain one 
or more habitable rooms and one set of cooking and sanitary facilities, and may be moved to 
variable locations of a site.  

To further define the temporary nature of tourist accommodation on this specific site and how 
the term “Portable Cabin” is interpreted in the context of the zoning bylaw, the following 
regulations are recommended to be incorporated into the revised bylaw (Attachment B) for 
second reading:  

• No person shall occupy any portable cabins or camp sites for transient accommodation 
purposes for more than a total of 15 days in any calendar month.  

• A portable cabin shall not be considered an auxiliary building or structure. 

 

 

 

30



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018 for 
Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading 

Page 4 of 9 
 

2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-ZBL310.178-2nd read-Plowden Eco Lodge

Managed Forest 

The BC Managed Forest Council has accepted the applicant’s request to remove the southern 
strip of the property from a managed forest (MF 360). The land may now be used for purposes 
other than forestry.    

Potential Conflict with Other Users 

Questions were raised regarding potential conflict on the water between recreational users and 
nearby forestry activities such as log float. A similar issue was discussed during the new Twin 
Creeks OCP review process, and the feedback was that all users appeared to get along well. 
There are other existing docks, beaches and parks along the Thornbrough Channel, and the 
waterway is a public space shared by many users including commercial and industrial users and 
recreational boaters and kayakers, etc. The channel has sufficient space to accommodate many 
users, and as long as caution is taken, potential conflict can be avoided.   

Road Access 

Road access to the subject site is via a forest service road traversing a number of the Howe 
Sound Pulp and Paper Corporation’s properties to the west and south. The applicant has 
provided right-of-way documents defining the applicant’s right to use the road for access. With 
both water and road access available to the site, this tourist development of a limited scope is 
not expected to generate a significant amount of road traffic or cause conflict with adjacent 
areas.  

Auxiliary Facilities and Outdoor Recreation 

As indicated by the applicant, the development will occur incrementally. The auxiliary facilities 
such as reception, service, office and retail will be developed gradually as the number of cabins 
and camp sites increase. Therefore instead of setting the total maximum gross floor area for 
those uses on the entire site, it is more appropriate to define the allowable gross floor area that 
relates to the number of existing cabins and camp sites. It is recommended that the maximum 
total gross floor area for restaurant, retail, service and office uses be set to 3 m2 per campsite 
and 6 m2 per portable cabin. When the site is built out, with a maximum of 66 campsites and 33 
cabins, a total of 396 m2 of those uses would be permitted.  

Additionally, outdoor recreational activities proposed by the applicant should be clearly defined 
as permitted uses in the bylaw, such as zip lining and tree climbing. 

Timeline for next steps 

If the Board gives the bylaw Second Reading, a public hearing will be organized. Comments 
received from the public hearing as well as recommendations for any conditions will be 
incorporated into a staff report to the Planning and Community Development Committee for 
consideration of Third Reading of the Bylaw. At that time the Board can make a decision on the 
final approval of the Bylaw. 

31



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018 for 
Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 
2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-ZBL310.178-2nd read-Plowden Eco Lodge 

Communication Strategy 

Information on this application will be posted on the SCRD website. The public hearing will be 
advertised in the local newspaper and notices will be sent to property owners within 100 metres 
of the site.  

STRATEGIC PLAN AND RELATED POLICIES 

The following SCRD Strategic Plan objectives and success indicators relate to the subject of 
this report: 

• Incorporate land use planning and policies to support local economic development. 
 

• Create and use an “environmental lens” for planning, policy development, service 
delivery and monitoring. 
 

The subject of this report is also aligned with the following land use principles of the Regional 
Sustainability Plan: ‘We Envision’ for the Sunshine Coast: 
 

• We envision a continued vitality in the urban-wild dynamic, unique to our region, through 
the conservation and enhancement of biodiversity, natural spaces, parks and recreation 
opportunities for all residents. 
 

CONCLUSION 

Following the first reading of Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, the referral process and 
the public information meeting had gathered feedback from agencies, members of the public as 
well as the applicant. The proposed development is generally supported by the public and 
agencies.  

A number of issues including definition of portable cabin, road access, conflict with other users, 
auxiliary facilities and outdoor recreation are addressed in this report.   

Revisions to enhance the bylaw are recommended for consideration of second reading to be 
followed by a public hearing.  

Attachments 

Attachment A – Public Information Meeting Notes 

Attachment B – Revised Zoning Amendment Bylaw for Second Reading 

 

Reviewed by: 
Manager X –  A. Allen Finance  
GM X –  I. Hall Legislative  
CAO X –  J. Loveys Other   

 

  

32



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018 for 
Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading 

Page 6 of 9 
 

2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-ZBL310.178-2nd read-Plowden Eco Lodge

Attachment A  Public Information Meeting Notes 

Overview 

• Hugh O’ Dwyer(Applicant) provided a macro overview of the intended use of the property
• Hugh explained the location on the property that is intended to be utilized
• Hugh explained the approach from a community based sustainability perspective and the

types of synergies that the resort anticipated would be a big part of the future success
(e.g. integrating other tourist business into the Plowden bay resort like whale watching,
trail walking kayaking)

• A discussion was held in general terms with regard to solar and wind opportunities
• The range of construction options that could be used was discussed and the challenges /

opportunities for them
• It was a given, that were possible local labor and vendors will be used for the construction

activities.  The challenges and opportunities for this was also discussed in general terms
• A very approximate cost analysis was discussed in regard to the lodge (the hoteling

component), just so the group could understand how it integrated with the previous
construction discussions

• Possible locations of septic fields and other septic options were discussed
• Access from the water and existing ROW was discussed
• Potable water options (drilling also discussed)

Actions: 

• Applicant will provide the property neighboring representatives the parcel ID numbers or
other documents that verifies the in situ ROW.

• Yuli Siao (SCRD Planner) will provide Applicant some clarification on permissible building
locations within the intended zoning

Summary: 

Once the project description was over, most of the evening was spent discussing things in 
general terms.  One attendee was very knowledgeable of the land or region having explored the 
region for many years and provided some great historic insights to the area. 

33



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018 for 
Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 
2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-ZBL310.178-2nd read-Plowden Eco Lodge 

Attachment B  Revised Zoning Amendment Bylaw for Second Reading 
   

SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT 
 

BYLAW NO. 310.178 
 

A bylaw to amend the Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Bylaw No. 310, 1987 
 

 
The Board of Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional District, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
PART A – CITATION 
 
1. This bylaw may be cited as Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw 

No. 310.178, 2018. 
 

PART B – AMENDMENT 
 
2. Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Bylaw No. 310, 1987 is hereby amended as 

follows: 
i.  Renumber Sections 821.4, 821.5, 821.6 and 821.7 as Sections 821.5, 821.6 821.7 and 
821.8 respectively. 
ii. Insert the following Section immediately following Section 821.3:  

821.4    Notwithstanding Section 821.1, the following provisions shall be applied to the 
south portion of District Lot 2657 Group 1 New Westminster District as depicted in 
Schedule A of Zoning Bylaw No. 310, 1987: 

(1) Only the following uses are permitted: 

(a) Campground with a maximum of 10 campsites per hectare 
(b) A maximum of 5 portable cabins per hectare 
(c) Restaurant, retail, service and office uses with a total gross floor area of 3 m2 per 

campsite and 6 m2 per portable cabin 
(d) Home occupation 
(e) Bed and breakfast 
(f) Boat ramp  
(g) Outdoor recreation 

(2) “Portable Cabin” means a building with a maximum floor area of 60 m2 that may 
contain one or more habitable rooms and one set of cooking and sanitary facilities, and 
may be moved to variable locations of a site. 

(3) No person shall occupy any portable cabins or camp sites for transient 
accommodation purposes for more than a total of 15 days in any calendar month.  

(4) A portable cabin shall not be considered an auxiliary building or structure. 

 

34



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018 for 
Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading 

Page 8 of 9 
 

2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-ZBL310.178-2nd read-Plowden Eco Lodge

(5) Notwithstanding Section 821.7, the parcel coverage of all buildings and structures
shall not exceed 15%.

3. Schedule A of Zoning Bylaw No. 310, 1987 is hereby amended by rezoning the south
portion of District Lot 2657 Group 1 New Westminster District from RU2 to C3, as depicted
on Appendix A, attached to and forming part of this bylaw.

PART C – ADOPTION 

READ A FIRST TIME this 22TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2018 

READ A SECOND TIME this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD PURSUANT TO 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

READ A THIRD TIME this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

ADOPTED this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

Corporate Officer 

Chair 

35



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 310.178, 2018 for 
Plowden Eco Lodge – Consideration of Second Reading 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 
2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-ZBL310.178-2nd read-Plowden Eco Lodge 

 

36



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT

TO: Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018

AUTHOR: Yuli Siao, Senior Planner

SUBJECT: Revised OCP Amendments – Densification Strategies to Support
Affordable Housing - Considerations for Second Reading

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. THAT the report titled Revised OCP Amendments - Densification Strategies to Support
Affordable Housing - Considerations for Second Reading be received;

2. AND THAT Halfmoon Bay Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 675.4, 2017,
Roberts Creek Offical Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 641.8, 2017, Elphinstone
Offical Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 600.8, 2017 and West Howe Sound Offical
Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 640.2, 2017 be forwarded to the Board for Second
Reading;

3. AND THAT the bylaws as of the date of this report are considered consistent with the
SCRD’s 2018-2022 Financial Plan and 2011 Solid Waste Management Plan;

4. AND THAT staff monitor and report the implementation and densification impacts of
the bylaws with respect to the SCRD’s 2018-2022 Financial Plan and 2011 Solid Waste
Management Plan and the future versions of these Plans;

5. AND THAT a Public Hearing to consider the bylaws be scheduled for July 23, 2018 at
7:00 p.m. in the SCRD Board Room, located at 1975 Field Road, Sechelt, BC;

6. AND THAT Director ___________ be delegated as the Chair and Director ____________
be delegated as the Alternate Chair for the Public Hearing;

7. AND FURTHER THAT the revised Densification Strategies to Support Affordable
Housing, if adopted by the Board, be incorporated into the Egmont/Pender Harbour
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 708, 2017 for consideration at Second Reading.

BACKGROUND

On March 8, 2018, the Planning and Community Development Committee adopted the following
recommendations:

Recommendation No. 3 OCP Amendments to Support Housing Densification 

The Planning and Community Development Committee recommended that the report titled OCP
Amendments to Support Housing Densification - Analysis of Public Consultation Input and
Considerations for Second Reading be received;

AND THAT reference to the term “low-rise apartment” be replaced by “multi-unit building” within 
Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing Policy (b) of the proposed OCP
Amendment bylaws;

AND FURTHER THAT consideration of the OCP Amendments to Support Housing Densification
be postponed and reconsidered at a future Standing Committee.

ANNEX E

37



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 2 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

In response to these recommendations and input from the Committee, staff examined the 
current Official Community Plans in relation to the proposed policies and revised the proposed 
polices and OCP amendment bylaws to address the Committee’s recommendations. Staff 
recommend Second Reading of the revised bylaws and scheduling of a public hearing. 

DISCUSSION 

For reference purposes the previously proposed policies – Densification Strategies to Support 
Affordable Housing considered by the Board on March 8, 2018 are provided in Attachment A. 

Multi-unit Building 

A “Low-rise apartment”, as referred to in the previously proposed Policy ‘b’ is commonly defined 
as a building that is not more than three storeys high and consists of multiple attached dwelling 
units. The intent of the policy was to include this built form as one of many other built forms of 
multi-unit cluster residential development.  While a “multi-unit building” and a “low-rise 
apartment” can be essentially the same type of building, “multi-unit building” is a more general 
and inclusive term than “low-rise apartment” as it does not indicate building height. As building 
height is regulated by the zoning bylaw, it is unnecessary to describe a built form with a term 
that has height connotation such as ‘low-rise’.  Staff have revised the policies accordingly.   

Additionally, staff also recommend replacing “medium-density” in Objective ‘b’ with “multi-unit”, 
which is a more suitable term to describe this type of cluster development where density will 
depend on land use designation, zoning, specific conditions of the property and surrounding 
neighbourhood and the development proposal.  

Integrating New Policies with Current OCPs 

The Committee raised questions regarding possible conflicts between the proposed new 
policies and all current OCPs, particularly Section 17.9.i of the Roberts Creek OCP. 

Staff re-examined all current OCPs proposed to be amended, and found that the only conflicting 
policy is the first paragraph of Section 17.9.i of the Roberts Creek OCP which states: 

“Proposals to increase residential development density beyond that established in the OCP 
may be supported where the additional development capacity is to provide:  

a) Affordable housing; and/or  
b) Special needs housing  

subject to consultation with local residents through an OCP and rezoning amendment 
application process with public information meeting(s). Specific design criteria may be 
established and if so the site should be included within a development permit area for Form 
and Character, such as DPA 6. Cluster housing will be encouraged to minimize land use.” 

This portion of Section 17.9.i reflects the desire of the Roberts Creek community to have the 
opportunity to explore affordable and special needs housing development options beyond 
density limits established in the current OCP by using the planning approval and public 
consultation process and establishing design criteria to ensure good fit of the new development. 
This policy has a strong emphasis on the provision of affordable and special needs housing as a 
requirement in exchange for density increase. However, it lacks specific criteria for where such 

38



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 3 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

density increase should be located and technical criteria that such development should meet,
such as the provision of infrastructure, utility and amenity. Without these important criteria, the
policy could result in developments in unsuitable or unsustainable areas even if the intent of the
developments is to provide affordable or special needs housing.

This policy conflicts with the proposed policies because of its lack of locational and technical
criteria, which are provided in the proposed policies. Nonetheless, the intent of this policy to
support affordable housing through density bonus should be recognized and reflected in the
new policies. To reconcile the conflict, it is recommended that this portion of Section 17.9.i be
deleted, and its intent be conveyed in the new policies with defined criteria for how density
increase should be evaluated in different locations and how affordable housing bonus should be
applied. Revisions to the proposed new policies are discussed in the following section.

Revisions to Proposed Policies

As discussed in the March staff report, the intent of the proposed OCP amendments is not to
alter existing OCPs, but to introduce policies to strengthen and complement existing policies.

Staff re-examined the previously proposed policies and recommend revisions to reconcile
conflicts with existing policies and enhance the clarity, accuracy, coherence, adaptability to
current OCPs and effectiveness of the new policies in addressing key issues of the public
consultation and meeting the objective of supporting affordable housing through densification.

Policy ‘a’

Previously proposed:

a. Infill development of auxiliary dwellings, duplexes and second dwellings shall be focused
on existing eligible parcels in accordance with zoning bylaw parcel size requirements.
There is currently an ample supply of eligible parcels within the Plan boundaries where
additional dwelling units can be built. To fully utilize the infill potential of these parcels and
prevent unnecessary sprawl of residential development to other rural areas, the existing
minimum parcel size requirements to qualify for multiple dwellings on a parcel, as defined
in the zoning bylaw, shall be maintained.

Although recent study shows that there is an ample supply of eligible lots where additional
dwelling units can be built, the supply of such lots is dynamic and can change over time. Such
status informs the policy but need not be included in the policy. However, as sewage treatment
technology improves over time, smaller lots may be able to accommodate additional dwelling
units. Therefore this policy should not preclude zoning amendments to accommodate possible
infill opportunities in the future on such lots where the density is consistent with OCP residential
or rural residential designations. Policy ‘a’ should be revised as follows:

a. Infill development of auxiliary dwellings, duplexes and second dwellings shall be
encouraged on existing eligible parcels in accordance with zoning bylaw parcel size
requirements. To fully utilize the infill potential of such parcels, the existing minimum
parcel size requirements to qualify for multiple dwellings on a parcel, as defined in the
zoning bylaw, shall be reflective of the residential or rural residential designation.

39



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 4 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

Policy ‘b’ 

Previously proposed: 

b. Village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas shall be prioritized for multi-family cluster 
residential development which may take the form of strata housing, multi-plex, townhouse, 
low-rise apartment, and so forth. Mixed-use development that combines residential use 
with commercial, retail, service and office uses is also appropriate in such areas. These 
types of development may be accommodated by density increase and/or creating specific 
Comprehensive Development zones through the rezoning process. 

Policy ‘b’ directs cluster and mixed use developments to village hubs. These areas are also the 
prime location for density increase and affordable housing. The types of development should 
also include small-lot subdivision, and the policy should ensure that adequate infrastructure and 
amenity can be provided to support the development. Additionally, the policy should also include 
an affordable housing contribution incentive where density exceeds established limits. While 
some of the current OCPs have policies on density bonus of various details and specifications, 
a general policy is needed to complement those OCPs where such a policy is absent or 
deficient. The policy is revised as follows:   

b. Subdivision creating lots smaller than 1000 m2, cluster residential development such as 
townhouse and multi-unit building and mixed-use development that combines residential 
use with commercial, retail, service and office uses are encouraged to be located in village 
hubs or similar settlement cluster areas. 

Developments exceeding density limits of the Official Plan and or the zoning bylaw are 
encouraged in these areas, subject to amendments to the Official Community Plan and or 
the zoning bylaw and all of the following criteria: 

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, traffic circulation and provision of or access to community amenities can all be 
appropriately provided and the development design is compatible with the surrounding 
neighbourhoods; and 

2. With the exception of any other applicable density increase policies of this Plan, a 
contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of 
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing 
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the 
Regional District Board.   

Policies ‘c’ and ‘d’ 

Previously proposed: 

c. Amendments to the land use designation within residential areas outside of village core 
or similar settlement cluster areas, affecting the subdivision district in the zoning bylaw, 
may be considered for residential subdivisions where the resulting subdivision creates 
three or fewer new parcels.  

d. Larger scale subdivisions outside of village core or similar settlement cluster areas, 
creating more than three new parcels and exceeding density limits of the zoning bylaw, 
shall not be permitted. 

40



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 5 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

These two policies are related to each other. The intent of these policies is to prevent the
proliferation of large-scale residential development in areas outside of established village hubs
or comprehensive development areas. This policy has a strong emphasis on areas outside of
village hubs and reflects the general desire of the rural communities across the Sunshine Coast
to prevent unsustainable sprawl in rural areas. However, if properly managed, moderate growth
can still be accommodated outside of village hubs but within areas designated as Residential in
the Official Community Plans. This type of growth can range from small subdivisions of a few
parcels to larger subdivisions over 10 parcels. While small subdivisions have no significant
impact on the overall land use pattern and rural character, larger subdivisions or developments
will need to meet a set of criteria to ensure that they are sustainable and compatible. The
increase in density for larger developments should also be balanced by providing affordable
housing contribution as a benefit to the community.

These two policies can be revised as follows to confine density increase of varying scale outside
of village hubs and settlement clusters to areas designated Residential and define specific
criteria for such development.

c. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and or
the zoning bylaw and creating a total of 3 lots or less, may be considered through an
amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas designated
Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas where water supply,
solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment facility, regional fire
protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major roads and community
amenities can all be appropriately provided and the development design is compatible with
the surrounding rural environment.

d. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and or
the zoning bylaw and creating a total of more than 3 lots, may be considered through an
amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas designated
Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas, subject to all of the
following criteria:

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major roads
and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the development
design is compatible with the surrounding rural environment; and

2. A contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the
Regional District Board.

Policy ‘e’

Previously proposed:

e. Affordable or higher-density housing shall be developed to integrate into rural communities
and strengthen community identity and character. This can be achieved by creating
developments that are complementary to the scale, layout, building design, landscaping
and view of neighbouring properties and the surrounding natural environment.

41



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 6 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

Policy ‘e’ lacks a specific implementation mechanism for integrating affordable and higher-
density housing with the rural neighbourhoods. It can be strengthened by applying specific 
design criteria for form and character through the development permit process. The 
recommended revision is: 

e. Affordable or higher-density housing shall be developed to integrate into rural 
communities and strengthen community identity and character. This can be achieved by 
creating developments that are complementary to the scale, layout, architectural design, 
landscaping and view of neighbouring properties and the surrounding natural 
environment. Specific design criteria may be imposed by establishing a development 
permit area for form and character for a development site.  

Policy ‘ f ’ 

Previously proposed: 

f. Housing agreements pursuant to the Local Government Act shall be used to secure the 
provision of affordable housing in appropriate areas and the long term affordability of 
housing.  

Housing agreement is an important tool provided by the Local Government Act to secure 
density benefits for affordable housing. A housing agreement may specify the form of tenure of 
the housing units, the availability of the housing units to classes of persons, the administration 
and management of the housing units, and the rent, lease, sale or price that may be charged for 
the housing units. A housing agreement is registered on title against the land affected. The 
terms and conditions of a housing agreement may vary from development to development to 
suit diverse situations and needs, and will be negotiated through the development approval 
process between the local government and the developer or property owner. Affordable housing 
can be provided in the form of housing unit, land, monetary or other contributions.  

Housing agreements should be used for not only density bonus applications, but also other 
developments where appropriate. To strengthen and clarify Policy ‘ f ‘ it is recommended that it 
be revised as follows:  

f. Housing agreements pursuant to the Local Government Act shall be used wherever 
applicable to secure the provision of affordable housing in appropriate areas and the 
long term affordability of housing. 

A housing agreement shall determine the terms, conditions and forms of provision or 
contribution of designated affordable or special needs housing and shall use concurrent 
criteria of the Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) and data of 
Statistics Canada to define housing affordability. 

Revised Policies 

Summarizing the above discussions, the recommended revised policies are as follows: 

Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 

Densification is vital to increasing housing supply and providing diverse housing choices. 
Densification can create land use opportunities and favourable conditions for developing 

42



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 7 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

affordable housing through a number of strategies including residential infill, cluster and
mixed-use development and density bonus in appropriate areas.

Objectives

a. Increase the supply of housing units through infill development on existing eligible
parcels.

b. Direct cluster housing, multi-unit and mixed-use development to village hubs and similar
settlement cluster areas.

c. Integrate housing development with the rural context.

d. Use density bonus in appropriate areas to encourage density increase and affordable
housing contribution.

e. Use housing agreements to secure affordable housing.

Policies

a. Infill development of auxiliary dwellings, duplexes and second dwellings shall be
encouraged on existing eligible parcels in accordance with zoning bylaw parcel size
requirements. To fully utilize the infill potential of such parcels, the existing minimum
parcel size requirements to qualify for multiple dwellings on a parcel, as defined in the
zoning bylaw, shall be reflective of the residential or rural residential designation.

b. Subdivision creating lots smaller than 1000 m2, cluster residential development such as
townhouse and multi-unit building and mixed-use development that combines residential
use with commercial, retail, service and office uses are encouraged to be located in
village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas.

Developments exceeding density limits of the Official Plan and or the zoning bylaw are
encouraged in these areas, subject to amendments to the Official Community Plan and
or the zoning bylaw and all of the following criteria:

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment
facility, traffic circulation and provision of or access to community amenities can all
be appropriately provided and the development design is compatible with the
surrounding neighbourhoods; and

2. With the exception of any other applicable density increase policies of this Plan, a
contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the
Regional District Board.

c. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and
or the zoning bylaw and creating a total of 3 lots or less, may be considered through an
amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas
designated Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas where
water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major roads
and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the development design
is compatible with the surrounding rural environment.

43



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 8 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

d. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and creating a total of more than 3 lots, may be considered through 
an amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas 
designated Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas, subject 
to all of the following criteria: 

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major 
roads and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the 
development design is compatible with the surrounding rural environment; and 

2. A contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of 
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing 
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the 
Regional District Board. 

e. Affordable or higher-density housing shall be developed to integrate into rural 
communities and strengthen community identity and character. This can be achieved by 
creating developments that are complementary to the scale, layout, architectural design, 
landscaping and view of neighbouring properties and the surrounding natural 
environment. Specific design criteria may be imposed by establishing a development 
permit area for form and character for a development site.  

f. Housing agreements pursuant to the Local Government Act shall be used wherever 
applicable to secure the provision of affordable housing in appropriate areas and the 
long term affordability of housing. 

A housing agreement shall determine the terms, conditions and forms of provision or 
contribution of designated affordable or special needs housing and shall use concurrent 
criteria of the Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) and data of 
Statistics Canada to define housing affordability.   

Organization and Intergovernmental Implications 

Pursuant to Section 477 (3) (a) (i, ii) of the Local Government Act an amendment to the Official 
Community Plan requires a review of the bylaw in conjunction with the local government’s 
financial and waste management plans. Staff have discussed the proposal with relevant 
departments and determined that the amendments to the Official Community Plans have no 
immediate negative impact on either plan at the time of this report. Any impacts will need to be 
monitored and reported accordingly when densification resulted from the amendments occurs. It 
is therefore recommended that OCP Amendment Bylaws be considered consistent with the 
2018-2022 Financial Plan and 2011 Solid Waste Management Plan of the Sunshine Coast 
Regional District. 

Financial Implications 

There are no financial implications with the OCP policies. Potential impacts will occur when 
implementation and densification occur. Staff will monitor the state of densification and the 
effect of the new policies, and report back to the Board with regard to any significant changes 
that may occur. 

44



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 9 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

Timeline for next steps 

Upon Second Reading of the proposed bylaws a public hearing will be held. Comments
received from the public hearing along with recommended conditions will be presented to the
SCRD Board for consideration of Third Reading of the bylaws. Upon fulfillment of conditions (if
any) approved by the Board the bylaws will be adopted.

In a separate process for updating Zoning Bylaw No. 310, staff will review feedback received
from the public consultation process and recommend appropriate zoning provisions to support
affordable housing design and infill developments.

Communications Strategy 

Information on this application will be posted on the SCRD website. Notice of a public hearing
will be advertised in the local newspaper and sent to the Sunshine Coast Housing Committee.

STRATEGIC PLAN AND RELATED POLICIES

The following SCRD Strategic Plan objectives and success indicators relate to the subject of
this report:

 Incorporate land use planning and policies to support local economic development.
 Collaborate with community groups and organizations to support their objectives and

capacity.
 Land use policies and regulations are supporting affordable housing.

The subject of this report is aligned with the sustainable land use principles that were developed
in 2016.

The subject of this report is also aligned with the following land use principles of the Regional
Sustainability Plan: ‘We Envision’ for the Sunshine Coast:

We envision complete, compact, low environmental-impact communities based on energy-
efficient transportation and settlement patterns.

CONCLUSION

Following the Board’s direction, staff re-examined all current OCP policies and revised the
proposed new policies for densification to support affordable housing to reconcile any conflicts
and further enhance their clarity, accuracy and suitability to integrate with the current OCPs.

These policies strive to strike a balance among a multitude of competing interests and provide a
practical strategy to support affordable housing development while maintaining a sustainable
environment and the character of the rural areas.

Staff recommend that the revised bylaws be presented to the Board for Second Reading and a
Public Hearing be held.

45



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 10 of 28 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Previously Proposed Policies (March 8, 2018) 

Attachment B – Revised Halfmoon Bay Offical Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 675.4 for 
Second Reading 

Attachment C – Revised Roberts Creek Offical Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 641.8 for 
Second Reading 

Attachment D – Revised Elphinstone Offical Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 600.7 for 
Second Reading 

Attachment E – Revised West Howe Sound Offical Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 640.2 
for Second Reading 

Reviewed by: 
Manager X – A. Allen CFO/Finance X-T.Perreault
GM X – I. Hall Legislative 
CAO X -  J. Loveys Solid Waste X – R.Cooper 

46



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 11 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

Attachment A Previously Proposed Policies (March 8, 2018)

Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing

Densification is vital to increasing housing supply and providing diverse housing choices.
Densification can create land use opportunities and favourable conditions for developing
affordable housing through a number of strategies including residential infill and cluster and
mixed-use developments in appropriate areas.

Objectives

a. Increase the supply of housing units through infill development on existing eligible
parcels.

b. Direct cluster housing, medium-density and mixed-use development to village hubs or
similar settlement cluster areas.

c. Integrate housing development with the rural context.

d. Use housing agreements to secure affordable housing.

Policies

a. Infill development of auxiliary dwellings, duplexes and second dwellings shall be focused
on existing eligible parcels in accordance with zoning bylaw parcel size requirements.
There is currently an ample supply of eligible parcels within the Plan boundaries where
additional dwelling units can be built. To fully utilize the infill potential of these parcels
and prevent unnecessary sprawl of residential development to other rural areas, the
existing minimum parcel size requirements to qualify for multiple dwellings on a parcel,
as defined in the zoning bylaw, shall be maintained.

b. Village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas shall be prioritized for multi-family cluster
residential development which may take the form of strata housing, multi-plex,
townhouse, low-rise apartment, and so forth. Mixed-use development that combines
residential use with commercial, retail, service and office uses is also appropriate in such
areas. These types of development may be accommodated by density increase and/or
creating specific Comprehensive Development zones through the rezoning process.

c. Amendments to the land use designation within residential areas outside of village core
or similar settlement cluster areas, affecting the subdivision district in the zoning bylaw,
may be considered for residential subdivisions where the resulting subdivision creates
three or fewer new parcels.

d. Larger scale subdivisions outside of village core or similar settlement cluster areas,
creating more than three new parcels and exceeding density limits of the zoning bylaw,
shall not be permitted.

e. Affordable or higher-density housing shall be developed to integrate into rural
communities and strengthen community identity and character. This can be achieved by
creating developments that are complementary to the scale, layout, building design,
landscaping and view of neighbouring properties and the surrounding natural
environment.

47



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 12 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

f. Housing agreements pursuant to the Local Government Act shall be used to secure the 
provision of affordable housing in appropriate areas and the long term affordability of 
housing.  

  

48



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 13 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

Attachment B Revised Halfmoon Bay Offical Community Plan Amendment Bylaw
675.4 for Second Reading

SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT

BYLAW NO. 675.4

A bylaw to amend the Halfmoon Bay Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 675, 2013

The Board of Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional District, in open meeting assembled,
enacts as follows:

PART A – CITATION

1. This bylaw may be cited as Halfmoon Bay Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No.
675.4, 2017.

PART B – AMENDMENT

2. Halfmoon Bay Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 675, 2013 is hereby amended as follows:

i. Insert the following section immediately following Section 10:

11. Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing

Densification is vital to increasing housing supply and providing diverse housing choices.
Densification can create land use opportunities and favourable conditions for developing
affordable housing through a number of strategies including residential infill, cluster and
mixed-use development and density bonus in appropriate areas.

11.1 Objectives

a. Increase the supply of housing units through infill development on existing eligible
parcels.

b. Direct cluster housing, multi-unit and mixed-use development to the Community Hubs
and similar settlement cluster areas.

c. Integrate housing development with the rural context.

d. Use density bonus in appropriate areas to encourage density increase and affordable
housing contribution.

e. Use housing agreements to secure affordable housing.

49



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 14 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

11.2  Policies 

a. Infill development of auxiliary dwellings, duplexes and second dwellings shall be 
encouraged on existing eligible parcels in accordance with zoning bylaw parcel size 
requirements. To fully utilize the infill potential of such parcels, the existing minimum 
parcel size requirements to qualify for multiple dwellings on a parcel, as defined in the 
zoning bylaw, shall be reflective of the residential or rural residential designation. 

b. Subdivision creating lots smaller than 1000 m2, cluster residential development such as 
townhouse and multi-unit building and mixed-use development that combines residential 
use with commercial, retail, service and office uses are encouraged to be located in the 
Community Hubs or similar settlement cluster areas. 

Developments exceeding density limits of the Official Plan and or the zoning bylaw are 
encouraged in these areas, subject to amendments to the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and all of the following criteria: 

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, traffic circulation and provision of or access to community amenities can all 
be appropriately provided and the development design is compatible with the 
surrounding neighbourhoods; and 

2. With the exception of any other applicable density increase policies of this Plan, a 
contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of 
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing 
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the 
Regional District Board.   

c. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and creating a total of 3 lots or less, may be considered through an 
amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas 
designated Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas where 
water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major roads 
and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the development design 
is compatible with the surrounding rural environment.  

d. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and creating a total of more than 3 lots, may be considered through 
an amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas 
designated Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas, subject 
to all of the following criteria: 

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major 
roads and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the 
development design is compatible with the surrounding rural environment; and 

2. A contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of 
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing 
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the 
Regional District Board. 

50



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 15 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

e. Affordable or higher-density housing shall be developed to integrate into rural
communities and strengthen community identity and character. This can be achieved by
creating developments that are complementary to the scale, layout, architectural design,
landscaping and view of neighbouring properties and the surrounding natural
environment. Specific design criteria may be imposed by establishing a development
permit area for form and character for a development site.

f. Housing agreements pursuant to the Local Government Act shall be used wherever
applicable to secure the provision of affordable housing in appropriate areas and the
long term affordability of housing.

A housing agreement shall determine the terms, conditions and forms of provision or
contribution of designated affordable or special needs housing and shall use concurrent
criteria of the Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) and data of
Statistics Canada to define housing affordability.

ii    Renumber all subsequent sections and subsections accordingly.

PART C – ADOPTION

READ A FIRST TIME this 12th DAY OF OCTOBER 2017

PURSUANT TO SECTION 475 OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ACT CONSULTATION
REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERED this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

READ A SECOND TIME this DAY OF MONTH YEAR

CONSIDERED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE
SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT
FINANCIAL PLAN AND ANY APPLICABLE WASTE
MANAGEMENT PLANS PURSUANT TO
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT this DAY OF MONTH YEAR

PUBLIC HEARING HELD PURSUANT TO
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT this DAY OF MONTH YEAR

READ A THIRD TIME this DAY OF MONTH YEAR

51



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 16 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

ADOPTED this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

 

 

 

Corporate Officer 

 

 

 

Chair 

  

52



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 17 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

Attachment C Revised Roberts Creek Offical Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 
641.8 for Second Reading 

SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT 
 

 BYLAW NO. 641.8 
 

A bylaw to amend the Roberts Creek Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 641, 2011 
 

 

The Board of Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional District, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 

 
PART A – CITATION 

 
1. This bylaw may be cited as Roberts Creek Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 

No. 641.8, 2017. 

 

PART B – AMENDMENT 

 
2. Roberts Creek Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 641, 2011 is hereby amended as follows: 

i. Delete the following portion of Section 17.9.i: 

“ Proposals to increase residential development density beyond that established in the OCP 
may be supported where the additional development capacity is to provide:  

a) Affordable housing; and/or  

b) Special needs housing  
subject to consultation with local residents through an OCP and rezoning amendment 
application process with public information meeting(s). Specific design criteria may be 
established and if so the site should be included within a development permit area for Form 
and Character, such as DPA 6. Cluster housing will be encouraged to minimize land use. ” 

ii. Insert the following section immediately following Section 17: 

18. Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 

Densification is vital to increasing housing supply and providing diverse housing choices. 
Densification can create land use opportunities and favourable conditions for developing 
affordable housing through a number of strategies including residential infill, cluster and 
mixed-use development and density bonus in appropriate areas. 

18.1  Objectives  

53



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 18 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

a. Increase the supply of housing units through infill development on existing eligible 
parcels. 

b. Direct cluster housing, multi-unit and mixed-use development to the Village Amenity / 
Density Bonus Area and similar settlement cluster areas. 

c. Integrate housing development with the rural context. 

d. Use density bonus in appropriate areas to encourage density increase and affordable 
housing contribution. 

e. Use housing agreements to secure affordable housing. 

18.2   Policies 

a. Infill development of auxiliary dwellings, duplexes and second dwellings shall be 
encouraged on existing eligible parcels in accordance with zoning bylaw parcel size 
requirements. To fully utilize the infill potential of such parcels, the existing minimum 
parcel size requirements to qualify for multiple dwellings on a parcel, as defined in the 
zoning bylaw, shall be reflective of the residential or rural residential designation. 

b. Subdivision creating lots smaller than 1000 m2, cluster residential development such as 
townhouse and multi-unit building and mixed-use development that combines residential 
use with commercial, retail, service and office uses are encouraged to be located in the 
Village Amenity / Density Bonus Area or similar settlement cluster areas. 

Developments exceeding density limits of the Official Plan and or the zoning bylaw are 
encouraged in these areas, subject to amendments to the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and all of the following criteria: 

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, traffic circulation and provision of or access to community amenities can all 
be appropriately provided and the development design is compatible with the 
surrounding neighbourhoods; and 

2. With the exception of any other applicable density increase policies of this Plan, a 
contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of 
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing 
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the 
Regional District Board.  

c. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and creating a total of 3 lots or less, may be considered through an 
amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas 
designated Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas where 
water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major roads 
and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the development design 
is compatible with the surrounding rural environment.  

d. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and creating a total of more than 3 lots, may be considered through 
an amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas 

54



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 19 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

designated Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas, subject
to all of the following criteria:

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major
roads and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the
development design is compatible with the surrounding rural environment; and

2. A contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the
Regional District Board.

e. Affordable or higher-density housing shall be developed to integrate into rural
communities and strengthen community identity and character. This can be achieved by
creating developments that are complementary to the scale, layout, architectural design,
landscaping and view of neighbouring properties and the surrounding natural
environment. Specific design criteria may be imposed by establishing a development
permit area for form and character for a development site.

f. Housing agreements pursuant to the Local Government Act shall be used wherever
applicable to secure the provision of affordable housing in appropriate areas and the
long term affordability of housing.

A housing agreement shall determine the terms, conditions and forms of provision or
contribution of designated affordable or special needs housing and shall use concurrent
criteria of the Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) and data of
Statistics Canada to define housing affordability.

ii    Renumber all subsequent sections and subsections accordingly.

PART C – ADOPTION

READ A FIRST TIME this 12th DAY OF OCTOBER 2017

PURSUANT TO SECTION 475 OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ACT CONSULTATION
REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERED this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

READ A SECOND TIME this DAY OF MONTH YEAR

55



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 20 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

 

CONSIDERED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE 
SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL PLAN AND ANY APPLICABLE WASTE  
MANAGEMENT PLANS PURSUANT TO  
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT this   DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD PURSUANT TO  
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT this DAY OF  MONTH YEAR 

 

READ A THIRD TIME this DAY OF  MONTH YEAR 

 

ADOPTED this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

 

 

 

Corporate Officer 

 

 

 

Chair 

  

56



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 21 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

Attachment D Revised Elphinstone Offical Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 600.7
for Second Reading

SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT

BYLAW NO. 600.8

A bylaw to amend the Elphinstone Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 600, 2007

The Board of Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional District, in open meeting assembled,
enacts as follows:

PART A – CITATION

1. This bylaw may be cited as Elphinstone Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No.
600.8, 2017.

PART B – AMENDMENT

2. Elphinstone Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 600, 2007 is hereby amended as follows:

Insert the following section immediately following Section B-9:

B-10  Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing

Densification is vital to increasing housing supply and providing diverse housing choices.
Densification can create land use opportunities and favourable conditions for developing
affordable housing through a number of strategies including residential infill, cluster and
mixed-use development and density bonus in appropriate areas.

B-10.1  Objectives

a. Increase the supply of housing units through infill development on existing eligible
parcels.

b. Direct cluster housing, multi-unit and mixed-use development to the Comprehensive
Development Cluster Housing Areas and similar settlement cluster areas.

c. Integrate housing development with the rural context.

d. Use density bonus in appropriate areas to encourage density increase and affordable
housing contribution.

e. Use housing agreements to secure affordable housing.

57



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 22 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

B-10.2   Policies 

a. Infill development of auxiliary dwellings, duplexes and second dwellings shall be 
encouraged on existing eligible parcels in accordance with zoning bylaw parcel size 
requirements. To fully utilize the infill potential of such parcels, the existing minimum 
parcel size requirements to qualify for multiple dwellings on a parcel, as defined in the 
zoning bylaw, shall be reflective of the residential or rural residential designation. 

b. Subdivision creating lots smaller than 1000 m2, cluster residential development such as 
townhouse and multi-unit building and mixed-use development that combines residential 
use with commercial, retail, service and office uses are encouraged to be located in the 
Comprehensive Development Cluster Housing Areas or similar settlement cluster areas. 

Developments exceeding density limits of the Official Plan and or the zoning bylaw are 
encouraged in these areas, subject to amendments to the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and all of the following criteria: 

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, traffic circulation and provision of or access to community amenities can all 
be appropriately provided and the development design is compatible with the 
surrounding neighbourhoods; and 

2. With the exception of any other applicable density increase policies of this Plan, a 
contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of 
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing 
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the 
Regional District Board.  

c. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and creating a total of 3 lots or less, may be considered through an 
amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas 
designated Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas where 
water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major roads 
and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the development design 
is compatible with the surrounding rural environment.  

d. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and creating a total of more than 3 lots, may be considered through 
an amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas 
designated Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas, subject 
to all of the following criteria: 

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major 
roads and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the 
development design is compatible with the surrounding rural environment; and 

2. A contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of 
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing 
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the 
Regional District Board. 

58



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 23 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

e. Affordable or higher-density housing shall be developed to integrate into rural 
communities and strengthen community identity and character. This can be achieved by 
creating developments that are complementary to the scale, layout, architectural design, 
landscaping and view of neighbouring properties and the surrounding natural 
environment. Specific design criteria may be imposed by establishing a development 
permit area for form and character for a development site.  

f. Housing agreements pursuant to the Local Government Act shall be used wherever 
applicable to secure the provision of affordable housing in appropriate areas and the 
long term affordability of housing. 

A housing agreement shall determine the terms, conditions and forms of provision or 
contribution of designated affordable or special needs housing and shall use concurrent 
criteria of the Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) and data of 
Statistics Canada to define housing affordability.   

ii    Renumber all subsequent sections and subsections accordingly.  

 

PART C – ADOPTION 

 

READ A FIRST TIME this 12th DAY OF OCTOBER 2017 

 
 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 475 OF THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT CONSULTATION  
REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERED this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

 

READ A SECOND TIME this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

 

CONSIDERED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE 
SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL PLAN AND ANY APPLICABLE WASTE  
MANAGEMENT PLANS PURSUANT TO  
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT this   DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD PURSUANT TO  
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT this DAY OF  MONTH YEAR 

 

59



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 24 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

READ A THIRD TIME this DAY OF  MONTH YEAR 

 

ADOPTED this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

 

 

 

Corporate Officer 

 

 

 

Chair 

  

60



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 25 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

Attachment E Revised West Howe Sound Offical Community Plan Amendment Bylaw
640.2 for Second Reading

SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT

BYLAW NO. 640.2

A bylaw to amend the West Howe Sound Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 640, 2011

The Board of Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional District, in open meeting assembled,
enacts as follows:

PART A – CITATION

1. This bylaw may be cited as West Howe Sound Official Community Plan Amendment
Bylaw No. 640.2, 2017.

PART B – AMENDMENT

2. West Howe Sound Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 640, 2011 is hereby amended as
follows:

i. Insert the following section immediately following Section 6:

7. Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing

Densification is vital to increasing housing supply and providing diverse housing choices.
Densification can create land use opportunities and favourable conditions for developing
affordable housing through a number of strategies including residential infill, cluster and
mixed-use development and density bonus in appropriate areas.

7.1  Objectives

a. Increase the supply of housing units through infill development on existing eligible
parcels.

b. Direct cluster housing, multi-unit and mixed-use development to the Langdale
Neighbourhood Village Centre and similar settlement cluster areas.

c. Integrate housing development with the rural context.

d. Use density bonus in appropriate areas to encourage density increase and affordable
housing contribution.

e. Use housing agreements to secure affordable housing.

61



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 26 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

7.2   Policies 

a. Infill development of auxiliary dwellings, duplexes and second dwellings shall be 
encouraged on existing eligible parcels in accordance with zoning bylaw parcel size 
requirements. To fully utilize the infill potential of such parcels, the existing minimum 
parcel size requirements to qualify for multiple dwellings on a parcel, as defined in the 
zoning bylaw, shall be reflective of the residential or rural residential designation. 

b. Subdivision creating lots smaller than 1000 m2, cluster residential development such as 
townhouse and multi-unit building and mixed-use development that combines residential 
use with commercial, retail, service and office uses are encouraged to be located in the 
Langdale Neighbourhood Village Centre or similar settlement cluster areas. 

Developments exceeding density limits of the Official Plan and or the zoning bylaw are 
encouraged in these areas, subject to amendments to the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and all of the following criteria: 

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, traffic circulation and provision of or access to community amenities can all 
be appropriately provided and the development design is compatible with the 
surrounding neighbourhoods; and 

2. With the exception of any other applicable density increase policies of this Plan, a 
contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of 
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing 
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the 
Regional District Board.   

c. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and creating a total of 3 lots or less, may be considered through an 
amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas 
designated Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas where 
water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major roads 
and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the development design 
is compatible with the surrounding rural environment.  

d. Developments exceeding established density limits of the Official Community Plan and 
or the zoning bylaw and creating a total of more than 3 lots, may be considered through 
an amendment to the Official Community Plan and / or the zoning bylaw for areas 
designated Residential outside of village hubs or similar settlement cluster areas, subject 
to all of the following criteria: 

1. Water supply, solid waste collection, storm water management, sewage treatment 
facility, regional fire protection, traffic circulation and convenient access to major 
roads and community amenities can all be appropriately provided and the 
development design is compatible with the surrounding rural environment; and 

2. A contribution to affordable or special needs housing must be made in the form of 
housing unit, land, money or other types of provision and registered with a housing 
agreement in accordance with the Local Government Act and approved by the 
Regional District Board. 

62



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing
Considerations for Second Reading Page 27 of 28

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read

e. Affordable or higher-density housing shall be developed to integrate into rural
communities and strengthen community identity and character. This can be achieved by
creating developments that are complementary to the scale, layout, architectural design,
landscaping and view of neighbouring properties and the surrounding natural
environment. Specific design criteria may be imposed by establishing a development
permit area for form and character for a development site.

f. Housing agreements pursuant to the Local Government Act shall be used wherever
applicable to secure the provision of affordable housing in appropriate areas and the
long term affordability of housing.

A housing agreement shall determine the terms, conditions and forms of provision or
contribution of designated affordable or special needs housing and shall use concurrent
criteria of the Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) and data of
Statistics Canada to define housing affordability.

ii    Renumber all subsequent sections and subsections accordingly.

PART C – ADOPTION

READ A FIRST TIME this 12th DAY OF OCTOBER 2017

PURSUANT TO SECTION 475 OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ACT CONSULTATION
REQUIREMENTS CONSIDERED this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

READ A SECOND TIME this DAY OF MONTH YEAR

CONSIDERED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE
SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT
FINANCIAL PLAN AND ANY APPLICABLE WASTE
MANAGEMENT PLANS PURSUANT TO
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT this DAY OF MONTH YEAR

PUBLIC HEARING HELD PURSUANT TO
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT this DAY OF MONTH YEAR

READ A THIRD TIME this DAY OF MONTH YEAR

63



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Revised OCP Amendments-Densification Strategies to Support Affordable Housing 
Considerations for Second Reading Page 28 of 28 
 

2018-June-14 PCDC Report OCP Amendments-Housing Densification-2nd Read 

 

ADOPTED this DAY OF MONTH YEAR 

 

 

 

Corporate Officer 

 

 

 

Chair 

 

64



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT

TO: Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018

AUTHOR: Yuli Siao, Senior Planner

SUBJECT: Provincial Referral 102649829-002 – Sunshine Coast Mountain Adventures

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT the report titled Provincial Referral 102649829-002 – Sunshine Coast Mountain
Adventures be received;

AND THAT the following comments be forwarded to the Ministry of Forests, Lands,
Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development:

Subject to the following conditions, the Sunshine Coast Regional District has no
objection to Provincial Referral 102649829-002:

a) The applicant conduct a community information meeting and respond to any
development and operation concerns and questions which may be raised by the
community.

b) Comments received from the shíshálh and Sḵwx̱wú7mesh Nations be addressed.

c) The applicant is to provide an emergency management plan to the SCRD for
comments.

d) Fire protection plan and measures are in place should fire rings be used at trail
construction campsites

e) Comments of the SCRD Natural Resource Advisory Committee and Advisory
Planning Commissions be provided to the Ministry.

AND FURTHER THAT once all comments have been reviewed and addressed the
proposed operations be carried out in accordance with the amended project
management plan, amended environmental management plan and amended emergency
management plan as approved by the Province.

BACKGROUND

The SCRD received a referral from the Province regarding a Provincial land tenure application
for a proposed tourist operation known as the Sunshine Coast Mountain Adventures. The
proposal package is included in Attachment A.

Sunshine Coast Mountain Adventures Ltd. proposes to develop a seasonal tourism operation in
the lower Sunshine Coast. The operation will include an operational base and head office at
Sechelt Airport in Wilson Creek and a store front at Off the Edge Adventure Sports in Sechelt.
Tourists will be transported by helicopters from the air base to a number of remote mountainous

ANNEX F

65



Staff Report to Planning & Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral 102649829-002 – Sunshine Coast Mountain Adventures Page 2 of 4 
 

 
2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-Sunshine Coast Mountain Adventure 

areas known as the adventure zones (Overview Map Tenure Adventure Zones, below and in 
Attachment A) for mountaineering activities. They will be picked up by helicopters and 
transported back to the base after the activities. Hiking and / or biking trails and via-ferrata 
(protected climbing paths facilitated with cables, carved steps, pegs, ladders and bridges) will 
be developed within these zones. The zones include helicopter landing areas and cover lands 
about 500 m from each side of the proposed trails. 

The project will be developed in phases, with trail construction and tour operation stretching 
from the summer of 2018 to 2021 (Table 1: SCMA’s Proposed Construction and Operating 
Schedule, Attachment A). Temporary camps will be set up to facilitate trail construction. The 
proposal includes analysis of perceivable impacts of the proposed tourist activities on various 
natural and social elements and methods to minimize them, such as land, water, fish and 
wildlife habitat, land use, infrastructure, utility, forestry, first nation, public health and emergency 
response. An environmental management plan was also included with the application.  

 

DISCUSSION 

Tourism is an important part of the Sunshine Coast’s economy, and the SCRD’s Strategic Plan 
supports sustainable economic development and low-impact tourism and recreation. This 
project, if planned and carried out as described in the proposal, has the potential to benefit 
tourist related commercial, accommodation, transportation and other businesses on the 
Sunshine Coast without significantly affecting the natural and social environment.   

The majority of the proposed mountain adventure zones – Clowhom Phantom, Mt. Crucil and 
Buck Mountain and a small portion of the Sechelt Creek Howe Sound adventure zone are within 
the Halfmoon Bay Official Community Plan boundaries. These areas are designated as 

66



Staff Report to Planning & Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018
Provincial Referral 102649829-002 – Sunshine Coast Mountain Adventures Page 3 of 4

2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-Sunshine Coast Mountain Adventure

Resource land use and zoned RU2, where outdoor recreation is permitted. The rest of the
adventure zones are outside of the boundaries of any other official community plans.

The Mt. Crucil heli-drop zone is in proximity to the Tetrahedron Park boundary, however it is not
located within the park. Mt. Crucil peak is approximately 1,000 metres south of the park
boundary.

All of the adventure zones are outside of areas where SCRD parks and trails are located, and
areas serviced by water supply and fire protection of the SCRD.

The applicant’s environmental management plan addresses all aspects of the project and
activities, including trail building, helicopter access, hiking, biking and camping, etc. The plan
provides guidelines to ensure that backcountry activities do not adversely impact soil, water,
vegetation, wildlife, and socially and culturally sensitive areas.

Recognizing the diverse uses of and values associated with Provincial lands in this area, staff
recommend that the referral response requests that the applicant conduct a community
information meeting and address development and operation concerns raised.

The proposed adventure zones overlap various land use zones of the shíshálh Nation Strategic
Land Use Plan, including conservation, cultural emphasis, stewardship and community forest
areas. The Plan proposes tourism development be undertaken in an environmentally and
culturally sensitive way that does not degrade the land or undermine shíshálh cultural integrity,
and states the Nation’s management directions for tourism and recreation resources. The
applicant’s management plan identifies preliminary key issues that are of importance to First
Nations, such as avoiding and buffering for known First Nation sites, planning flight paths to
avoid noise over sensitive areas, preparation to fight man-made or natural fires. The applicant
indicates that they have contacted the shíshálh and Sḵwx̱wú7mesh Nations. Out of respect for
the relationship SCRD shared with First Nations, staff recommend that comments or concerns
received from the shíshálh and Sḵwx̱wú7mesh Nations be addressed as a condition of
Provincial approval.

The applicant will develop an in-depth emergency management plan for the proposed operation
upon approval of the tenure. Staff recommend that this plan be provided to the SCRD for review
and coordination with the Sunshine Coast Emergency Program. As fire rings are proposed for
temporary camps during trail construction, a fire protection plan and measures need to be in
place. In addition, the SCRD needs to understand BC Wildfire’s response to this application.  

The proposal will be referred to the Natural Resource Advisory Committee (NRAC) and
Advisory Planning Commissions for review in June. Comments from these agencies will be
forwarded to the Province.

STRATEGIC PLAN AND RELATED POLICIES 

The following SCRD Strategic Plan objectives and success indicators relate to the subject of
this report:

 Incorporate land use planning and policies to support local economic development.

 Create and use an “environmental lens” for planning, policy development, service
delivery and monitoring.

67



Staff Report to Planning & Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral 102649829-002 – Sunshine Coast Mountain Adventures Page 4 of 4 
 

 
2018-JUNE-14 PCDC report-Sunshine Coast Mountain Adventure 

CONCLUSION 

SCRD has received a referral from the province regarding a helicopter-based mountain 
adventure tourist business to be operated in remote areas of the Sunshine Coast. There is no 
direct impact on SCRD services though it is recommended that comments with conditions be 
forwarded to the Province.   
 
It is recommended that prior to consideration of approval the Province request the applicant  
host a public information meeting to share the proposal with the community and where 
applicable incorporate concerns and comments into the project management and emergency 
management plans.  
 
The Province and applicant should also engage in detailed consultation with First Nations. 
 
It is recommended that comments received from public and First Nations be incorporated into 
conditions of approval should the Province choose to approve this application. 
 
Attachments 

Attachment A – Proposal package - Provincial Referral 102649829-002 

 

Reviewed by: 
Manager X – A. Allen Finance  
GM X -  I. Hall Legislative  
CAO X – J. Loveys  Emergency   X-    B. Elsner 

 

68



Attachment A

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT 

TO: Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 

AUTHOR: Yuli Siao, Senior Planner 
SUBJECT: District of Sechelt Referral - OCP and Zoning Amendment Application 3360-

20 2018-04 (Greencourt) 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
THAT the report titled District of Sechelt Referral - OCP and Zoning Amendment 
Application 3360-20 2018-04 (Greencourt) be received; 
AND THAT the SCRD respond to the District of Sechelt with the following comments: 

1. The proposal has no negative impacts on SCRD’s land use policies.
2. The proposal will impact the taxation apportionment between the Member

Municipalities and Electoral Areas.
3. Consideration should be given to ensuring that the garbage and recycling area

identified in the proposal has adequate storage for containers for separating
garbage, recyclables and organics, and is accessible to building occupants and
collection service providers.

4. Should the proposed work generate any residual materials, the applicant is
required to sort accordingly to maximize diversion of materials accepted at the
Sechelt Landfill.

5. Provide sufficient turn-around space for Handy Dart bus pickup near the entrance
area of the property.

6. Requirements of SCRD Water Rates and Regulations Bylaw No. 422 must be
complied with.

7. The SCRD expects the use of water conservation measures when increasing
density within an OCP. This can include high efficiency appliances, xeriscaping,
and rainwater harvesting for irrigation as detailed in this report.

AND FURTHER THAT this Recommendation be forwarded to the June 14, 2018 Regular 
Board meeting. 

BACKGROUND 

The SCRD received a referral from the District of Sechelt regarding an amendment to their 
Official Community Plan (OCP) and zoning bylaw to permit a density increase to a maximum of 
175 units / ha and amend the zoning to facilitate a proposed 104-unit apartment building in the 
Greencourt Supportive Housing complex located near Downtown Sechelt. The referral package 
is included in Attachment A. 

In order to provide timely feedback, staff recommend this report be forwarded to the June 14, 
2018 regular Board meeting. 

ANNEX G

135



Staff Report to Planning & Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
District of Sechelt Referral – OCP and Zoning Bylaw Amendment Application 3360-20 2018-
04 (Greencourt)  

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
2018-June-14 PCDC report-District Sechelt Referral (Greencourt) 

DISCUSSION 

The subject property proposed for development is located at the intersection of Medusa Street 
and Ocean Avenue in Sechelt (see Location Plan in Attachment A). The proposal is for a 5-
storey building comprised of 104 rental residential units for seniors and common facilities such 
as lobby, office, laundry and hall. A parking garage with 41 spaces within the building and 
outdoor green space and visitor parking are also provided. The new building will replace two 
existing single-storey residential buildings and the hall.  

The site is designated as Multi-family / Mixed Residential in the District of Sechelt OCP. The 
OCP permits a maximum density of 100 units / ha for this area. The proposed development 
would have a density of 175 units / ha. Therefore an OCP amendment is required to allow for 
the density increase. The site is zoned R-4 and CD-26 in the District of Sechelt Zoning Bylaw. 
To accommodate the specific design of the development, a modified CD-26 zone for the site is 
proposed.  

SCRD OCP policies encourage the provision of diverse housing types and choices and 
affordable and special needs housing. This development can help to ease the acute shortage of 
affordable housing on the Sunshine Coast, especially the supply of residential units for seniors. 
The proposal is also consistent with the Regional Sustainability Plan envisioning the provision of 
a wide selection of housing options to meet present and future demands. 

The site is close to downtown Sechelt, with convenient access to public transit, health care 
facilities, commercial and other amenities. This makes the site suitable for more intense 
residential development.   

SCRD departments have reviewed the referral and provided the following comments. These 
comments should be considered in the review process of this application.  

Finance 

With an increase in allowable density, the SCRD could expect cost pressure related to 
infrastructure and service. There will be an assessment impact on the District of Sechelt and 
therefore an impact on the apportionment of taxation between the Member Municipalities and 
Electoral Areas. 

Solid Waste 

Consideration should be given during facility design to ensuring that the garbage and recycling 
area indicated in the proposal has adequate storage for containers for separating garbage, 
recyclable and organics, and is accessible to building occupants and collection service 
providers. 

Should the proposed work generate any residual materials during construction, the applicant is 
required to sort materials accepted at the Sechelt Landfill to maximize diversion.  

 

 

136



Staff Report to Planning & Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
District of Sechelt Referral – OCP and Zoning Bylaw Amendment Application 3360-20 2018-
04 (Greencourt) 

Page 3 of 4 

2018-June-14 PCDC report-District Sechelt Referral (Greencourt) 

Infrastructure 

The Utilities Division has no infrastructure improvement comments at this time until more 
information is available at the development application stage.  

Requirements of SCRD Water Rates and Regulations Bylaw No. 422 must be complied with, 
particularly the following sections: 

 Rain sensors on irrigation systems (where applicable)

21.3  A rain sensor must be installed as part of any irrigation system regardless of
whether it is a new installation or existing system.

 Toilet and fixture efficiency

8.1  After July 2, 2002, all water closets (toilets) installed in any building supplied by a
Regional District water system shall be of a design that uses no more than 7 litres per
flush, including dual flush technology, without the aid of any add-on or retrofit devices.

8.2  All water closets must comply with CSA standards as per the BC Building Code
(CSA B45.1) and be marked with LC, 6LPF, LC/6 LPF (as stated in the BC Water
Conservation Plumbing Regulation).

In addition to the above requirements, the SCRD expects the use of water conservation 
measures, including high efficiency appliances, xeriscaping and rainwater harvesting for 
irrigation, as described below: 

If irrigation is included: 

 rain water harvesting cistern system to use non-treated water for irrigation is required.

 SCRD’s Drought Management Plan restrictions are respected. The Plan has
specifications on rate of flow and pressure for micro drip irrigation systems, which are
exempt from some restrictions.

If rainwater harvesting is undertaken, deploy: 

 gray water plumbing to make indoor use of gray water possible now or in the future.

 rainwater harvesting cistern of sufficient size that can meet irrigation needs for 60 or more
days without precipitation.

The subject location is within District of Sechelt Development Permit Area 7 where landscaping 
and sustainable design of a development is reviewed through a development permit. The SCRD 
recommends incorporating the above water conservation measures into the landscape design 
for the project, which can include xeriscaping, drip irrigation and rain water harvesting, and 
implementing the design through the development permit process.   

Recreation 

This development is not expected to have a significant impact on current SCRD recreation 
facilities.  However, as more and more developments occur in the future, the SCRD may need 
to consider the capacity of its recreational facilities to accommodate increasing demand. 

137

http://www.scrd.ca/files/File/Infrastructure/Water/2017%20JUN%208%20Drought%20Management%20Plan%20-%20updated.pdf


Staff Report to Planning & Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 
District of Sechelt Referral – OCP and Zoning Bylaw Amendment Application 3360-20 2018-
04 (Greencourt)  

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
2018-June-14 PCDC report-District Sechelt Referral (Greencourt) 

Transit 
 
Sufficient turn-around space for Handy Dart bus pickup near the entrance area of the property 
should be provided.  

CONCLUSION 
The SCRD received a referral from the District of Sechelt regarding an OCP and zoning bylaw 
amendment to facility a new building in the Greencourt Supportive Housing complex. Staff have 
no objection to the density increase proposed in this application, and recommend that the 
District of Sechelt consider the above comments and requirements with respect to solid waste 
management, infrastructure and water conservation in the application process and the 
subsequent development permit process.     
 
The District of Sechelt is awaiting the SCRD referral, therefore the Recommendations should be 
forwarded to the June 14, 2018 Board meeting for consideration.  
 
Attachments 

Attachment A – District of Sechelt referral package 

 

 

Reviewed by: 
Manager X – K. Preston 

X -  A. Allen 
CFO X- T.Perreault 

GM X -   I. Hall  Infrastructure X – S. Walkey 
CAO X -    J. Loveys Solid Waste X -  R.Cooper 
  Transit X-  S. Sears 

 
 

138



REFERRAL FORM

P.O. Box 129, Sechelt, B.C. VON 3A0
Phone: 604-885-1986 Fax: 604-885-7591 www.sechelt.ca

PLEASE RESPOND TO THIS REFERRAL BY JUNE 30, 2018
Please comment on the attached referral for potential effect on your agency’s interest. We would appreciate your response within 30 days. If no
response is received within that time, it will be assumed that your agency’s interests are unatfected.

PURPOSE OF APPLICATION: To allow for the construction of a 104 unit apartment building
as part of the Greencourt complex. To support this, an OCP amendment is required to
increase the maximum allowable density to 175 units per hectare and the height to five
storeys (17 m).
The zoning of the subject properties is a mix of R-4 and CD-26 and is proposed to be
changed to a modified CD-26 that would affect all the subject properties. The modified CD-
26 zone would include what is currently built on the subject properties as well as a 5 storey,
104 unit building that would be replacing the existing single storey residential buildings and
the hall.

The subdivision application is for an adjustment of the lot lines between the boundaries of
the Greencourt complex.

GENERAL LOCATION: Downtown Sechelt - Ocean Avenue & Medusa Street

OTHER INFORMATION: A geotechnical assessment, environmental impact study, and
servicing report were completed by the applicant and are available upon request.
If your agency’s interests are “Unaffected” no further information is necessary. In all other cases, we would appreciate
receiving additional information to substantiate your position and, if necessary, outline any conditions related to your
position. Please note gislation or official government policy which would affect our consideration of this bylaw.

Community Planner
aro omp on

This referral has also been sent to the following agencies:

x District of Sechelt Engineering x Sechelt Volunteer Fire Department
x District of Sechelt Public Works x FortisBC Energy I Energy Services Advisor
x District of Sechelt Parks x Telus
x District of Sechelt Building x B.C. Hydro / BC Transmission Co

Sechelt
DISTRICT of SECHELT

APPLICATION NO: 3360-20 201 8-04 (Greencourt) x OCP
X Zoning

APPLICANT Sunshine Coast Lions Housing APPLICANT’S PD Box 325 x Subdivision
Society ADDRESS Sechelt BC

VON 3A0 0ev. Permit

SITE 5583 Ocean Avenue Date May 14 2018
0ev. VarianceADDRESS 5821 Medusa Avenue

LEGAL Lot 1 Block - OTHER:

District Lot 303 Plan EPP12200
LEGAL Lot A Block 11

District Lot 303 Plan PMP48362
LEGAL Lot 1 Block -

District Lot 303 Plan EPS4O8
Zoning Existing R-4 & Proposed Modified CD-26

CD-26
OCP Designation Existing Multifamily! Proposed Unchanged

Mixed
Residential

Attachment A

139



A

x SC Regional District x Coast Cable -Eastlink

x Sechelt Indian Government x Canada Post

x Vancouver Coastal Health Authority x School District #46

x Ministry of Transportation & Infrastructure x APC

Agriculture Land Commission Accessibility Advisory Committee

Archaeology Branch of SIB & BC x Council — for information
Transportation Choices Sunshine Coast

Community Associations
East Porpoise Bay x Downtown Village West Sechelt Tuwanek
Selma Park/Davis
Bay/Wilson Creek Sandy Hook SHORA S.D.B.A.
Chamber of
Commerce

140



321

242526

L

2

1

I

H

1

A

3

1

2

3

2165432M

9

10 18

15161711121314
1517

16

N

14

±
0 10 20 30 40 50 605

Meters

_̂

_̂
_̂

Location Plan

5583 Ocean Avenue

5583 Ocean Avenue

5821 Medusa Avenue

Greencourt - Official Community Plan Amendment, 
Rezoning and Subdivision

Medusa Street

141



5583 OCEAN AVENUE, SECHELT, BCREZONING APPLICATION
SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY
9 MAY, 2018 

142



TABLE OF CONTENT

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 1

REZONING APPLICATION 5583 OCEAN AVENUE 
SECHELT, BC

PROJECT INTRODUCTION 3

LOCATION PLAN 4

REZONING RATIONALE 5

COMMUNITY BENEFITS 6

CONTEXT PHOTOS 7

SITE PLANS 10 

PROPOSED MASSING 11

ZONING SUMMARY 12

PROJECT STATISTICS 13

SHADOW STUDIES 14

PLANS 15

SITE SURVEY 15 

ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS 16 

SUNSHINE COAST LIONS 
HOUSING SOCIETY

270 - 601 WEST CORDOVA STREET
V A N C O U V E R ,  B C  V 6 B  1 G 1
6 0 4 . 6 8 3 . 1 0 2 4
w w w. v i a - a r c h i t e c t u r e . c o m

143



PROJECT INTRODUCTION

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 3

Greenecourt is a non-profit affordable housing complex that currently provides 140 rental apartments for seniors and persons with disabilities. In 2012, the Sunshine 
Coast Lions Housing Society completed the first phase of the redevelopment by building the 65-unit Jack Nelson building. The second phase proposal is to replace 
the remaining 29 oldest units with 104 high quality modern rental apartments.  This would increase the stock of affordable rental apartments for low and moderate-

income residents in the complex to a total of 215 units without expanding Greenecourt’s site area. 

EXISTING GREENECOURT HOUSING COMPLEX, BLOCK B

144



 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 4

LOCATION PLAN

The Greenecourt Housing Complex is located in the 
Downtown Sechelt Village, within the area designated for 

Medium-Density Apartment Residential by the District of 
Sechelt Zoning Bylaw. The site faces Hackett Park across 

Ocean Avenue to the east, and is within walking distance of 
the Downtown Centre and its shopping and business areas.

DOLPHIN ST

MEDUSA ST

SPINDRIFT ST
SHERLOCK LN

SEAHORSE LN

O
C

EA
N

 A
V

E

TR
A

IL
 A

V
E

IN
LE

T 
AV

ESTARFISH LN

MERMAID ST

SEINER LN

COWRIE ST

SH
O

RN
C

LI
FF

E 
AV

E

O
C

EA
N

 A
V

E

MEDUSA ST

EXISTING
BLOCKS B & C

EXISTING
JACK NELSON 

BUILDING

EXISTING
HALL

EXISTING
BLOCKS D & E

GREENECOURT 
HOUSING COMPLEX

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

LEGEND

ADDITIONAL SUBDIVISION (PROPOSED)
PROPOSED SUBJECT BUILDING SITE EXTENTS

Hackett Park

Capilano University
Sechelt Seniors 
Activity Centre

Sechelt Municipal Hall

Sechelt Farmers’ and 
Artisans’ Market

Public Library
Sechelt Aquatic Center

Sechelt Elementary

Ecole du Pacifique
Sechelt Fire Department

Commercial Area

LOCATION

5583 Ocean Avenue, Sechelt, BC
Lot 1 Plan EPP12200;
Lot A, Block 11, Plan LMP48362;
All of District Lot 303, Group 1, New Westminster District

145



REZONING RATIONALE

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 5

• The proposal is to revise the current CD-26 and R-4 zonings to allow for 
increased density by creating a single comprehensive district incorporating all 
three sites;

• As part of the revised CD-26 zoning, a Subdivision application will also be 
completed to relocate land from the neighbouring Block D & E, the existing 
R-4 zoned site, to the existing Block B & C, the CD-26 zoned site;

• The project replaces the 29 existing seniors housing rental units in Blocks 
B & C of the Greenecourt Housing Complex, and adds an additional 75 
affordable seniors housing rental units.

The proposed project meets the requirements detailed in the CD-26 Zoning 
Bylaw with requests for the following variances:

1. Density increase of 0.90 FAR to a total of 1.69 FAR for the existing CD-
26 sites. This density increase will support the amount of affordable 
seniors housing rental units the project can provide.

2. Relaxation on Section 10ZCD26.03, Permitted Uses, which specifies that 
multi-family housing units on the site are not to exceed 102 apartment 
units. The project is seeking a variance that will allow for 75 additional 
affordable seniors housing rental units to be added on the site, bringing 
tthe proposed units to 169 including the existing Jack Nelson building and 
29 existing Block B&C units.  The relaxation will also include the addition 
of the existing 46 units in Block D&E currently zoned as R-4, for a total 
number of 215 units. This request is to rezone the entire Lions complex to 
allow 215 units.

3. Relaxation on Section 10ZCD26.06, Siting of Buildings and Other 
Structures, to reduce the minimum front setback from 7.5 metres to 6 
metres. This will allow for new building’s front setback to be aligned with 
the adjacent building’s setback along Medusa Street (Block E).    

4. Relaxation on Section 10ZCD26.07, Height of Buildings, in order to 
support the targeted increase in density. The project is seeking a revision 
of the maximum permitted height from 13 metres to 17.5 meters (to the 
top of flat roof) allowing for the construction of a 5-storey building. 

5. The new lot subdivision impacts the density of the R-4 parcel, on which 
Blocks D and E are located, adjacent to the subject building site. It is 
proposed that the R-4 parcel be incorporated into the CD-26 parcel, 
under the revised CD-26 zoning. 

With the new lot subdivision proposed as part of this rezoning application,  
the subject building site includes two existing zones: CD-26 (Comprehensive 
Development Zone 26) and R-4 (Residential 4 Zone).  

As specified by the District of Sechelt Zoning Bylaw No. 25, the intent of zone 
CD-26 is to provide for a 102 independent and supportive living residential 
units consisting of a mix of bachelor units, one bedroom units and two bedroom 
units and accessory amenity spaces such as a commercial kitchen, offices, 
laundry, assembly areas and indoor and outdoor amenity spaces.

The CD-26 zone currently includes the 65 units in the 4-storey Jack Nelson 
building, as well as the 29 units in Blocks B & C of the Greenecourt Housing 
Complex, both 1-storey buildings, for a total of 94 housing units.

A small portion of the subject building site is zoned as R-4, which allows for 
the following uses: multiple family dwelling, home occupations and accessory 
buildings. That portion of the site currently includes the Lions Hall, a 1-storey 
accessory building. 

CURRENT ZONING BYLAW REZONING OBJECTIVES PROPOSED VARIANCE

CURRENT ZONING MAP

OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN

Civic, Institutional, Utilities

Downtown Centre

Multifamily / Mixed Residential

Parks and Open Space

Residential

Special Infill Area

Village Infill Areas

Greenecourt Complex

Subject Building Site

LEGEND

k

@ _M

@

@ _M

@

@ _M

@

@

_M

@

@ _M

@

N0. 6

No. 5

No. 5

No. 3
No. 3

No. 3

No. 3

No. 4

No. 2
No. 2

No. 2
No. 2

Her itage Rd

Sunshine
C

oast
Hwy

S un shi ne Co as t Hwy

Orac le Rd

N
ic

k
er

so
n

R
d

Norw est Bay R d

Nor west B ay  Rd

E
m

e
rs

on
 R

d

S
e che lt In le t Rd

W
h

a rfA
ve

Ga le  Av e N

M
a

so
n

R
d

M
a

s
o

n 
R

d

B
a

i ll
i e

R
d

Tra il A
ve

W
a kef ie ld

R
d

C
ro

w
st

o
n

R
d

COOK CR EEK

W
OOD

C RE EK

SE
CH

E L
T

MA
R S

H

CAR ROL BROOK

AN GUS CREEK

CAIRNS/

PATTE RS ON CREEK

WAKEFIELD CREEK

Plot Date: 05/30/2016

Future Land U
se

¤0 0.5 10.25
Kilometres

Official Community Plan
Bylaw No. 492, 2010

C1
Schedule

Legend

@ _M

@

k

Marine Access
Resort Potential

Urban Containment Boundary

Special Infill Area

Agriculture
Business/Industry
Civic, Institutional, Utilities
Downtown Centre

Low Density Residential
Multifamily/Mixed Residential
Parks and Open Space
Residential
Resource Lands
Rural Residential
Shoreline Conservation Recreation

Tourist Commercial
Transition Commercial

Village Infill Areas
Working Waterfront

Future Park (conceptual location only)

Future Neighbourhood Centre (conceptual location only)

LEGEND

Greenecourt Complex Subject Building Site

C-1

C-1

C-2

C-2
C-2

C-2

C-2

C-2

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-4

C-4

C-4

C-5
C-5A

C-6

C-7

CD-1

CD-10
CD-18

CD-2

CD-21

CD-26

CD-29

CD-4

CD-5

CD-6

I-1
I-2

I-2

I-3

I-3

I-3

I-3

I-4

I-5

I-5

I-6

I-7

M-1

M-4

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1
PA-1

PA-1 PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1
PA-1 PA-1

PA-1
PA-1

PA-1
PA-1PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1PA-1

PA-2

PA-2

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1R-1

R-1 R-1R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1R-1R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1R-1

R-1 R-1

R-1R-1R-1 R-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1 R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1A

R-1B

R-2

R-2

R-2

R-3
R-3

R-3R-3

R-3
R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3 R-3

R-3
R-3

R-3

R-3R-3

R-3

R-3
R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3
R-3

R-3

R-3
R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3
R-3

R-3

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4A

R-4B

R-5

R-5

R-5

R-5

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1
RR-1 RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1
RR-1

RR-1

RR-1
RR-1

RR-1 RR-1

RR-1RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1 RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2
RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

RR-2

C-5

PA-1

R-7

R-3 R-3R-4

R-1

R-1

PA-1

CD-12

RR-2

R-1

PA-1 CD-7 CD-20
R-1

RR-1

M-1

R-4

PA-1

M-1

M-3

R-3

I-1

RR-1

RR-1

W-1

PA-1

M-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1 PA-1

R-1

W-1

R-1
RR-1

R-1
W-1

<Null>

R-1

R-4

C-4

W-1

RR-1

R-1A

R-4

CD-35

CD-30

PA-1

R-1

RR-1

RR-1

RR-2

PA-1

CD-31

M-3A

R-1

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-1

R-1

R-1
R-3

W-1

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

RR-1

RR-2

C-2

R-1

PA-1

RR-2

PA-1

R-3

CD-13

R-1

I-5

W-1

R-3

R-1

R-1

RR-1

RR-1

PA-1

I-3
M-1

R-1

W-1

W-1

R-1

CD-27

PA-1

C-4

W-1

Heritage Rd

Sunshine Coast Hwy

Yew Rd

Teredo St

Re
ef 

Rd

Tyler Rd

Homestead

Av
e

Selma Park Rd

Ripple Way

Oc
ea

n A
ve

Snodgrass Rd

Sandy Hook Rd

Cr
ow

sto
n R

d

Ebbtide St

Wilson Rd

Burnett Rd

Gun Club Rd

Cowrie St

Davis Bay Rd

Medusa St

Pa
rkw

ay
Dr

Sunshine Coast Hwy

Cowrie St

St
oc

kw
ell

 R
d

Jasper Rd

Em
er

so
n 

Rd

Windward Lane

Segador Rd

Mc
Co

ur
t R

d

Oracle Rd

Hilltop
Rd

To
we

r R
d

Bligh Rd

Kevins Rd

Pa
ge

 R
d

Redrooffs Rd

Laurel Ave

Shoal Way

Dolphin St

Ni
ck

er
so

n R
d

Ea
gle

cre
st 

Rd

Anchor Rd

Sa
nd

pip
er 

Rd

Acorn Rd

Norwest Bay Rd

Havies Rd

Carmel Pl

Le
wa

rn
e R

d

Starfish Lane

Mermaid St

Norwest Bay Rd

Em
er

so
n 

Rd

Geer Rd

Reeves Rd

Porpoise
Dr

Wigard Rd

Be
ac

hg
ate

La
ne

Naylor Rd

Uplands Rd

Poise Island Dr

Mika Rd

Golfcourse Rd

Cl
iff

sid
e R

d

Cope Rd

Un
na

me
d R

d

Deerhorn Dr

Jackson FS Rd

Nestman Rd

Allen Rd

Sa
rg

ea
nt

Rd

Selma Park Rd

Barnacle St

Shale Rd

Dusty Rd

Unnamed

Reeves Rd

Fi e
l d

Rd

Pebble Cres

Spindrift St

Bay Rd

Dale Rd

Picadilly Pl

Browning Rd

Sechelt Inlet Crescent

Tillicum Bay Rd

Fairway Ave

Wharf Ave

Gale Ave N

Ma
so

nR
d

Ma
so

n R
d

Ba
illi

e
Rd

Trail Ave

Su
rf

Ci
r

Wa
ke

fie
ld 

Rd

Ri
mr

oc
k R

d

Ja
ck

 R
d

Marine Way

Skookumchuk Rd

Bl
ow

er
 R

d

Sh
or

nc
liff

e A
ve

Coracle

Dr

Fie
ld

Rd

Fie
ld 

Rd

Chapman Rd

Ra
dc

liff
e R

d

Lig
hth

ou
se

 A
ve

Norvan Rd

Lookout Ave

De
rb

yR
d

Mi
ss

ion
 R

d

Samron Rd

Harbour Way

Gr
an

ite
 R

d

Wh
ita

ke
rR

d

Gale Ave S

Cascade Cres

Cr
ow

sto
nR

d

Marmot Rd

Yacht Rd

Ed
wa

rd
 R

d

Turnstone Cre s

Gennis Way

Ha
ze

lnu
t L

an
e

Todd
Rd

Arb ut us
Rd

Bluegrouse Dr

Mc
Cu

llo
ug

h R
d

San dyhook
Trail

Re
se

rv
oir

 R
d

Ty
so

n R
d

Go
wl

an
d 

Rd

Sk
yla

rk
Rd

Seawatch Lane

Eagleview Rd

Airport Lane

Se
ch

elt
 In

let
 Rd

Sechelt Inlet Rd

Inl
et 

Av
e

Sa
lmon

Dr

Rockland Wynd

Tamarack Pl

Silverstone Lane

Teredo St

Oc
ea

n A
ve

Lamprey

L ane

Ebbtide St

Cowrie St

Medusa St

Windward Lane

Ca
md

en
 R

oa
d

E Porpoise Bay Rd

Dolphin St

Anchor Rd

Spray St

Seahorse Lane

Sherlock
Lane

Pe
riw

ink
le

La
ne

Starfish Lane

Mermaid St

Teredo Lane

Boulevard

Osprey St

Seiner Lane

Neptune Rd

Re
ef 

Rd

Barnacle St

Sunshine Coast Hwy

Pebble Cres

Spindrift St

W
harf Ave

Tu
rns

ton

e Drv

Trail Ave

Tr
ide

nt 
Av

eSu
rf

Ci
r

Marine Way

Sh
or

nc
liff

e A
ve

Gr
ee

n
Cr

t

Block 7
Lane

Bi
nn

ac
le 

Av
e

Turnstone Cres

Gennis Way

Inl
et 

Av
e

Sa
lmon

Dr

C-2
C-2

C-2 C-2

C-2C-2C-2

C-2
C-2 C-2

C-2 C-2
C-2

C-2

C-2

C-2

C-2 C-2
C-2

C-2

C-2
C-2

C-2

C-3

C-3

C-3

C-4

C-4

C-4

C-4

C-4

C-4

C-4

C-5

C-5

C-5

C-5A

C-5A

C-7

CD-10

CD-18
CD-21

CD-26
CD-29

M-1

M-4

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1PA-1
PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-1PA-1

PA-1

PA-1

PA-2

PA-2

R-1
R-1 R-1R-1

R-1 R-1R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1R-1

R-1R-1 R-1

R-1R-1R-1

R-1R-1R-1R-1
R-1R-1

R-1

R-1R-1
R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1R-1R-1

R-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1

R-2

R-2
R-2

R-2
R-2

R-2

R-2

R-2

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4A

R-4B

C-5

C-3

C-3

PA-1

PA-1
M-1

R-4

M-1

PA-1

M-1

R-1

R-4

R-1

W-1

W-1

R-2

RR-1

R-1A

CD-30

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1R-1

W-1

C-2

R-1 R-1

R-1

R-4

RR-1

RR-1

PA-1
PA-1

W-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

Village Inset 1:5,000

¤

¤0 1,300 2,600650
Metres

District of Sechelt
Zoning Bylaw 25, 1987

Map

1:13,000 Plot Date: 10/05/2016

NOTE: Alway confirm zoning with the
District of Sechelt Planning Department

ZONING BOUNDARIES AND PROPERTY LINES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATION ONLY. 
The District of Sechelt makes no representation or warranty 
expressed or implied, in fact or in law, with respect to the accuracy,
completeness or appropriateness of the data contained or referenced herein.

ZONING DESIGNATIONS
R-1B

R-2

R-3

R-4

R-4A

R-4B

Mobile Home Park (R-5)

R-7

Rural (RR-1)

Rural (RR-2)

Water (W-1)

C-1

C-2

C-3

C-4

C-5

C-5A

C-6

C-7

Comprehensive Development

I-1

I-2

I-3

I-4

I-5

I-6

I-7

M-1; M-3; M-4

M-3A

Public Assembly (PA-1)

Public Assembly (PA-2)

R-1

R-1A

146



 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 6

COMMUNITY BENEFITS

The Local Government Act allows municipalities to permit additional density (density bonus) in 
their zoning bylaws. In exchange for certain types of amenities, Sechelt’s OCP encourages density 
lifts, in support of creating a more compact and well-designed community. The proposed 
Greenecourt redevelopment provides amenities that justify an increased density, such as:

• Housing close to Sechelt Village Commercial and Civic Centre and public transit;

• 75 additional affordable senior housing units;

• A new Lions Hall incorporated within the proposed building;

• Improvements to the pedestrian realm and enhanced streetscape;

• A slight increase in the area of open green space on the site.

Support development of a full range of housing types to ensure 
people of all ages and income levels have housing choices, 
including families, singles, seniors and those with special needs.

• The proposed development is a purpose-built seniors affordable
rental housing building providing studios and one-bedrooms, including
adaptable and accessible units.

Incorporate adaptable design features into new housing to 
accommodate people of all ages and abilities and support 
aging in place.

• Adaptability and accessibility are very important aspects in this
proposal which understands that aging in place is a core value of
seniors housing.

Create more compact residential areas through innovative site 
planning.

• The proposed development is utilizing an existing building site close to
Downtown Sechelt to promote compact development.

Create walkable neighbourhoods that are linked by a variety of 
transportation modes, with more sidewalks, bicycle routes and 
transit.

• The site is a couple of blocks from shops, restaurants and Sechelt community
amenities.

• The proposed development incorporates bike and scooter storage to assist
with mobility.

SECHELT COMMUNITY VISION: RESIDENTIAL LAND USE OBJECTIVES

DENSITY BONUS INCENTIVES

MATERIALITY + CHARACTER PRECEDENT

ACCESSIBLE DESIGN PRECEDENT
KIWANIS GARDEN VILLAGE  |  VIA ARCHITECTURE

KIWANIS GARDEN VILLAGE | VIA ARCHITECTURE

147



CONTEXT PHOTOS

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 7

DENSITY BONUS INCENTIVES

BLOCK B  
LOOKING WEST FROM OCEAN AVENUE

BLOCK C  
LOOKING WEST FROM OCEAN AVENUE

BLOCK C
LOOKING SOUTH FROM MEDUSA STREET

AREA BETWEEN BLOCKS B & C
LOOKING EAST

LANE BETWEEN BLOCK B & JACK NELSON BUILDING
LOOKING EAST

148



 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 8

CONTEXT PHOTOS

JACK NELSON BUILDING & BLOCK B
LOOKING WEST FROM HACKETT PARK

PROJECT SITE
LOOKING NORTHWEST ALONG OCEAN AVENUE

PROJECT SITE
LOOKING SOUTHWEST FROM OCEAN AVENUE & MEDUSA STREET 

PROJECT SITE
LOOKING SOUTHEAST FROM MEDUSA STREET 

LIONS HALL, BLOCKS D & E
LOOKING SOUTH FROM MEDUSA STREET

149



CONTEXT PHOTOS

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 9

EXISTING STREETSCAPE COLLAGE  |  NORTH SIDE OF SITE ALONG MEDUSA STREET

EXISTING STREETSCAPE COLLAGE  |  NORTH SIDE OF SITE ALONG OCEAN AVENUE

150



 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 10

SITE PLANS

FIRE LANE

JACK NELSON BUILDING
(EXISTING) 

BLOCK D
(EXISTING)

BLOCK E
(EXISTING)

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE

MEDUSA STREET

O
C

E
A

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

DUMPSTER
EXG. GARBAGE 

ENCLOSURE

PAD-MOUNTED 
TRANSFORMER

BLOCK B
(TO BE REMOVED) 

BLOCK C
(TO BE REMOVED) 

HALL
(TO BE 

REMOVED)

4 VISITOR 
STALLS

SHELTER

CONCRETE WALL

EASEMENT

HYDRANT

0 5m 10m 25m

1:500

EXISTING SITE PLAN

12.55 m

DN 12.5%

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
G

A
R

B
A

G
E

/ 
R

E
C

YC
LI

N
G

PROPOSED BUILDING 
FOOTPRINT

PARKADE
ACCESS

ENTRANCE

ENTRANCE

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE

S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E

SETBACK LINE

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

LOADING

O
C

E
A

N
A

V
E

N
U

E

GREEN SPACE

2 DROP OFF STALLS
(NOT IN PARKING COUNT)

SCOOTER 
PARKING

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

FIRE LANE

PAD-MOUNTED 
TRANSFORMER

7 
V

IS
IT

O
R

 S
TA

LL
S

JACK NELSON BUILDING
(EXISTING) 

BLOCK D
(EXISTING)

BLOCK E
(EXISTING)

MEDUSA STREETHYDRANT

LINE OF PARKING BELOW

ENTRANCE

0 5m 10m 25m

1:500

10
4'

 - 
5"

31
.8

3 
m

80' - 1 1/4"

24.41 m

SUBDIVISION FROM 
EXISTING BLOCK 

D& E R-4  SITE

1:750PROPOSED SITE PLAN

12.55 m

DN 12.5%

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
G

A
R

B
A

G
E

/
R

E
C

YC
LI

N
G

PROPOSED BUILDING
FOOTPRINT

PARKADE
ACCESS

ENTRANCE

ENTRANCE

ENTRANCE

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE

S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E

SETBACK LINE

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

LOADING

O
C

E
A

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

GREEN SPACE

2 DROP OFF STALLS
(NOT IN PARKING COUNT)

SCOOTER 
PARKING

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

FIRE LANE
PAD-MOUNTED 

TRANSFORMER

7 
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
TA

LL
S

0 5m 10m 25m

1:500

JACK NELSON BUILDING
(EXISTING)

BLOCK D
(EXISTING)

BLOCK E
(EXISTING)

MEDUSA STREETHYDRANT

1:750

151



PROPOSED MASSING

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 11

PROPOSED MASSING: LOOKING WEST FROM HACKETT PARK

PROPOSED MASSING: LOOKING NORTHWEST ALONG OCEAN AVENUE PROPOSED MASSING: LOOKING SOUTHWEST FROM OCEAN AVENUE & MEDUSA STREET 

152



 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 12

ZONING SUMMARY
REFERENCE ZONING SUMMARY COMPLIANCE NOTES

CURRENT ZONE : CD‐26 ‐ COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT BLOCKS B AND C, JACK NELSON BUILDING
TARGET ZONE : REVISED CD‐26 ‐ COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT BLOCKS B AND C, JACK NELSON BUILDING, HALL

10ZCD26.02 Intent
To provide independent and supportive living residential units consisting of a mix of bachelor units, one bedroom units and two 
bedroom units and accessory amenity spaces such as commercial kitchen, offices, laundry, assembly areas and indoor and outdoor 
amenity spaces.

yes

10ZCD26.03 Permitted Uses Residential, limited to: Multi‐family housing units. yes

10ZCD26.04 (2) Site Density
Maximum 102 permitted apartment dwellings (this density is allowed provided the conditions from the Housing Agreement pursuant 
to Section 905 of the Local Government Act are met).

yes* Density increase being sought to allow for a maximum of 215 permitted apartment dwellings, including Blocks D and E.

10ZCD26.05 (1)(2) Site Coverage
Buildings and structures shall not cover more than 45% of the total site area; vehicle driveways and surface parking shall not cover 
more than 21% of the total site area, and the open space area shall be a minimum of 2,110 square meters.

yes*
The proposed redevelopment brings the site coverage to 39.5% for buildings and structures, and 25.9% for driveways and surface parking. 
The total area of open space is 2,358 sq. metres. The excess in the percentage of driveways and surface parking area is compensated by a 
lower percentage in the adjacent lot; the total percentage of driveways and surface parking area for the overall complex is 16.4%.

10ZCD26.06 (3)
Siting of Buildings 

and Other Structures

The maximum setbacks are 7.5 metres from the front and rear lot lines, 6 metres from a side lot line, and 3 metres from a side lot 
line where the side lot line abuts a street (these setbacks are indicated on the plan titled "Site Plan" and numbered A102 prepared by 
KMBR Architects Planners Inc. and dated November 10, 2008). 

yes*
A reduction of the front setback from 7.5 meters to 6 meters is being sought, in order to align the new building's front setback with the 
adjacent building's setback along Medusa Street (Block E). 

10ZCD26.07 (4) Height of Buildings No building shall exceed 13 metres in height. yes* Increase to a maximum height of 17.5 m (top of flat roof) being sought. 

10ZCD26.08 (3)
Off‐Street Parking & 

Loading
Off‐street parking shall include a minimum of 22 designated resident and/or visitor parking spaces, 4 designated staff parking spaces, 
and accommodation for scooter parking spaces.

yes*
The proposed redevelopment provides sufficient parking spaces to meet a 1 per 4 dwelling units ratio, which is the ratio specified for senior 
citizen housing under Article 1102 of the District of Sechelt Zoning Bylaw No. 25, 1987.

CURRENT ZONE : R‐4 ‐ RESIDENTIAL 4 ZONE BLOCKS D AND E, HALL
TARGET ZONE : REVISED CD‐26 ‐ COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT BLOCKS D AND E

527 Permitted Uses Multiple family dwelling; home occupations; accessory buildings (subject to regulations in Section 305 of this Bylaw). yes

528 Lot Area and Width Minimum lot area of 1,000 sq. metres, and minimum width of 25 metres. yes

529 Density
Maximum 1 dwelling unit per each 120 sq. metres of lot area (this density is allowed provided the conditions from the Housing
Agreement pursuant to Section 905 of the Local Government Act are met)

yes* Density increase being sought to allow for a maximum of 215 permitted apartment dwellings, including Blocks B, C and Jack Nelson Building

530 Lot Coverage Buildings, parking area and driveways shall not cover more than 75% percent of the lot area. yes The proposed lot coverage is 33.0%. 

531
Siting of Buildings 
and Structures

The maximum setbacks are 7.5 metres from the front and rear lot lines, and 6 metres from a side lot line for apartments.  yes The new proposed lot lines are compliant with the required setbacks for the existing buildings.

532 Height of Building No building shall exceed 10.5 metres in height; no accessory building shall exceed 6 metres in height. yes No change is made to the height of the existing buildings.

533 / 1102 (1) Off‐Street Parking For senior citizen housing and rest home: minimum 1 parking space per 4 dwelling units. yes*
The required parking spaces are provided on the adjacent lots, included in the Greenecourt complex: 215 units in total for the overall 
complex require a minimum of 54 parking spaces, and the proposed redevelopment provides 70 parking spaces.

1102 (6)
Off‐Street Parking: 

Design 
Requirements

Where all required parking spaces cannot be provided on the same parcel, the excess spaces may be provided on a separate parcel or
portion thereof, if they are thusly: (i) within 100 metres of the main parcel, (ii) in the same zone as a parcel for which the parking is 
required, or in a zone where parking is a permitted use, and (iii) in accordance with the zoning regulations.

yes

GENERAL REGULATIONS

305
Accessory Buildings 

and Structures
Accessory buildings and structures shall be permitted provided that their combined gross floor area shall not exceed 150 sq. metres 
(for a lot size between 3500 sq. metres and 1.2 hectares).

yes The proposed accessory building has a gross floor area of 85.8 sq. metres.

311 (1) Siting Exceptions
Where chimneys, gutters, or eaves, project beyond the face of the building, the minimum distance to an abuting lot line as permitted 
eslewhere in this Bylaw may be reduced by not more than 700 mm provided that such reduction shall only apply to the projected 
feature.

yes Final form of projections to be determined.

314 Height Exceptions
[...] elevators and ventilation machinery [...] shall not be subject to the height requirements of this Bylaw provided that such 
structures occupy no more than 10% of the surface of the parcel, or if situated on a building, not more than 15% of the roof area of 
the principal building.

yes The elevators and ventilation machinery for the new proposed building is excluded from the height calculation.

DEFINITIONS

FLOOR AREA

HEIGHT

LOT COVERAGE

HEIGHT means the distance measured vertically along the projected line of the face of the building from the grade to the highest point of the roof surface of a flat roof, to the mean level between the eaves and ridge of a gable, hip, or other sloping roof, and in the case of a structure without a roof, to the highest point 
of the structure.

LOT COVERAGE means the percentage of the total horizontal area of a lot that may be built upon including accessory buildings and other structures (carports, covered patios, verandahs and decks over 0.6 meters in height); and excluding eaves to a maximum of 0.6 meters, open courtyards, patios, driveways and 
parking stalls.

FLOOR AREA means the total floor area of all floors in a building measured to the extreme outer limits of the building including all areas giving access thereto such as corridors, hallways, landings, foyers, staircases, stairwells, enclosed balconies and mezzanines, enclosed porches or verandas and excluding auxiliary 
parking, unenclosed swimming pools, balconies or sundecks, elevators or ventilating machinery and building features referred to in Section 311 of this Bylaw.

153



PROJECT STATISTICS

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 13

SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY ‐ Greenecourt 2 OPTION 3

Address:  5583 Ocean Avenue, Sechelt, BC
Existing Area (sm) Change (sm) Proposed Area (sm) Notes

Parcel 1 Plan EPP12200 3,266 777 4,043 Blocks B and C
Parcel A Plan LMP48362 6,297 ‐777 5,520 Blocks D and E
Strata Plan EPS408 2,770 0 2,770 Jack Nelson Bldg
Overall Complex Total 12,333 0 12,333

Subject Building Site
Portion of Parcel A Plan LMP48362 777 Existing Hall
Parcel 1 Plan EPP12200 3,266 Blocks B and C
Gross Subject Building Site Area: 4,043

PARCELS ZONING
Parcels: Blocks B and C, Jack Nelson Bldg Blocks B and C, Jack Nelson Bldg, Hall
Zoning Classification: Current Zoning: CD‐26 Target Zoning: Revised CD‐26

Density Allowable Existing Target Allowable Proposed
Total area (sm) : 6,036 6,813
Total number of units:  102 units 94 units 169 units 169 units

Jack Nelson Building 65 units 65 units
Blocks B and C / Greenecourt 2 29 units 104 units

Units/Area Ratio Max. 169 unit per ha 155 unit / ha Max. 249 unit per ha 249 unit / ha
FAR: 0.90 1.69

Lot Coverage Allowable Existing Target Allowable Proposed
Area (sm) % Area (sm) %

Buildings Max. 45% 2,267 37.6% Max. 45% 2,692 39.5%
Driveways & Surface Parking Max. 21% 953 15.8% Max. 21% 1,763 25.9%
Open Space Min. 2,110 sm 2,816 46.7% Min. 2,110 sm 2,358 34.6%

Height Limit Allowable Target Allowable
Max. 13 m Max. 17 m

Parcels: Blocks D and E, Hall Blocks D and E
Zoning Classification: Current Zoning: R‐4 Target Zoning: Revised CD‐26

Density Allowable Existing Target Allowable Proposed
Total area (sm) : 6,297 5,520
Total number of units:  46 units 46 units
Units/Area Ratio Max. 1 unit per 120 sm 1 unit / 136.9 sm Max. 1 unit per 120 sm 1 unit / 120 sm

Lot Coverage Allowable Existing Target Allowable Proposed
Area (sm) % Area (sm) %

Max. 75% 3,082 49.0% Max. 75% 1,823 33.0%

OVERALL COMPLEX ZONING
Density Existing Proposed
Total area (sm) : 12,333 12,333
Total number of units:  140 units 215 units
Units/Area Ratio 114 unit / ha 175 unit / ha

Lot Coverage Existing Proposed
Area (sm) % Area (sm) %

Buildings 4,136 33.5% 4,260 34.5%
Driveways & Surface Parking 2,166 17.6% 2,017 16.4%
Open Space 6,030 48.9% 6,055 49.1%

SITE INFORMATION

08/05/2018

PARKING
Parcels: Blocks B and C, Jack Nelson Bldg
Zoning Classification: Current Zoning: CD‐26 Target Zoning: Revised CD‐26
Required Parking:  Minimum 26 parking stalls 1 per 4 dwelling units
Total unit count: 94 units 169 units

Required Existing Target Required Removed/Added Final Count
Jack Nelson 22
Greenecourt 2 / Surface Parking  ‐   + 7
Greenecourt 2 / Below‐grade Parking  ‐  + 41

Subtotal 26 22 42.3  + 48 70
Parcels: Blocks D and E, Hall
Zoning Classification: Current Zoning: R‐4 Target Zoning: Revised R‐4
Required Parking: 1 per 4 dwelling units 1 per 4 dwelling units
Total unit count: 46 units 46 units

Required Existing Target Required Removed / Added Final Count
Hall 9  ‐ 9
Block D 23  ‐ 23
Block E  ‐ 

Subtotal 12 32 11.50  ‐ 32 0

OVERALL COMPLEX PARKING
Zoning Classification: Current Zoning: CD‐26 / R‐4 Target Zoning: Revised CD‐26
Required Parking: Varies 1 per 4 dwelling units
Residential units count: 140 units 215 units

Required Existing Target Required Removed / Added Final Count
TOTAL 38 54 54  + 16 70
Parking Breakdown

Residential Parking ‐ Parkade & Jack Nelson Surface 59
Staff Parking ‐ Below Grade 4
Visitors ‐ Surface 7

LOADING
Off‐Street Loading (3m x 7.6m x 4.2m) ‐ Surface 1

BICYCLES OR SCOOTERS
Bicycle & Scooter Room ‐ Parkade 30
Bicycle & Scooter Parking ‐ Support Pavilion 10

TOTAL PROVIDED 40

SUBJECT BUILDING SITE STATISTICS
Parcel 1 Plan EPP12200 + Portion of Parcel A Plan LMP48362
Blocks B and C, Hall

FAR: 1.76
Lot Coverage: 35%

(sm) (sf)
Gross Floor Area (sm) : 7,124 76,681
Gross Amenity Hall Area (sm) : 237 2,553
Gross Underground Parking Area* (sm) : 1,707 18,379 *Not included in the FAR calculation

Gross Residential Area (sm) : 6,887 74,128
Net Residential Area (sm) : 5,416 58,292

Efficiency (net res. area/gross res. area) 79%
Efficiency (net res. area/gross floor area) 76%

Number of Storeys: 5
104

Blocks D and E

Blocks B and C, Jack Nelson Bldg, Hall

Number of Units

08/05/2018

154



 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 14

SHADOW STUDIES

MARCH 21 | SPRING EQUINOX
SEPTEMBER 21 | AUTUMN EQUINOX

9 AM

MEDUSA ST

O
C

EA
N

 A
V

E

12 PM

5 PM

MEDUSA ST
O

C
EA

N
 A

V
E

MEDUSA ST

O
C

EA
N

 A
V

E

JUNE 21 | SUMMER SOLSTICE

5 PM

12 PM

9 AM

MEDUSA ST

O
C

EA
N

 A
V

E

MEDUSA ST

O
C

EA
N

 A
V

E

MEDUSA ST

O
C

EA
N

 A
V

E

Note: 4:11 pm 
is sunset time

DECEMBER 21 | WINTER SOLSTICE

9 AM

12 PM

MEDUSA ST

O
C

EA
N

 A
V

E

MEDUSA ST

O
C

EA
N

 A
V

E

MEDUSA ST

O
C

EA
N

 A
V

E

4:11 PM

155



SITE SURVEY

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 15

156



 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 16

ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS

EXISTING SITE PLAN

FIRE LANE

JACK NELSON BUILDING
(EXISTING) 

BLOCK D
(EXISTING)

BLOCK E
(EXISTING)

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE

MEDUSA STREET

O
C

E
A

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

DUMPSTER
EXG. GARBAGE 

ENCLOSURE

PAD-MOUNTED 
TRANSFORMER

BLOCK B
(TO BE REMOVED) 

BLOCK C
(TO BE REMOVED) 

HALL
(TO BE 

REMOVED)

4 VISITOR 
STALLS

SHELTER

CONCRETE WALL

EASEMENT

HYDRANT

0 5m 10m 25m

1:500

VIA Architecture
270 - 601 W. Cordova Street
Vancouver, BC V6B 1G1

April 13, 2018Sunshine Coast Lions Housing Society 85917

Site Plan - Existing Schematic Design

SD 00-B157



ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 17

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

12.55 m

DN 12.5%

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
G

A
R

B
A

G
E

/ 
R

E
C

YC
LI

N
G

PROPOSED BUILDING 
FOOTPRINT

PARKADE
ACCESS

ENTRANCE

ENTRANCE

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PROPERTY LINE

S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E

SETBACK LINE

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

LOADING

O
C

E
A

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

GREEN SPACE

2 DROP OFF STALLS
(NOT IN PARKING COUNT)

SCOOTER 
PARKING

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

FIRE LANE

PAD-MOUNTED 
TRANSFORMER

7 
V

IS
IT

O
R

 S
TA

LL
S

JACK NELSON BUILDING
(EXISTING) 

BLOCK D
(EXISTING)

BLOCK E
(EXISTING)

MEDUSA STREETHYDRANT

LINE OF PARKING BELOW

ENTRANCE

0 5m 10m 25m

1:500

10
4'

-5
"

31
.8

3 
m

80' - 1 1/4"

24.41 m

SUBDIVISION FROM 
EXISTING BLOCK 

D& E R-4  SITE

196' - 10 3/4"

60.01 m

9' - 10"
SETBACK

3.00 m217' - 1 3/4"

66.19 m

17
8'

 - 
6 

3/
4"

54
.4

3 
m

11
4'

 - 
4"

34
.8

5 
m

54' - 8 3/4"

16.68 m

62
' -

 0
"

18
.9

0 
m

24' - 8 1/2"

7.53 m

PROPERTY LINE

19
' -

 8
 1

/4
"

SE
TB

AC
K

6.
00

 m

VIA Architecture
270 - 601 W. Cordova Street 
Vancouver, BC V6B 1G1

April 13, 2018Sunshine Coast Lions Housing Society 85917

Site Plan Schematic Design

SD 00-A158



ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 19

PROPOSED PARKING LEVEL

31.42 m²
MECHANICAL

1,377.67 m²
PARKING

21.60 m²
ELECTRICAL

23.45 m²
TV/TEL8.20 m²

VERT. CIRC.

37.79 m²
GENERATOR RM

28.34 m²

SCOOTER OR
BICYCLE STORAGE

8.75 m²
VERT. CIRC.

13.39 m²
VERT. CIRC.

8.14 m²
EMR

18.40 m²
ELEV. VEST.

9.57 m²
ELEV. VEST.

15.03 m²
VERT. CIRC.

41 SPACES

21.11 m²
EMR

1

4

581921

22 25 40

27.89 m²

MAINTENANCE
WORKSHOP

28.34 m²

SCOOTER OR
BICYCLE STORAGE

(10 SCOOTERS OR 
10 BIKES)

28.34 m²

SCOOTER OR
BICYCLE STORAGE

30

13

(10 SCOOTERS OR 
10 BIKES)

(10 SCOOTERS OR 
10 BIKES)

41

65
' -

 3
 3

/4
"

19
.9

1 
m

59
' -

 5
"

18
.1

1 
m

BUILDING 
ABOVE

12
4'

 - 
8 

3/
4"

38
.0

2 
m

222' - 9 1/2"

67.91 m

66' - 0 1/4"

20.13 m

0'
 - 

8 
1/

4 "

0.
21

 m

19
' -

 8
 1

/4
"

6.
00

 m

24
' -

 7
 1

/4
"

7.
50

 m

19
' -

 8
 1

/4
"

6.
00

 m

0'
 - 

8"

0.
20

 m

8' - 6 1/4"

2.60 m

12' - 1 3/4"

3.70 m

19
' -

 8
"

6.
00

 m

VIA Architecture
270 - 601 W. Cordova Street
Vancouver, BC V6B 1G1

April 13, 2018Sunshine Coast Lions Housing Society 85917

Level P1 Area Plan Schematic Design

SD 01

0 8' 16' 32

1/16" = 1'-0"

159



 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 20

ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS

PROPOSED LEVEL 1

52.82 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.93 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

77.54 m²
2 BR

237.21 m²
HALL

48.94 m²
OFFICE

7.43 m²
VERT. CIRC.

45.74 m²
1 BR51.91 m²

1 BR

53.93 m²
1 BR

51.33 m²
1 BR

11.08 m²
VERT. CIRC.

49.94 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

17.13 m²
LAUNDRY/LOUNGE

125.92 m²
CIRCULATION

94.02 m²
LOBBY

LINE OF PARKING BELOW

LI
N

E 
O

F 
PA

R
K

IN
G

 B
EL

O
W

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E SE

TB
AC

K 
LI

N
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

16 UNITS
(1 STUDIO, 14-1BR, 1-2BR )

ENTRANCE

60.76 m²
GARBAGE

ENTRANCE

12.75 m

25.08 m²
SCOOTER STORAGE

1.
83

 m

(10 SCOOTERS)

TRUCK PICKUP

PARKADE
ACCESS

EN
TR

AN
C

E

15.03 m²
VERT. CIRC.

BUILDING 
ABOVE

FIRE WALL

53.92 m²
1 BR

32.70 m²
STUDIO

2.97 m²
SERVICE

PROPERTY LINE

5.01 m²
SERVICE

7.43 m²
VERT. CIRC.

15.80 m²
VERT. CIRC. 217' - 2"

66.19 m

62
' -

 0
"

18
.9

0 
m

54' - 9"

16.69 m

11
4'

 - 
4"

34
.8

5 
m

10' - 7"

3.22 m

10' - 7"

3.22 m

5'
 - 

10
"

1.
78

 m

28
' -

 4
"

8.
64

 m

5'
 - 

4"

1.
63

 m

28
' -

 4
"

8.
64

 m

22' - 0"

6.71 m

26
' -

 4
"

8.
03

 m

32' - 9"

9.98 m

21' - 1"

6.43 m

5' - 4"

1.63 m

28' - 4"

8.64 m

27
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

8.
39

 m

14
' -

 8
"

4.
47

 m

22
' -

 0
"

6.
71

 m

24' - 0"

7.32 m

18' - 0"

5.49 m

7' - 3 1/4"

2.21 m

51
' -

 4
"

15
.6

5 
m

VIA Architecture
270 - 601 W. Cordova Street 
Vancouver, BC V6B 1G1

April 13, 2018Sunshine Coast Lions Housing Society 85917

Level 1 Area Plan Schematic Design

SD 02

0 8' 16' 32

1/16" = 1'-0"

160



ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS

 SUNSHINE COAST LIONS HOUSING SOCIETY 9 May 2018 21

52.82 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.93 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

77.54 m²
2 BR

237.21 m²
HALL

48.94 m²
OFFICE

7.43 m²
VERT. CIRC.

45.74 m²
1 BR51.91 m²

1 BR

53.93 m²
1 BR

51.33 m²
1 BR

11.08 m²
VERT. CIRC.

49.94 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

17.13 m²
LAUNDRY/LOUNGE

125.92 m²
CIRCULATION

94.02 m²
LOBBY

LINE OF PARKING BELOW

LI
N

E 
O

F 
PA

R
K

IN
G

 B
EL

O
W

PR
O

PE
R

TY
LI

N
E SE

TB
AC

K 
LI

N
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
LI

N
E

16 UNITS
(1 STUDIO, 14-1BR, 1-2BR )

ENTRANCE

60.76 m²
GARBAGE

ENTRANCE

12.75 m

25.08 m²
SCOOTER STORAGE

1.
83

 m

(10 SCOOTERS)

TRUCK PICKUP

PARKADE
ACCESS

EN
TR

AN
C

E

15.03 m²
VERT. CIRC.

BUILDING
ABOVE

FIRE WALL

53.92 m²
1 BR

32.70 m²
STUDIO

2.97 m²
SERVICE

PROPERTY LINE

5.01 m²
SERVICE

7.43 m²
VERT. CIRC.

15.80 m²
VERT. CIRC. 217' - 2"

66.19 m

62
'-

0"

18
.9

0
m

54' - 9"

16.69 m

11
4'

-4
"

34
.8

5
m

10' - 7"

3.22 m

10' - 7"

3.22 m

5'
-1

0"

1.
78

 m

28
'-

4"

8.
64

 m

5'
-4

"

1.
63

 m

28
'-

4"

8.
64

 m

22' - 0"

6.71 m

26
'-

4"

8.
03

 m

32' - 9"

9.98 m

21' - 1"

6.43 m

5' - 4"

1.63 m

28' - 4"

8.64 m

27
'-

6
1 /

2"

8.
39

 m

14
'-

8"

4.
47

 m

22
'-

0"

6.
71

 m

24' - 0"

7.32 m

18' - 0"

5.49 m

7' - 3 1/4"

2.21 m

51
'-

4"

15
.6

5
m

VIA Architecture
270 - 601 W. Cordova Street
Vancouver, BC V6B 1G1

April 13, 2018Sunshine Coast Lions Housing Society 85917

Level 1 Area Plan Schematic Design

SD 02

0 8' 16' 32

1/16" = 1'-0" PROPOSED LEVELS TYPICAL 2 TO 5

52.49 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

77.54 m²
2 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

51.91 m²
1 BR

53.93 m²
1 BR

53.84 m²
1 BR

146.97 m²
CIRCULATION

57.16 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

51.33 m²
1 BR

52.82 m²
1 BR

52.82 m²
1 BR

49.94 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

53.92 m²
1 BR

51.65 m²
1 BR

17.13 m²
LAUNDRY/LOUNGE

O
U

TL
IN

E 
O

F 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 B
EL

O
W

OUTLINE OF BUILDING 
BELOW

1 STUDIO UNIT x 4 LEVELS
20 1BR UNITS x 4 LEVELS

1 2BR UNIT x 4 LEVELS
= 88 UNITS

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

FIRE WALL

53.92 m²
1 BR

38.65 m²
STUDIO

51.33 m²
1 BR

11' - 8"

3.56 m

21' - 7"

6.58 m

20
' -

 6
"

6.
25

 m

21
' -

 0
"

6.
40

 m

20
' -

 6
"

6.
25

 m

5.01 m²
SERVICE

3.13 m²
SERVICE

1.70 m²
SERVICE

7.43 m²
VERT. CIRC.

15.03 m²
VERT. CIRC.

8.63 m²
VERT. CIRC.

15.03 m²
VERT. CIRC. 217' - 2"

66.19 m

54' - 9"

16.69 m

11
4'

 - 
4"

34
.8

5 
m

10' - 7"

3.22 m

10' - 7"

3.22 m

5'
 - 

10
"

1.
78

 m

28
' -

 4
"

8.
64

 m

5'
 - 

4"

1.
63

 m

28
' -

 4
"

8.
64

 m

22' - 0"

6.71 m

26
' -

 4
"

8.
03

 m

32' - 9"

9.98 m

21' - 1"

6.43 m

5' - 4"

1.63 m

28' - 4"

8.64 m

27
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

8.
39

 m

22
' -

 0
"

6.
71

 m

VIA Architecture
270 - 601 W. Cordova Street
Vancouver, BC V6B 1G1

April 13, 2018Sunshine Coast Lions Housing Society 85917

Typ. Lev. 2-5 Area Plan Schematic Design

SD 03

0 8' 16' 32

1/16" = 1'-0"

161



162



163



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT 

TO: Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 

AUTHOR: Julie Clark, Planner 

SUBJECT: ADVISORY COMMITTEES’ COMMENTS ON BCTS 2018-2022 OPERATION PLANS 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

THAT the report titled Advisory Committees’ Comments on BCTS 2018-2022 Operation 
Plans be received;  

AND THAT Advisory Committee comments be forwarded to BCTS as supplemental 
information to SCRD Board Resolution 167/18 in response to the BCTS 2018-2022 
Operations Plan referral; 

AND FURTHER THAT this Recommendation be forwarded to the June 14, 2018 Regular 
Board meeting. 

BACKGROUND 

The SCRD Board adopted resolution 167/18, Recommendation No. 4 at its meeting on May 24, 
2018 as follows: 

Recommendation No. 4 BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022 

The Planning and Community Development Committee recommended that the report 
titled BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022 be received;   

AND THAT the SCRD respond to the BCTS referral with the following comments: 

1. The SCRD does not support logging license A91376 located on District Lot 1313,
which should be reserved for environmental protection as per ongoing discussions
with the Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations and Rural
Development and the Sḵw ̱xwú7mesh Nation;

2. A strategy for the protection and/or restoration of trails surrounding cut blocks
G041C4F6 (West Sechelt), G042C4F8 (Mt. Elphinstone), G043C3ZJ (Mt.
Elphinstone), Licence A93884 (Mt. Elphinstone) G043C3ZH and G043C3ZP should
be confirmed with local trail groups;

3. Public safety measures should be implemented to communicate forestry activity to
recreational users, including signage posted on all recreational trails leading to cut
blocks, specifically G041C4F6 (West Sechelt), G042C4F8 (Mt. Elphinstone),
G043C3ZJ (Mt. Elphinstone), Licence A93884 (Mt. Elphinstone) and G043C3ZH and
G043C3ZP;

ANNEX H

164



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Advisory Committees’ Comments on BCTS 2018-2022 Operation Plans Page 2 of 4 

2018 June 14 PCD Report on Advisory Comments on BCTS 2018-2022 Operations Plan 

4. In support of monitoring and protection for marine life near logging activity, SCRD
recommends that BCTS commission eelgrass mapping in coastal and tributary areas
near proposed logging activity in Jervis Inlet - Hotham Sound, Deserted Creek, Brittain
River, as well as coastal and tributary areas of Howe Sound near proposed logging
activity - Rainy River, McNair, McNab and Potlatch Creeks, and that the mapping data
be shared with the SCRD;

5. Ensure that both shíshálh Nation and Sḵw ̱xwú7mesh Nation are consulted and that
all harvesting-related activities undertaken comply with the Heritage Conservation Act;

6. With regard to Block A93884, that absent further Provincial Land Use Level
consultation on the Sunshine Coast, and as per Board Resolutions 151/17
Recommendation #2 (April 27, 2017), and Board Resolution 255/16 Recommendation
#1 (June 23, 2016), the SCRD does not support logging within the 1500 hectare area
identified in the Roberts Creek Official Community Plan Map No. 2 as an area for
ecological and recreational protection;

AND THAT SCRD staff continue to work with BCTS staff to build on the engagement 
opportunities presented in the 2018 Advisory Planning Committee (APC) workshop series; 

AND FURTHER THAT SCRD’s position on logging in Community (drinking) Watersheds 
be conveyed to the Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource Operations and Rural 
Development to request that a clear limit of zero risk to drinking water quality and quantity 
be established including: 

1. a. Define a drinking water protection strategy for proposed forestry operations that
has the goal of achieving zero turbidity, zero sediment and zero pathogen input to
nearby creeks or streams from forestry activities;

b. Establish a monitoring and data sharing program

AND THAT the drinking water protection strategy and monitoring program be 
extended to areas with multiple groundwater licences including Mount 
Elphinstone; 

2. The forest in the Coastal Douglas Fir Biogeoclimatic Zone be removed from the
Timber Harvesting Land Base.

DISCUSSION 

SCRD referred the BCTS Operations Plan 2018-2022 to all five Advisory Planning Commissions 
(West Howe Sound, Elphinstone, Roberts Creek, Halfmoon Bay and Egmont/Pender Harbour), 
the Natural Resources Advisory Committee and the Roberts Creek Official Community Plan 
Committee. Committees reviewed the referral on their April and May agendas. The minutes 
from each meeting that pertain to BCTS are compiled in Attachment A.  

BC Timber Sales referred the Operations Plan directly to Sunshine Coast Trails Society (SCTS). 
Referral comments made by SCTS were submitted directly to BCTS.  

165



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Advisory Committees’ Comments on BCTS 2018-2022 Operation Plans Page 3 of 4 
 

 

2018 June 14 PCD Report on Advisory Comments on BCTS 2018-2022 Operations Plan 

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of comments received by the SCRD from 
Advisory Committees regarding BCTS 2018-2022 Operations Plan. SCRD will forward advisory 
committees’ comments to BCTS as supplemental information to SCRD referral comments 
included in resolution 167/18 from May 24, 2018. 

Analysis 

Advisory Committees’ comments focused on protecting environmental values such as 
biodiversity, water quality and quantity, protecting recreational values, best management 
practices for logging in community watersheds and increased need for provincial level planning 
and evaluation of cumulative effects of industrial activity on the Sunshine Coast. 

The Advisory Committees expressed appreciation for BCTS’s recent series of three education 
and awareness-raising sessions. Advisory members recommend expanding these efforts to 
further assist dialogue and future planning efforts regarding BCTS forestry activity. 

Comments relating to BCTS 2018-2022 Operations Plan have been extracted from the minutes 
of each Advisory Committee (April and May 2018) and compiled in Attachment A. 

Organization and Intergovernmental Implications 

The SCRD and BCTS Communication Protocol ensures that BCTS provides timely information 
about its operational plans and that the SCRD can provide comments.  

Timeline for next steps or estimated completion date 

As per the Communication Protocol, the SCRD has 90 days to comment on BCTS Operations 
Plans, which provides a deadline of June 5, 2018 to comment on the referral.  SCRD Board 
comments will be sent in advance of the deadline and advisory comments will be sent as soon 
as possible after the deadline. 

STRATEGIC PLAN AND RELATED POLICIES 

Strategic Plan Values: Enhance Collaboration, Embed Environmental Leadership and Support 
Sustainable Economic Development 

Forestry is part of the SCRD’s strategic priority to support sustainable economic development.  
The SCRD provides comments and feedback to BCTS on its proposed timber harvesting plans. 

CONCLUSION 

All five Advisory Planning Commissions, the Natural Resources Advisory Committee and the 
Roberts Creek Official Community Plan Committee reviewed the 2018-2022 BCTS Operations 
referral in late April and May.   

  

166



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Advisory Committees’ Comments on BCTS 2018-2022 Operation Plans Page 4 of 4 

 

2018 June 14 PCD Report on Advisory Comments on BCTS 2018-2022 Operations Plan 

Advisory committees provide a range of comments focused on  comments focused on 
protecting environmental values such as biodiversity, water quality and quantity, protecting 
recreational values, best management practices for logging in community watersheds and 
increased need for provincial level planning and evaluation of cumulative effects of industrial 
activity on the Sunshine Coast.  

Advisory committees’ comments will be sent to BCTS following SCRD Board consideration. 

Attachment: 

Attachment A: Advisory Comments on BCTS 2018-2022 Operations Plan 

Reviewed by: 
Manager X - A. Allen Finance 
GM X - I. Hall Legislative 
CAO X – J. Loveys Other 

167



          Attachment A 

Advisory Comments on BCTS 2018-2022 Operations Plan 

Area B APC April 24, 2018 

The APC discussed the staff report regarding BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022 and 
members gave a brief overview of the three -BCTS meetings they attended as 
representatives of the APC.  The following concerns/points/issues were noted: 

• If there are no fish in the creek they can cut right up to the creek; this may be something
that needs to be looked at.

• There could be an opportunity for the creation of stream stewardship.

• Would like to clarify that there are no trails around the proposed cut lots in the District of
Sechelt? The Trails Society has informed BC Timber Sales that there are no known
problems in the West Sechelt cut lot.

• Are strongly pleased with SCRD stance that the forest in the Coastal Douglas Fir
biogeoclimatic zone be removed from the Timber Harvesting Land Base.

• Support staff recommendations.

• Regarding APC member comment that increased runoff and turbidity from West Sechelt
cut lot would be detrimental to downstream property owners and the creek. Think this is
mistaken because there are no houses in the area that would be impacted.

Recommendation No. 1. BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022 

Regarding BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022, the APC supports SCRD recommendations. 

Area F APC April 24, 2018 

BC Timber Sales Operations 2018 - 2022 

The APC discussed the staff report regarding BC Timber Sales Operations 2018 - 2022. There 
were comments on the recent BC Timber Sales field trip for SCRD advisory committee 
members, regarded as very informative.  

Some comments from discussion included: 

• If logging in McNab, BCTS will run into a problem with BURNCO.

• If you want DL1313 as a park, you should apply to the Ministry. If the community wants
it, come up with at least the stumpage for one rotation of the timber (estimated around
two million dollars). If we want parks, the community should pay for it…. If people don’t
want the Crown interface logged, then subdivide it and sell it. Someone has to pay the
bill. Part of the revenue for the Province is stumpage on timber from Crown lands. How
do you balance that?

• BCTS are under their allowable cut, and under pressure. They have to be within 10% of

168



their cut within the five-year period – otherwise they lose it permanently. There is a lot of 
pressure for that annual cut…the tough law of meeting that harvest level… to provide 
stability and uniform work for people.  

• If they clear-cut DL 1313, it will be a big scar on the hill.

The following points were made: 

• The APC questioned staff recommendation 6 on page 27, that “BCTS should
commission eelgrass mapping along coastal areas with logging activity and share the
eelgrass data with SCRD”, and advised not to do eelgrass and forage fish mapping
except in sites where there is planned activity. The mapping is available from the federal
Department of Fisheries and Oceans and other sources. Gather together all the data
that has been produced on eelgrass before asking one department of government to do
the mapping.

• Watershed reserves – Staff recommendation 1 on page 27 should say in “active
Community Watersheds”, not including reserves. If it is just a “reserve” for the future,
logging – well planned, managed, with sediment control and responsible harvesting –
can happen without any impact on the future. Dakota and McNair have totally
regenerated from the old path logging. They are now twenty or twenty-five to fifty years
old; they are all regenerating.

• The APC appreciates the opportunity to review and comment on future BCTS cut blocks.

Area A APC April 25 

Received BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022 and the Area A APC agrees with the SCRD 
staff comments on page 27. 

Recommendation No. 1  BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022 

APC would like to see any referrals re: BC Timber Sales Operations include the previous five 
years of logging activity in accompanying reports. 

169



Area E APC April 25, 2018 

The APC discussed the staff report regarding BC Timber Sales Operations 2018 – 2022. 

The following points were made: 

• Agreement with staff recommendations regarding SCRD comment on the BCTS 
referral. 
 

• Strong opposition in Area E to the logging of DL 1313 
 

• BCTS has been notified for several years now that they need to take DL1313 off their 
list on a permanent basis. As world populations grow, so grow the coast’s and Area E’s 
population. People and animals require green space and the Reed Road Forest is a 
true gem and the only substantial forest in our area. Immediate neighbours of Lot 
DL1313 are very concerned about erosion and loss of watershed for their wells. They 
believe that their properties, downslope of this forest, would be at huge risk if the forest 
cover were logged. 
 

• Logging in an urban interface area is example of poor landscape management. 
 

• Discussion of BCTS operations and research projects and APC members’ 
perspectives on the recent BCTS workshops and field trip for SCRD advisory 
committee members. 
 

• Lack of a land and resource management plan on the Sunshine Coast. 
 

• The Sunshine Coast has old forests that may not be found anywhere else in the 
province. 
 

• There would probably be more value to the community over the next thirty years to 
retain the forest than have a revenue stream from forestry. This needs to be addressed 
in these plans. 
 

• We are short of land to be conserved, short changed. Would like the same 
conservancy rate as other areas of the Province.  
 

• There are many and varied different forms of recreation here. Add up all the cash flows 
that result from keeping something like that, and it adds up. 
 

• They need to take all of these considerations into account. Overall the Province and 
their planning may not be reflecting what the values of this community are. They may 
not reflect in our bioregion how we are utilizing the woods. There are different ways we 
might be utilizing the woods as a community. We are the back yard and playground for 
the Lower Mainland. We can provide a lot of unique things like the Coastal Douglas Fir 
zone that isn’t available in other parts of the Province. There are things like that, that 

170



need to be taken into consideration when they consider that value, and what is 
generated for the Province financially and overall. We are providing safe spaces for 
people to be doing healthy recreation. 

• There is a huge appetite for what we have got over here. If you are going to start
chopping down a mountain, could it have an impact on real estate values?

• The SCRD’s response to this issue is lukewarm. They should say that we need this
much public recreation space; the forest is really important and we have to protect
that. SCRD should say we see advantages for protecting certain lots, and come forth
with stronger arguments. Need to bring everybody together and say long term this is
what we will do.

• Right now it is a standoff, not a process.

• Want BCTS to leave the south and east flanks of Mount Elphinstone.

• An excerpt pertaining to DL1313 from the Elphinstone Official Community Plan (Bylaw
No. 600) was read aloud from section B-10.3 Community and Regional Park Policies,
point 3, advocating that the SCRD acquire DL1313 (Old Gibsons Watershed Reserve),
a 48 hectare (120 acre) site “covered by the largest areas of mature coniferous forest
and wetland identified in the Sunshine Coast Sensitive Ecosystem Inventory (2003)
within the Elphinstone OCP”, as a community or regional park “that protects the
surface and ground water resources so that they can continue to be available to the
Town of Gibsons and the Regional District for community water and reservoir
purposes.”

Recommendation No. 1 BC Timber Sales Operations 2018 – 2022 

The Elphinstone APC recommended agreement with the staff recommendations for SCRD 
comment on the BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022 referral, as noted below, and for 
the following listed reasons: 

1. In support of protecting drinking water quality, SCRD does not support logging in
Community Watersheds.

• It makes sense. Water is life.
• Water is essential and becoming more and more important as the climate shifts.
• We have to make sure all of our community watersheds are protected as we

move forward.

2. SCRD does not support logging license A91376 located on DL1313, which should be
reserved for environmental protection as per ongoing discussions with the Ministry of
Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations and the Sḵwx̱ wú7mesh Nation.

• Because it is the urban interface.

171



• We have no accessible forest like this in Elphinstone. Protect public areas like 
this that the public can enjoy. 

• We emphasize that the SCRD should make every effort to conserve DL1313. 
• It used to be a watershed reserve because there are a lot of residents on wells 

below it. 
• For property protection – if there is damage from erosion, it ends up costing us all 

in taxes. Watershed protection ensures that we don’t have damages through 
flooding, erosion and other occurrences because of unstable infrastructure or 
wells damaged from overland flooding.  

• Streams on the east side of that land are feeding into Chaster Creek. 

3. A strategy for the protection and/or restoration of trails surrounding cut blocks 
G041C4F6 (West Sechelt), G042C4F8 (Mt. Elphinstone), G043C3ZJ (Mt. Elphinstone), 
Licence A93884 (Mt. Elphinstone) G043C3ZH and G043C3ZP should be confirmed with 
local trail groups.  

• Tourism and recreation has always been one of the largest income streams for 
the Sunshine Coast. If more people are coming here to enjoy these trails, it is to 
the benefit of the community that these trails are maintained and protected.  

• A lot of these trails are accessible because BCTS maintains the roads (paid for 
by logging). 

4. Public safety measures be implemented to communicate forestry activity to recreational 
users, including signage posted on all recreational trails leading to cut blocks, 
specifically G041C4F6 (West Sechelt), G042C4F8 (Mt. Elphinstone), G043C3ZJ (Mt. 
Elphinstone), Licence A93884 (Mt. Elphinstone) and G043C3ZH and G043C3ZP. 

• Public safety needs to be an important component because these are public 
lands. The public needs to have safe access. 

5. Ensure that both shíshálh Nation and Sḵwx̱ wú7mesh Nation are consulted and that all 
harvesting related activities undertaken comply with the Heritage Conservation Act.   

• It is important that we respect that we are on unceded territory. 

6. BCTS should commission eelgrass mapping along coastal areas with logging activity 
and share the eelgrass data with SCRD. 

• The only way we will know logging is impacting the eelgrass is if it is known that 
the eelgrass is there; since BCTS are the ones who want to log, BCTS should be 
the ones to provide that information. 

7. The forest in the Coastal Douglas Fir biogeoclimatic zone be removed from the Timber 
Harvesting Land Base.   

• This is unique forest that we need to preserve.  

Recommendation No. 2  Sunshine Coast Land and Resource Management Plan 

The Elphinstone APC recommended that the Sunshine Coast Regional District seek to have a 
Land and Resource Management Plan (LRMP), or similar current legislative process, so that the 
Sunshine Coast can have this Plan going forward; and so that there is potentially less conflict 

172



regarding land use if we are clear on which areas we would like to save, and we get a say; and 
that the SCRD go through this process if possible. 

Recommendation No. 3 BC Timber Sales Public Awareness Activities 

The Elphinstone APC recommended that the BCTS continue to dialogue and create 
opportunities to educate people about their research and their operating practices so the 
general public can gain a greater understanding of the logging process on the Sunshine Coast. 

Roberts Creek Official Community Plan Committee, May 8, 2018 

BC Timber Sales Referral – The OCPC fully supports all items in this referral. We would like to 
see a Strategy for Protection/Restoration be put into place. We would like to see free and 
informed prior consent obtained.  

Area D APC May 14, 2018 

• APC supports the SCRD recommendations noted on page 1 of the report.

• It should be added that watershed protection should include water source protection for the
large number of residents who are not served by the SCRD-managed water supply but are
dependent on surface and well water.  There is a large area above the Roberts Creek
community being logged by multiple companies that will have an effect on surface and
ground water.

• More needs to be done at the Provincial level with all stakeholders regarding a coordinated
plan for water source protection and for coastal land use management.

• Logging in private managed forests needs to be brought under a standard set of logging
conditions.

• At lower elevations we are under-represented for parks and recreational forests.

• District Lot 1313 should be left as a green mature forest.  It is easily accessible by a large
number of people and has great value for tourism and recreation.

• We recognize that logging is an integral part of our history and provincial prosperity, but there
is a need for better integration with our growing community. Times are changing, our
population is growing, we have a thriving ecotourism draw, and tree harvesting targets need
to be adjusted in accordance with our current reality.

• We appreciate that BCTS has reached out to the community in the recent meeting with APC
members, to educate and listen to community concerns.  We look forward to further positive
interactions and would encourage a larger consultation with a greater number of APC
members in the future.

173



NRAC May 16, 2018 

Recommendation No. 1   BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022 
The Natural Resource Advisory Committee accepts the SCRD staff’s recommendations to go 
forward as amended; 
 
AND THAT the Natural Resource Advisory Committee recognizes that NRAC needs further time 
to review the BCTS report. Further recommendations may be added next meeting; 
 
AND THAT the Natural Resource Advisory Committee recommends that BCTS include an 
appropriately designed buffer for the wind firm around in the Coastal Douglas Fir biogeoclimatic 
zone.  
 
Recommendation No. 2   BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022 
The Natural Resource Advisory Committee recommended that the SCRD staff invite BCTS to 
attend the NRAC June 20, 2018 meeting. 
  

174



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT 

TO: Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 

AUTHOR: Julie Clark, Planner 

SUBJECT: PROVINCIAL REFERRAL 102115507 - 001 FOR A PRIVATE MOORAGE (STODDARD) – 
ELECTORAL AREA A 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

i. THAT the report titled Provincial Referral 102115507 - 001 for a Private
Moorage (Stoddard) – Electoral Area A be received;

ii. AND THAT the following comments be forwarded to the Ministry of
Forests, Lands, Natural Resources Operations, and Rural Development:

iii. Subject to the following conditions, SCRD has no objections to the
proposed tenure for residential private moorage fronting Eagle Island,
Provincial Referral 102115507 - 001

iv. SCRD will require a building permit and/or a development variance
permit if any structures are constructed to access the moorage facility;

v. Critical Habitat including eelgrass beds in or near the tenure area
should be identified by field study and protected;

vi. Water quality should not be impacted by maintenance or construction
activities, materials, or fuel storage;

vii. Public access should be maintained for shellfish harvesting, as well as
for recreational boating and emergency refuge. Docks and associated
tenure areas should be designed to maintain public access along the
foreshore and emergency refuge;

viii. Ensure that both shíshálh Nation are consulted and that all harvesting-
related activities undertaken comply with the Heritage Conservation
Act;

ix. The proponent should implement both Provincial and shíshálh Nation’s
Best Management Practices for building and maintaining moorage
facilities and in particular the most stringent of any overlapping policy
to protect the foreshore ecosystems;

BACKGROUND 

The SCRD received a Provincial referral from the Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource 
Operations and Rural Development (FLNRORD) for specific permission for an existing 

ANNEX I

175



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral 102115507 - 001 for a Private Moorage (Stoddard) – 
Electoral Area A Page 2 of 4 
 

 

2018 June 14 PCD Report on CRN 00057 Private Moorage Eagle Island (Stoddard) 

residential private moorage fronting Eagle Island, District Lot 5414, located in Jervis Inlet. The 
referral is enclosed for reference as Attachment A. A location map and application summary is 
provided below. 

The purpose of this report is to provide information on the referral and a response to FLNRORD.  

Figure 1 –Location of existing dock at Eagle Island, location of Eagle Island in Jervis Inlet  

Owner / Applicant: Mary Lee Stoddard / Agent – All Tides Consulting 

Purpose: Private Moorage 

Tenure Type: Specific Permission for Private Moorage 

Size: .0228 hectares 

Location: Eagle Island, District Lot 5414, Jervis Inlet 

Legal Description: Unsurveyed foreshore or land covered by water being part of the bed of 
Telescope Pass, Group 1, New Westminster District (Upland DL 5414) 

Electoral Area: A 

OCP Land Use: None – outside OCP Boundary 

Land Use Zone: RU-2 

Comment deadline: June 29, 2018 

Table 1 - Application Summary 

DISCUSSION 

The applicant recently purchased this property and wishes to secure a private moorage tenure 
from the Province of BC for an existing dock located on the east side of the south-facing bay of 
Eagle Island in order to access their property. 

Saltery Bay 

Jervis Inlet 

176



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral 102115507 - 001 for a Private Moorage (Stoddard) – 
Electoral Area A Page 3 of 4 

 

2018 June 14 PCD Report on CRN 00057 Private Moorage Eagle Island (Stoddard) 

Analysis 

• The Regional District will require a building permit and/or a development variance permit
if any structures are constructed to access the moorage facility.

• The application appears to not obstruct public use.

• The foreshore is not zoned. The upland lot is zoned RU2 which is a resource land use
designation that permits residential use on the property.  The lot is accessed by water
only and therefore a private moorage to access the lot is permitted.

• Water quality should not be impacted by maintenance or construction activities,
materials, or fuel storage.

• Available data for eelgrass beds in Jervis Inlet is out of date (1957-1977). SCRD cannot
review for eelgrass presence. SCRD recommends field assessment for Critical Habitat
by a Qualified Environmental Professional.

• Critical Habitat is defined as: “habitat that is important for: (a) sustaining a subsistence,
commercial, or recreational fishery, or (b) any species at risk (e.g. terrestrial or aquatic
red and blue-listed species, those designated by the Committee on the Status of
Endangered Wildlife in Canada, or those SARA-listed species), or (c) its relative
rareness, productivity, or sensitivity (e.g. eelgrass meadows, kelp forests, foreshore salt
marsh vegetation, herring spawning habitat, and potential forage fish spawning beach
habitat)”

• The application notes that shíshálh Nation has not been contacted. SCRD recommends
that the applicant consult the shíshálh Nation and that the private moorage and activities
associated with the moorage be in compliance with the Heritage Conservation Act.

• Eagle Island is outside the Pender Harbour Dock Management Area.

• The proponent should implement both Provincial and shíshálh Nation’s Best
Management Practices for building and maintaining moorage facilities and in particular
the most stringent of any overlapping policy to protect the foreshore ecosystems.

Options 

The Province requests SCRD decide on one of the following options in response to the referral: 

1. Interests unaffected
2. No objection to approval of project.
3. No objection to approval of project subject to the conditions outlined below.
4. Recommend refusal of project due to reasons outlined below.
5. N/A

Staff recommend referral Option 3, subject to comments outlined in the report 
Recommendations. 

177



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral 102115507 - 001 for a Private Moorage (Stoddard) – 
Electoral Area A Page 4 of 4 
 

 

2018 June 14 PCD Report on CRN 00057 Private Moorage Eagle Island (Stoddard) 

Consultation 

The Province referred this application to the shíshálh Nation, SCRD and other agencies it 
identifies as appropriate (such as Fisheries and Oceans Canada, Navigable Waters, etc.) and 
posts an advertisement in the Coast Reporter to enable comments from the public. 

The Egmont/Pender Harbour Advisory Planning Commission (APC) will review this application 
at its meeting on June 27, 2018. APC comments will be forwarded to FLNRORD. 

Timeline for next steps or estimated completion date 

The Province extended the deadline to comment on this application to June 29, 2018 in order to 
obtain a Board Resolution. The Resolution will be forwarded to FLNRORD and final permission 
will be made by the Province. 

Recommendations from this report should be forwarded to the Regular Board meeting of June 
28, 2018 for adoption to meet the Provincial comment deadline. 

STRATEGIC PLAN AND RELATED POLICIES 

Strategic Plan Values: Embed Environmental Leadership 

CONCLUSION 

The SCRD has been provided an opportunity to comment on a Provincial referral for an existing 
private moorage facility on Eagle Island.  

SCRD recommends responding with referral Option 3, no objection to approval of project 
subject to comments outlined in the Recommendations. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Referral package for Eagle Island Provincial Referral 102115507 - 001 

 

 Reviewed by: 
Manager X - A. Allen Finance  
GM X - I. Hall Legislative  
CAO X – J. Loveys Other  

178



Tracking Number: 100228982  |  Version 1.1  |  Submitted Date: Nov 6, 2017 Page 1 of 5

Crown Land Tenure Application
Tracking Number: 100228982

Applicant Information
If approved, will the authorization be issued to
 an Individual or Company/Organization?

Individual

Are you the Individual this application
will be issued to?

No

What is your relationship to the individual? Agent

APPLICANT CONTACT INFORMATION
Applicant is an Individual or an Organization to whom this authorization Permit/Tenure/Licence will be issued, if approved.

Name: Mary Lee Stoddard
Phone: 778-558-1247
Daytime Phone:
Fax:
Email: maryleestoddard@gmail.com
Mailing Address: 4963 Connaught  Drive

Vancouver BC  V6M 3E8
AGENT INFORMATION

Please enter the contact information of the Individual/Organization who is acting on behalf of the applicant.
Name: Adam Mark Thomsen
Doing Business As: All Tides Consulting
Phone: 604-885-8465
Fax:
Email: alltidesconsulting@gmail.com
BC Incorporation Number:
Extra Provincial Inc. No:
Society Number:
GST Registration Number:
Contact Name: Adam Thomsen
Mailing Address: 5431 Carnaby Place

Sechelt BC  V0N3A7
Letter(s) Attached: Yes (Stoddard . Letter of Agency- signed.pdf)

CORRESPONDENCE E-MAIL ADDRESS
If you would like to receive correspondence at a different email address than shown above, please provide the correspondence email
address here.  If left blank, all correspondence will be sent to the above given email address.

Email: alltidesconsulting@gmail.com
Contact Name: Adam Thomsen

ELIGIBILITY

Question Answer Warning
Do all applicants and co-applicants meet the eligibility criteria

for the appropriate category as listed below?

Applicants and/or co-applicants who are Individuals must:
1. be 19 years of age or older and
2. must be Canadian citizens or permanent residents of

Canada. (Except if you are applying for a Private Moorage)

Applicants and/or co-applicants who are Organizations must
either:

1. be incorporated or registered in British Columbia

Yes

Attachment A

179



Tracking Number: 100228982  |  Version 1.1  |  Submitted Date: Nov 6, 2017 Page 2 of 5

(Corporations also include registered partnerships,
cooperatives, and non-profit societies which are formed
under the relevant Provincial statutes) or

2. First Nations who can apply through Band corporations or
Indian Band and Tribal Councils (Band or Tribal Councils
require a Band Council Resolution).

TECHNICAL INFORMATION
Please provide us with the following general information about you and your application:

EXISTING TENURE DETAILS

Do you hold another Crown Land Tenure? Yes
Please specify your file number: Specific Permission for Private Moorage # 346533

If you have several file numbers, please make a note of at least one of them
above. Example numbers: 1234567, 153245, others

ALL SEASONS RESORTS
The All Seasons Resorts Program serves to support the development of Alpine Ski and non-ski resorts on Crown land. For more detailed
information on this program please see the operational policy and if you have further questions please contact FrontCounter BC.

Are you applying within an alpine ski resort? No

WHAT IS YOUR INTENDED USE OF CROWN LAND?
Use the "Add Purpose" button to select a proposed land use from the drop down menu.
If you wish to use Crown land for a short term, low impact activity you may not need to apply for tenure, you may be authorized under
the Permissions policy or Private Moorage policy.
To determine if your use is permissible under the Land Act please refer to either the Land Use Policy - Permissions or Land Use Policy -
Private Moorage located here.

Purpose Tenure Period
Private Moorage
Water access only lot.
Residential use by upland property
owners and their guests.

Specific Permission More than thirty years

ACCESS TO CROWN LAND

Please describe how you plan to access your
proposed crown land from the closest public
road:

No roads. Accessed by upland lot and by water.

PRIVATE MOORAGE
Private Moorage is the allocation of aquatic Crown land (inland and coastal) for private moorage facilities such as a dock or float.
Moorage facilities for group or strata title/ condominium developments of  over three berths are administered under the provisions of
the Residential program where they have no related commercial facilities (e.g. gas bars) and are intended for private use of tenants.
Group moorage with commercial activities are administered under the Marina program.

Specific Purpose: Water access only lot.
Residential use by upland property owners and their guests.

Period: More than thirty years
Tenure: Specific Permission

MOORING BUOY
Is this only for a mooring buoy for private
moorage?

No

TOTAL APPLICATION AREA
Please give us some information on the size of the area you are applying for.

Please specify the area: .228 hectares

180



Tracking Number: 100228982  |  Version 1.1  |  Submitted Date: Nov 6, 2017 Page 3 of 5

PROJECT DETAILS
Please provide us with further details on your dock.

Is the water freshwater or marine? Marine
Are you proposing 4 or more slips? No
Are you applying on behalf of a Strata
corporation?

No

Are you the waterfront upland owner? Yes
Are you planning to sell gas at the proposed
marina?

No

SECTION 11 WATER AUTHORIZATION
You may also require a Section 11 Water Sustainability Act authorization.

Is this application for an existing structure? Yes

Are you working in the water (replacing
pylons, moving structures, etc.)?

No

IMPORTANT CONSIDERATIONS
Selecting yes to any of the following questions may indicate that you will require further or additional authorizations under the Land Act
or other legislation.

Is your proposed activity within the Kootenay Region? No

Is your proposed activity within the Okanagan, Kalamalka and
Wood Lakes, Skaha Lake, Vaseux Lake, or Christina Lake areas?

No

Is your proposed activity within the Shuswap, Mara, Mable, or Little
Shuswap Lake areas?

No

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS
In many cases you might require other authorizations or permits in order to complete your project. In order to make that determination
and point you in the right direction please answer the questions below. In addition, your application may be referred to other agencies
for comments.

Is the Applicant or any Co-Applicant or their Spouse(s) an employee
of the Provincial Government of British Columbia?

No

Are you planning to cut timber on the Crown Land you are applying
for?

No

Are you planning to use an open fire to burn timber or other
materials?

No

Do you want to transport heavy equipment or materials on an
existing forest road?

No

Are you planning to work in or around water? No

Does your operation fall within a park area? No

LOCATION INFORMATION

LAND DETAILS

Please provide information on the location and shape of your Crown land application area. You can use one or more of the tools
provided.

181



Tracking Number: 100228982  |  Version 1.1  |  Submitted Date: Nov 6, 2017 Page 4 of 5

 I will upload a PDF, JPG or other digital file(s)
MAP FILES

Your PDF, JPG or other digital file must show your application area in relation to nearby communities, highways, railways or other land
marks.

Description Filename Purpose
Site Plans include metes and bounds for FLNRO
to produce shape file

Stoddard . Crown Land Tenur... Private Moorage

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS

Document Type Description Filename
General Location Map Plans A - D Stoddard . Crown Land Tenur...

Management Plan MP Management Plan . Stoddard ...

Other Land Title Land Title.pdf

Other Letter of Agency Stoddard . Letter of Agency...

Other Written confirmation of bylaw compliance Gmail - RE_ Written Bylaw C...

Side Profile Plans A - D Stoddard . Crown Land Tenur...

Site Photographs 1 IMG_4257.JPG

Site Photographs 2 IMG_4259.JPG

Site Photographs 3 IMG_4263.JPG

Site Photographs 4 IMG_4279.JPG

Site Plan Plans A - D Stoddard . Crown Land Tenur...

PRIVACY DECLARATION

 Check here to indicate that you have read and agree to the privacy declaration stated above.
REFERRAL INFORMATION

Some applications may also be passed on to other agencies, ministries or other affected parties for referral or consultation purposes. A
referral or notification is necessary when the approval of your application might affect someone else's rights or resources or those of
the citizens of BC. An example of someone who could receive your application for referral purposes is a habitat officer who looks after
the fish and wildlife in the area of your application. This does not apply to all applications and is done only when required.

Please enter contact information below for the person who would best answer questions about your application that may arise from
anyone who received a referral or notification.

182



Tracking Number: 100228982  |  Version 1.1  |  Submitted Date: Nov 6, 2017 Page 5 of 5

Company / Organization: All Tides Consulting
Contact Name: Adam Thomsen
Contact Address: 5431 Carnaby Pl.

Sechelt BC
V0N 3A7

Contact Phone: 604-885-8465
Contact Email: alltidesconsulting@gmail.com

 I hereby consent to the disclosure of the information contained in this application to other agencies, government ministries or
other affected parties for referral or First Nation consultation purposes.

IMPORTANT NOTICES

 Once you click 'Next' the application will be locked down and you will NOT be able to edit it any more.
DECLARATION
 By submitting this application form, I, declare that the information contained on this  form is complete and accurate.

APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED FEES

Item Amount Taxes Total Outstanding Balance
Crown Land Tenure Application Fee $250.00 GST @ 5%: $12.50 $262.50 $0.00
OFFICE

Office to submit application to: Surrey

PROJECT INFORMATION

Is this application for an activity or project which
requires more than one natural resource
authorization from the Province of BC?

No

APPLICANT SIGNATURE
Applicant Signature Date

OFFICE USE ONLY
Office

Surrey
File Number Project Number

Disposition ID Client Number

183

admitrie
Typewritten Text
2411994



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT 

TO: Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 

AUTHOR: Julie Clark, Planner 

SUBJECT: Provincial Referral 102850995 – 002 for a Private Moorage Baker Bay 
(Johnston) – Electoral Area A 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

THAT the report titled Provincial Referral 102850995 – 002 for a Private Moorage 
Baker Bay (Johnston) – Electoral Area A be received;  

AND THAT the following comments be forwarded to the Ministry of Forests, 
Lands, Natural Resources Operations, and Rural Development: 

1. Subject to the following conditions, SCRD has no objections to the proposed
tenure for residential Private Moorage fronting Baker Bay, Provincial Referral
102850995 – 002

a) SCRD will require a building permit and/or a development variance
permit if any structures are constructed to access the moorage facility;

b) Critical Habitat including eelgrass beds in or near the tenure area
should be identified by field study and protected;

c) Water quality should not be impacted by maintenance or construction
activities, materials, or fuel storage;

d) Public access should be maintained for shellfish harvesting, as well as
for recreational boating and emergency refuge. Docks and associated
tenure areas should be designed to maintain public access along the
foreshore and emergency refuge;

e) Ensure that both shíshálh Nation are consulted and that all harvesting-
related activities undertaken comply with the Heritage Conservation
Act;

f) The proponent should implement both Provincial and shíshálh Nation’s
Best Management Practices for building and maintaining moorage
facilities and in particular the most stringent of any overlapping policy
to protect the foreshore ecosystems;

g) SCRD notes a subdivision application for this property and potential
access challenges for proposed Lot 2. Best Management Practices
recommend a shared moorage facility supported by an easement over
Lot 1 for the future owner of Lot 2 to access their land.

ANNEX J

202



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral 102850995 – 002 for a Private Moorage Baker Bay 
(Johnston) – Electoral Area A Page 2 of 5 

 

2018 June 14 PCD Report on CRN 00058 Private Moorage (Johnston) Baker Bay (Johnston) 

BACKGROUND 

The SCRD received a Provincial referral from the Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource 
Operations and Rural Development (FLNRORD) for specific permission for an existing 
residential private moorage fronting Baker Bay, District Lot 3557, located in Jervis Inlet. The 
referral is enclosed for reference as Attachment A. A location map and application summary is 
provided below. 

The purpose of this report is to provide information on the referral and a response to FLNRORD. 

Figure 1 –Location of proposed dock at Baker Bay, location of Baker Bay in Jervis Inlet 

Owner / Applicant: Stefan Johnston 

Purpose: Private Moorage 

Tenure Type: Specific Permission for Private Moorage 

Size: 0.0945 Ha     

Location: Baker Bay, District Lot 3557, Jervis Inlet 

Legal Description: Unsurveyed foreshore or land covered by water being part of the bed of Baker 
Bay, Group 1, New Westminster District (Upland DL 3557, PID 015-871-215)* 
* Application for land subdivision under review.

Electoral Area: A 

OCP Land Use: None – outside OCP Boundary 

Land Use Zone: RU-2 

Comment deadline: July 6, 2018 

Table 1 - Application Summary 

Baker Bay 

203



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral 102850995 – 002 for a Private Moorage Baker Bay 
(Johnston) – Electoral Area A Page 3 of 5 
 

 

2018 June 14 PCD Report on CRN 00058 Private Moorage (Johnston) Baker Bay (Johnston) 

DISCUSSION 

The applicant wishes to secure a Private Moorage tenure from the Province of BC for a dock 
located at the head of Baker Bay, Jervis Inlet in order to access their upland property. 

Analysis 

• The tenure application area is for 0.144 hectares, and a dock designed to accommodate 
year round moorage for a minimum of a large sailboat, several smaller vessels, landing 
craft and barges for ongoing delivery of material, equipment and personnel. 

• The Regional District will require a building permit and/or a development variance permit 
if any structures are constructed to access the moorage facility.   

• The application appears to not obstruct public use. 

• The foreshore is not zoned. The upland lot is zoned RU2 which is a resource land use 
designation that permits residential use on the property.  The lot is accessed by water 
only and therefore a private moorage to access the lot is permitted.  

• Water quality should not be impacted by maintenance or construction activities, 
materials, or fuel storage. 

• Available data for eelgrass beds in Jervis Inlet is out of date (1957-1977). SCRD cannot 
review for eelgrass presence. SCRD recommends field assessment for Critical Habitat 
by a Qualified Environmental Professional.  

• Critical Habitat is defined as: “habitat that is important for: (a) sustaining a subsistence, 
commercial, or recreational fishery, or (b) any species at risk (e.g. terrestrial or aquatic 
red and blue-listed species, those designated by the Committee on the Status of 
Endangered Wildlife in Canada, or those SARA-listed species), or (c) its relative 
rareness, productivity, or sensitivity (e.g. eelgrass meadows, kelp forests, foreshore salt 
marsh vegetation, herring spawning habitat, and potential forage fish spawning beach 
habitat)” 

• The application notes preliminary contact has been made with the shíshálh Nation. 
SCRD recommends that the applicant consult the shíshálh Nation with their application 
and that the Private Moorage and activities associated with the moorage be in 
compliance with the Heritage Conservation Act. 

• Baker Bay is outside the Pender Harbour Dock Management Plan area.  

• The proponent should implement both Provincial and shíshálh Nation’s Best 
Management Practices for building and maintaining moorage facilities and in particular 
the most stringent of any overlapping policy to protect the foreshore ecosystems. 

• The proponent has a current subdivision application in the process of review for this 
property.  
 
 

204



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral 102850995 – 002 for a Private Moorage Baker Bay 
(Johnston) – Electoral Area A Page 4 of 5 

2018 June 14 PCD Report on CRN 00058 Private Moorage (Johnston) Baker Bay (Johnston) 

• SCRD notes the potential access challenges for proposed Lot 2 and recommends the
following:

o a shared moorage facility;

o an easement over Lot 1 for the future owner of Lot 2 to access their land.

Options 

The Province requests SCRD decide on one of the following options in response to the referral: 

1. Interests unaffected
2. No objection to approval of project.
3. No objection to approval of project subject to the conditions outlined below.
4. Recommend refusal of project due to reasons outlined below.
5. N/A

Staff recommend referral Option 3, subject to comments outlined in the report 
Recommendations. 

Consultation 

The Province referred this application to the shíshálh Nation, SCRD and other agencies it 
identifies as appropriate (such as Fisheries and Oceans Canada, Navigable Waters, etc.) and 
posts an advertisement in the Coast Reporter to enable comments from the public. 

The Egmont/Pender Harbour Advisory Planning Commission (APC) will review this application 
at its meeting on June 27, 2018. APC comments will be forwarded to FLNRORD. 

Timeline for next steps or estimated completion date 

The Province extended the deadline to comment on this application to July 6, 2018 in order to 
obtain a Board Resolution. The Resolution will be forwarded to FLNRORD and final permission 
will be made by the Province. 

STRATEGIC PLAN AND RELATED POLICIES 

Strategic Plan Values: Embed Environmental Leadership 

CONCLUSION 

The SCRD has been provided an opportunity to comment on a Provincial referral for Private 
Moorage facility on Baker Bay, Jervis Inlet.  

SCRD recommend responding with referral Option 3, subject to comments outlined in the 
Recommendations. 

205



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Provincial Referral 102850995 – 002 for a Private Moorage Baker Bay 
(Johnston) – Electoral Area A Page 5 of 5 
 

 

2018 June 14 PCD Report on CRN 00058 Private Moorage (Johnston) Baker Bay (Johnston) 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Referral package for Baker Bay Provincial Referral 102850995 – 002. 

 Reviewed by: 
Manager X -  A. Allen Finance  
GM X - I. Hall Legislative  
CAO X – J. Loveys Other  

206



Tracking Number: 100228850  |  Version 1.1  |  Submitted Date: Nov 3, 2017 Page 1 of 5

Crown Land Tenure Application
Tracking Number: 100228850

Applicant Information
If approved, will the authorization be issued to
 an Individual or Company/Organization?

Individual

Are you the Individual this application
will be issued to?

Yes

APPLICANT CONTACT INFORMATION
Applicant is an Individual or an Organization to whom this authorization Permit/Tenure/Licence will be issued, if approved.

Name: Stefan Johnston
Phone: 780-970-1481
Daytime Phone:
Fax:
Email: stefan.johnston@hotmail.ca
Mailing Address: 15 Hamilton Cres. Crescent

St. Albert AB  T8N6R6

ELIGIBILITY

Question Answer Warning
Do all applicants and co-applicants meet the eligibility criteria

for the appropriate category as listed below?

Applicants and/or co-applicants who are Individuals must:
1. be 19 years of age or older and
2. must be Canadian citizens or permanent residents of

Canada. (Except if you are applying for a Private Moorage)

Applicants and/or co-applicants who are Organizations must
either:

1. be incorporated or registered in British Columbia
(Corporations also include registered partnerships,
cooperatives, and non-profit societies which are formed
under the relevant Provincial statutes) or

2. First Nations who can apply through Band corporations or
Indian Band and Tribal Councils (Band or Tribal Councils
require a Band Council Resolution).

Yes

TECHNICAL INFORMATION
Please provide us with the following general information about you and your application:

EXISTING TENURE DETAILS

Do you hold another Crown Land Tenure? No

ALL SEASONS RESORTS
The All Seasons Resorts Program serves to support the development of Alpine Ski and non-ski resorts on Crown land. For more detailed
information on this program please see the operational policy and if you have further questions please contact FrontCounter BC.

Are you applying within an alpine ski resort? No

WHAT IS YOUR INTENDED USE OF CROWN LAND?
Use the "Add Purpose" button to select a proposed land use from the drop down menu.
If you wish to use Crown land for a short term, low impact activity you may not need to apply for tenure, you may be authorized under
the Permissions policy or Private Moorage policy.

Attachment A

207



Tracking Number: 100228850  |  Version 1.1  |  Submitted Date: Nov 3, 2017 Page 2 of 5

To determine if your use is permissible under the Land Act please refer to either the Land Use Policy - Permissions or Land Use Policy -
Private Moorage located here.

Purpose Tenure Period
Private Moorage
Private Moorage Application in
marine waters.

Specific Permission More than thirty years

ACCESS TO CROWN LAND

Please describe how you plan to access your
proposed crown land from the closest public
road:

I've been working with the local authority having jurisdiction, Sunshine Coast
Regional District (SCRD).  This application is for a very remote parcel of land
located in Baker Bay, which is 22km north of Earl's Cove.  The property has no
roadway infrastructure in place, so all access to the property is by water only.
Water taxi, boat and/or float plane are the mechanisms.

PRIVATE MOORAGE
Private Moorage is the allocation of aquatic Crown land (inland and coastal) for private moorage facilities such as a dock or float.
Moorage facilities for group or strata title/ condominium developments of  over three berths are administered under the provisions of
the Residential program where they have no related commercial facilities (e.g. gas bars) and are intended for private use of tenants.
Group moorage with commercial activities are administered under the Marina program.

Specific Purpose: Private Moorage Application in marine waters.
Period: More than thirty years
Tenure: Specific Permission

MOORING BUOY
Is this only for a mooring buoy for private
moorage?

No

TOTAL APPLICATION AREA
Please give us some information on the size of the area you are applying for.

Please specify the area: .144 hectares

PROJECT DETAILS
Please provide us with further details on your dock.

Is the water freshwater or marine? Marine
Are you proposing 4 or more slips? Yes
Are you applying on behalf of a Strata
corporation?

No

Are you the waterfront upland owner? Yes
Are you planning to sell gas at the proposed
marina?

No

SECTION 11 WATER AUTHORIZATION
You may also require a Section 11 Water Sustainability Act authorization.

Is this application for an existing structure? No

IMPORTANT CONSIDERATIONS
Selecting yes to any of the following questions may indicate that you will require further or additional authorizations under the Land Act
or other legislation.

Is your proposed activity within the Kootenay Region? No

Is your proposed activity within the Okanagan, Kalamalka and
Wood Lakes, Skaha Lake, Vaseux Lake, or Christina Lake areas?

No

Is your proposed activity within the Shuswap, Mara, Mable, or Little
Shuswap Lake areas?

No

208



Tracking Number: 100228850  |  Version 1.1  |  Submitted Date: Nov 3, 2017 Page 3 of 5

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS
In many cases you might require other authorizations or permits in order to complete your project. In order to make that determination
and point you in the right direction please answer the questions below. In addition, your application may be referred to other agencies
for comments.

Is the Applicant or any Co-Applicant or their Spouse(s) an employee
of the Provincial Government of British Columbia?

No

Are you planning to cut timber on the Crown Land you are applying
for?

No

Are you planning to use an open fire to burn timber or other
materials?

No

Do you want to transport heavy equipment or materials on an
existing forest road?

No

Are you planning to work in or around water? No

Does your operation fall within a park area? No

LOCATION INFORMATION

LAND DETAILS

Please provide information on the location and shape of your Crown land application area. You can use one or more of the tools
provided.

 I will upload a PDF, JPG or other digital file(s)
MAP FILES

Your PDF, JPG or other digital file must show your application area in relation to nearby communities, highways, railways or other land
marks.

Description Filename Purpose
Application area - Baker Bay applicationareaimage2017-11... Private Moorage

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS

Document Type Description Filename
General Location Map General location map(s) General_location_image2017-...

Management Plan Management Plan   Construction Phasing attachment Management_Plan_image2017-1..
.

Other Other supporting documentation - Proof of upland
ownership.  SCRD comments, evidence of shishalh
Nation contact.

Supporting_documentation_im...

Side Profile Side view - Plan D Side_profile_image2017-11-0...

209



Tracking Number: 100228850  |  Version 1.1  |  Submitted Date: Nov 3, 2017 Page 4 of 5

Site Photographs Site photos of the proposed area. Site_photos_image2017-11-02...

Site Plan Site Plans A,B,C & D PlanABCD_image2017-11-02-15...

PRIVACY DECLARATION

 Check here to indicate that you have read and agree to the privacy declaration stated above.
REFERRAL INFORMATION

Some applications may also be passed on to other agencies, ministries or other affected parties for referral or consultation purposes. A
referral or notification is necessary when the approval of your application might affect someone else's rights or resources or those of
the citizens of BC. An example of someone who could receive your application for referral purposes is a habitat officer who looks after
the fish and wildlife in the area of your application. This does not apply to all applications and is done only when required.

Please enter contact information below for the person who would best answer questions about your application that may arise from
anyone who received a referral or notification.

Company / Organization:
Contact Name: Stefan Johnston
Contact Address: 15 Hamilton Cres. Crescent

St. Albert AB  T8N6R6
Contact Phone: 780-970-1481
Contact Email: stefan.johnston@hotmail.ca

 I hereby consent to the disclosure of the information contained in this application to other agencies, government ministries or
other affected parties for referral or First Nation consultation purposes.

IMPORTANT NOTICES

 Once you click 'Next' the application will be locked down and you will NOT be able to edit it any more.
DECLARATION
 By submitting this application form, I, declare that the information contained on this  form is complete and accurate.

OTHER INFORMATION

Is there any other information you
would like us to know?

Our family acquired this land several years ago in the interest of enjoying its natural
beauty and ensuring that it remains unspoiled for future generations.  It's a large
parcel of land in a very remote area of the Sunshine Coast and as such, has proven
somewhat difficult for us to access the land in a safe and reliable manner.  There are
no roadways of plans for future infrastructure, so the access will remain by water
only.  The specifics of the proposed dock design are driven by several important
factors, namely the guidelines for handicap/disabled access, the number and type of
vessels (minimum of 4, including landing craft and barges), as well as a requirement
for these vessels to be moored on a year round basis.

APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED FEES

Item Amount Taxes Total Outstanding Balance
Crown Land Tenure Application Fee $250.00 GST @ 5%: $12.50 $262.50 $0.00
OFFICE

Office to submit application to: Surrey

PROJECT INFORMATION

Is this application for an activity or project which
requires more than one natural resource
authorization from the Province of BC?

No

210



Tracking Number: 100228850  |  Version 1.1  |  Submitted Date: Nov 3, 2017 Page 5 of 5

APPLICANT SIGNATURE
Applicant Signature Date

OFFICE USE ONLY
Office

Surrey
File Number Project Number

Disposition ID Client Number

211

admitrie
Typewritten Text
2412001

admitrie
Typewritten Text
264987



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



This map is a user generated static output from an Internet 
mapping site and is for general reference only. Data layers that 
appear on this map may or may not be accurate, current, or 
otherwise reliable. 
THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION. 

Edit Your Online Registries Center: 49°55'50", -124°2'18"
Scale: 1 : 4,232
SRS: EPSG:3857
UTM Zone: 10

Legend
Tantalis Layers - Operational
Survey Parcels

Interest Parcels

EYOR
Interest Parcel:961506

Page 1 of 1

2018-02-22https://portal.nrs.gov.bc.ca/eyor_portlet/resources/cwm/assets/print-landscape.html?ab61...
229



230



231



232



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT 

TO: Planning and Community Development Committee – June 14, 2018 

AUTHOR: Sven Koberwitz, Planning Technician 

SUBJECT: DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT APPLICATION DVP00032 (PENDER HARBOUR 
RESORT AND MARINA) - ELECTORAL AREA A 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

THAT the report titled Development Variance Permit Application DVP00032 (Pender 
Harbour Resort and Marina) - Electoral Area A be received;  

AND THAT Development Variance Permit DVP00032 to vary the exterior side parcel line 
setback from 5.0 metres to 1.5 metres, per Section 811.2 of Zoning Bylaw No. 337, be 
issued, subject to: 

1. The Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure issue a non-encroachment
permit for the building to be sited within 4.5 metres of a public road allowance;

2. Submission of a report prepared by a professional engineer, addressing
geotechnical hazards include coastal slopes and coastal flooding;

3. Consideration of comments received from the shíshálh Nation within the 60 day
referral period.

BACKGROUND 

SCRD has received a development variance permit application for a property located at 4686 
Sinclair Bay Road, Pender Harbour (Figure 1). The intent of the application is to relax the parcel 
line setback from 5 metres to 1.5 metres to enable the construction of a new cottage intended 
for tourism accommodation within a tourist commercial zone. 

Owner / Applicant: Murray Warman for Pender Harbour Resort Ltd. 

Civic Address: 4686 Sinclair Bay Road 

Legal Description: Lot A of Lot 1 Block 1 District Lot 1397 Plan 4479 

Electoral Area: A - Egmont/Pender Harbour Parcel Area: 1.87 hectares 

OCP Land Use: Tourist Commercial Land Use Zone: C2 

Application Intent: To reduce the exterior side parcel line setback from 5.0 metres to 1.5 metres to allow the 
construction of a new cottage. 

Table 1 - Application Summary 

ANNEX K

233



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00032 (Pender Harbour Resort and Marina) 
- Electoral Area A  Page 2 of 5 

DVP00032 Staff Report PCDC 14-June-2018 

Figure 1 - Location Map 

The Pender Harbour Resort and Marina currently operates a tourist commercial facility on the 
subject property. The resort offers tourism accommodations and in an effort to expand rental 
capacity is building a new cottage on the southwest corner of the property. To maximize the 
useable space on the property the applicant has requested to have the western side lot parcel 
since setback relaxed from 5 metres to 1.5 metres. 

The purpose of this report is to provide information on the application and to obtain direction 
from the Board. 

DISCUSSION 

Analysis 

The setback to all parcel lines within the C2 zone is 5 metres. This particular property line is an 
undeveloped road allowance where, in addition to the zoning bylaw setback, a 4.5 metre 
setback is required by the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure. It is unlikely that the 
road will be developed due to the presence of steep and rocky terrain within the right-of-way. 
The intent of the right-of-way is to provide public access to the foreshore. The SCRD in some 
cases uses road right-of-ways to develop trails to the foreshore, however there are no plans to 
do so at this location. Planning staff do not believe a reduction in the setback would impact any 
future trail access. 

The Farrington Cove subdivision is located to the west beyond the right-of-way. Noise 
associated with the operation of the resort is a possible impact resulting from a reduced 
setback. However, staff believe that the 20 metre width of the road right-of-way mitigates this 
concern. 

234



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00032 (Pender Harbour Resort and Marina) 
- Electoral Area A  Page 3 of 5 

 

DVP00032 Staff Report PCDC 14-June-2018 

A permit from the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure stating that the applicant can 
locate a building within 4.5 metres of a road will be required prior to issuance of the 
development variance permit. 

Figure 2 - Proposed Cabin Location 

Official Community Plan 

Under section 2.8 of the Egmont/Pender Harbour Official Community Plan it states that “tourist 
commercial properties are an important part of the Egmont/Pender Harbour community. They 
provide an economic and social benefit and are frequented by residents and tourists alike”. 

The applicant has stated that their intent is to expand the capacity of the Pender Harbour 
Resort. 

New development permit areas are proposed as part of the review of the Egmont/Pender 
Harbour OCP. Proposed DPA #1A (Coastal Flooding) and DPA #1B (Coastal Slopes) affect the 
subject property. Therefore staff recommend that the applicant be required to submit a report 
prepared by a qualified professional that addresses the proposed development permit area 
guidelines. 

Consultation 

The development variance permit application has been referred to the following parties for 
comment: 

235



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00032 (Pender Harbour Resort and Marina) 
- Electoral Area A  Page 4 of 5 
 

 

DVP00032 Staff Report PCDC 14-June-2018 

Referral Comments 

SCRD Building Department No concerns with the application. 

shíshálh Nation Referral sent on March 19, 2018. No comments 
have been received to date. 

Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure 
Supports this application and will issue a permit 
allow the siting of a building within 4.5 metres of a 
public road. 

Neighbouring Property Owners/Occupiers 

Notifications were distributed on March 22, 2018 to 
owners and occupiers of properties within a 100 
metre radius of the subject property. No comments 
have been received to date. 

Options 

Possible options to consider: 

Option 1: Issue the permit. 

The applicant would be permitted to locate a cottage at a reduced setback of 1.5 
metres from the western parcel line. Issuance of the permit would be subject to: 

1. A permit being issued by the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure 
allowing a building to be sited within 4.5 metres of a public road; 

2. A report being submitted, prepared by a professional engineer, that 
addresses the proposed development permit area guidelines for DPA 1A 
(Coastal Flooding) and DPA 1B (Coastal Slopes) in the Draft 
Egmont/Pender Harbour Official Community Plan; 

3. Consideration of comments received from the shíshálh Nation within the 
60 day referral period. 

This is staffs' recommended option. 

Option 2: Deny the permit. 

A 5.0 metre setback would continue to apply and the applicant would need to 
revise their proposal to meet this requirement. 

STRATEGIC PLAN AND RELATED POLICIES 

N/A 

236



Staff Report to Planning and Community Development Committee - June 14, 2018 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00032 (Pender Harbour Resort and Marina) 
- Electoral Area A  Page 5 of 5 

 

DVP00032 Staff Report PCDC 14-June-2018 

CONCLUSION 

SCRD has received a development variance permit application for a property located at 4686 
Sinclair Bay Road, Pender Harbour (Figure 1). The intent of the application is to relax the parcel 
line setback from 5 metres to 1.5 metres to enable the construction of a new cottage intended 
for tourism accommodation. 

The road right-of-way located to the west of the property is likely to remain undeveloped and 
siting of a cottage at 1.5 metres from the parcel line is unlikely to impact adjacent neighbours. 

Planning staff support this application subject to the recommended conditions. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Photographs of Subject Property 
Attachment B – Survey/Plan 

Reviewed by: 
Manager X - A. Allen Finance 
GM X - I. Hall Legislative 
CAO X – J. Loveys Other 

237



Attachment A

1 Location of Road Allowance 

2 Location of Proposed Cabin 

238



239

Sven.Koberwitz
Text Box
Attachment B



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT

AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

April 24, 2018

MINUTES FROM THE AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD IN THE
CEDAR ROOM AT THE SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT OFFICES, 1975 FIELD
ROAD, SECHELT, BC

PRESENT: Chair David Morgan

Members Paul Nash
Gerald Rainville
Jon Bell
Gretchen Bozak
Barbara Seed
Erin Dutton

ALSO PRESENT: Manager, Planning and Development Andrew Allen
Electoral Area D Director Mark Lebbell
Planner /Recorder Julie Clark

REGRETS: Member Faye Kiewitz

ABSENT: Member Rupert Adams

CALL TO ORDER 3:32 p.m.

INTRODUCTIONS Director Lebbell is in attendance on behalf of the SCRD Board.

AGENDA The agenda was adopted as presented.

MINUTES

Recommendation No. 1 AAC Meeting Minutes for March 27, 2018 

The Agricultural Advisory Committee recommended that the meeting minutes of March 27, 2018
be received and approved as presented.

BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS
Key points of discussion:

 Update on recommendation regarding inviting referrals from other municipalities, the
Rockford property and Persephone?

 Manager, Planning and Development, noted the Rockford property application will be on
the May 2018, Planning and Community Development Committee meeting agenda.

 Persephone’s application could be placed on the June 2018, Planning and Community
Development Committee meeting agenda.

ANNEX L

240



Agricultural Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes – April 24, 2018 Page 2

REPORTS

Recommendation No. 2 Review of Zoning Bylaw 310 – Electoral Areas B-F 

The Agricultural Advisory Committee recommended that the report titled Review of Zoning Bylaw 310
– Electoral Area B-F (Carried over from the March 27, 2018 meeting) be received.

Key points of discussion:

 The Advisory summit meetings are early in the process of engagement, with the intent to
build an understanding of process and content that will be updated.

 No feedback required at this time, assistance required for anticipating the community’s
needs.

 In the Summary Paper for Zoning Bylaw 310 the focus for residential agricultural is on
honey bees and chickens. When the AAC provides comments pertaining to the Bylaw
consideration should be given to expand the focus.

 Home based businesses, if located on the highway signage is regulated in Bylaw 310.
Further investigation required for proper signage and traffic congestion.

 AAC suggests a food charter as preparation for the zoning bylaw feedback.
 Cannabis will need to be addressed in review of the Bylaw.
 How to control home based businesses that might not be safe next to farms i.e. auto

mechanics. How can the Zoning Bylaw address this? Concern there is no limitations.
 Is there a relation between the SCRD Ag. Plan and the Residential Agricultural Strategy,

trends and opportunities.

Recommendation No. 3 Review of Zoning Bylaw 310 – Electoral Areas B-F

The Agricultural Advisory Committee recommended that a formal invitation be sent to Megan
Molnar, Vancouver Coastal Health to present efforts regarding a food production in the context
of informing the AAC’s response to the Zoning Bylaw 310 update.

Recommendation No. 4 Review of Zoning Bylaw 310 – Electoral Areas B-F 

The Agricultural Advisory Committee recommended that a formal invitation be sent to
Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) staff to provide an update on recent policy changes,
familiarize with ALC roles and direction to assist the AAC in providing feedback for the Zoning
Bylaw 310 update;

AND THAT the SCRD include the link to the ALC guidebook on bylaw development in next
month’s agenda package.

NEW BUSINESS
The AAC expressed interest in organizing workshops on agricultural issues i.e. zoning bylaw
policy for SCRD water use during water restrictions, farm housing, farm gate sales, Ag plan,
food and non-food production (flower/cannabis), and food security.

The AAC expressed interest to review the Ag plan in relation to the Zoning Bylaw process and
consider looking at having an information session on agricultural water use.

NEXT MEETING Tuesday, May 22, 2018

ADJOURNMENT 5:12 p.m.

241



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT

AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

May 22, 2018

MINUTES FROM THE AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD IN THE
CEDAR ROOM AT THE SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT OFFICES, 1975 FIELD
ROAD, SECHELT, BC

PRESENT: Chair David Morgan

Members Paul Nash
Gretchen Bozak
Barbara Seed (part)

ALSO PRESENT: Electoral Area D Director Mark Lebbell
Manager, Planning and Development Andrew Allen
Planner Julie Clark
Vancouver Coastal Health Meghan Molnar (part)
Vancouver Coastal Health Chris Morse
Planning Office Assistant /Recorder Genevieve Dixon

REGRETS: Member Faye Kiewitz
Erin Dutton

ABSENT: Member Gerald Rainville
Jon Bell

CALL TO ORDER 3:35 p.m.

INTRODUCTIONS Director Lebbell is in attendance on behalf of the SCRD Board.

AGENDA The agenda was adopted as presented.

DELEGATIONS

Meghan Molnar from Vancouver Coastal Health (VCH) presented the draft food charter report for
the Sunshine Coast to the AAC. Chris Morse from VCH was also present for the discussion.

Key points of discussion:

 Five year Strategic Plans were looked at by VCH staff from the Town of Gibsons, District
of Sechelt and the SCRD.

 VCH looked at other jurisdiction food charters off the Sunshine Coast on how they are
looking at adopting the process.

 If we want to work toward a resilient food supply on the Sunshine Coast during
emergencies, is there anything related to Bylaws that would be barriers or facilitators?

 Are there anything related to bylaws that would be barriers or facilitators to larger scale
animal production on the coast?

 Should we be tackling or discussing water use and food production in relation to bylaws?

ANNEX M

242



Agricultural Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes – May 22, 2018 Page 2

 Not a lot of animal meat production on the Sunshine Coast, for commercial use.
 No emergency long term plan for food, more large scale food production needed.
 How to welcome more food based home businesses.
 Food cold storage options for local food production and commercial stores.
 If BC Ferry services weren’t operating the Coast would be short of food within a couple

days.
 Local meat capacity production can be easily approved.
 Class D meat classification license is available to locals at a, 25 animal limit maximum

(25000lbs total per year) to sell to the public.
 Need more on farm production and processing.
 Zoning approval for community gardens.
 Are processing facilities noted in the Ag plan?
 Commercial food production comes with lot of public backlash i.e. signage
 Value added processing facilities i.e. fermented foods etc.
 Processing facilities on agricultural land?
 More available land in the ALR.

MINUTES

Recommendation No. 1 AAC Meeting Minutes for April 24, 2018 

The Agricultural Advisory Committee recommended that the meeting minutes of April 24, 2018 be
received and approved as amended, as follows:

ADD – Recommendation No. 5 Review of Zoning Bylaw 310 – Electoral Areas B-F 

The Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends, if directed by the SCRD Board, to assist in
creation of policy statements on agricultural issues such as availability of potable water.

BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS
Director Lebbell discussed with the AAC that a recommendation regarding water sourcing policy
will be put forth to the Infrastructure Committee Board meeting this month. The SCRD Board may
ask the AAC to look further into agricultural water.

REPORTS

Review of Zoning Bylaw 310 – Electoral Areas B-F

Key points of discussion:

 Review of Zoning Bylaw to remain on agenda for next meeting.
 The SCRD Advisory Summit workshop is schedule to begin in June 2018. The AAC is

encouraged to respond and RSVP to Julie Clark’s email that was sent out to members
regarding the summit.

NEXT MEETING Tuesday, June 19, 2018

ADJOURNMENT 5:05 p.m.

243



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT
NATURAL RESOURCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE

May 16, 2018

MINUTES FROM THE NATURAL RESOURCES ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD IN 
THE CEDAR ROOM AT THE SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT OFFICES, 1975 FIELD 
ROAD, SECHELT, BC 

PRESENT:  Members Anayansi Cohen-Fernandez 
Gordon Cassidy 
Gordon Littlejohn 
Burt Myers 

ALSO PRESENT: Senior Planner  David Rafael 
Planner Julie Clark  
Planning Office Assistant/Recorder Genevieve Dixon 

REGRETS: Member Gordon White 
Bill Henwood 

ABSENT: Member Andre Sobolewski 
Shawna Van Poppelen 
David Rush 
Gerald Shaffer 
Mariel Yglesias 

Electoral Area A Director Frank Mauro  

CALL TO ORDER 3:35 p.m. 

AGENDA The agenda was adopted as presented. 

INTRODUCTIONS

David Rafael, Senior Planner acted as the Chair for the meeting. 

Roundtable introductions of the Natural Resource Advisory Committee members and staff 
present at the meeting. 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

Natural Resource Advisory Committee Terms of Reference 

The NRAC Terms of Reference were reviewed in detail with the Committee. A PowerPoint 
orientation presentation was displayed for the committee with an overview of the Planning 
processes and the SCRD role as an organization. 

Regarding specific points in the Terms of Reference: 

 Electronic copies of the agenda will be circulated to Committee members one week prior
to the meeting.

ANNEX N

244



Natural Resource Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes – May 16, 2018 Page 2 

ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR

Natural Resource Advisory Committee agreed that selection of Chair and Vice Chair will be 
considered at the next meeting.  

REPORTS

BC Timber Sales Operations 2018 - 2022 

Key points of discussion: 

 The SCRD receives an annual update from BCTS each year, for five year cut block
plans.

 BCTS should map out the eelgrass along the coastal areas
 Has BCTS commented on the eelgrass mapping and sensitive ecosystems?
 What is around the cut blocks as far as growth and regeneration?
 SCRD staff to provide comments back to BCTS by June 5, 2018. NRAC will be able to

submit feedback to BCTS through staff past the due date.
 SCRD staff to invite NRAC to a future NRAC meeting to go over the BCTS proposed cut

block 5 year plan for 2019.

Recommendation No. 1   BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022
The Natural Resource Advisory Committee accepts the SCRD staff’s recommendations as 
amended; 

AND THAT the Natural Resource Advisory Committee requests further time to review the BCTS 
report. Further recommendations may be added next meeting; 

AND THAT the Natural Resource Advisory Committee recommends that BCTS include an 
appropriately designed buffer for the wind firm around in the Coastal Douglas Fir biogeoclimatic 
zone.  

Recommendation No. 2   BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022
The Natural Resource Advisory Committee recommended that the SCRD staff invite BCTS to 
attend a future NRAC meeting. 

Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Regarding Langdale Ferry Terminal 
Pedestrian Walkway – Electoral Area F. 

Key points of discussion: 

 Environmental study was discussed.
 Forged fish spawning on the foreshore area to be protected.
 A Building permit will be applied for, for the pedestrian walkway.
 Space confinement an issue for proposed pedestrian walkway.
 Viewing platform information on creek is vague, not a lot of detail noted on how to

protect the environment. No tide chart information with respect to sediment movement
during construction.

 No rationale for best practices for construction for moved and added sediments.
 Why the widening of the causeway? Staff will seek an answer and note it in Planning

and community Development Committee report.

245



Natural Resource Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes – May 16, 2018  Page 3 
 
 
Recommendation No. 3 Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. 
Regarding Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway – Electoral Area F. 

The Natural Resources Advisory Committee recommended that the BC Ferry Services Inc. 
assessment report, provide a broader description of best management practices be used during 
construction with respect to sediment. 
 
NEXT MEETING Tuesday, June 20, 2018 

ADJOURNMENT 5:21 p.m. 

246



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT

EGMONT / PENDER HARBOUR (AREA A)
ADVISORY PLANNING COMMISSION

May 30, 2018

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE AREA A ADVISORY PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING HELD IN THE LIBRARY AT PENDER HARBOUR SECONDARY SCHOOL, 13639
SUNSHINE COAST HWY, MADEIRA PARK, BC

PRESENT: Chair Alan Skelley

Members Janet Dickin
Peter Robson
Gordon Littlejohn
Alex Thomson
Dennis Burnham
Gordon Politeski
Catherine McEachern
Yovhan Burega

ALSO PRESENT: Area A Director Frank Mauro
Recording Secretary Kelly Kammerle
DVP00022 Tony Pownall & Scott Davis

REGRETS: Tom Silvey
Sean McAllister
Jane McOuat

CALL TO ORDER  7:00 pm

AGENDA   The agenda was adopted as presented.

DELEGATIONS

Tony Pownall and Scott Davis, Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall)

MINUTES 

Area A Minutes

The Area A APC minutes of April 25, 2018 were approved as circulated.

ANNEX O

247



Area A Advisory Planning Commission Minutes – May 30, 2018   Page 2 

The following minutes were received for information: 

Halfmoon Bay (Area B) APC Minutes of April 24, 2018 
Roberts Creek (Area D) APC Minutes of April 16, 2018  
Elphinstone (Area E) APC Minutes of April 25, 2018  
West Howe Sound (Area F) APC Minutes of April 24, 2018 
Planning and Community Development Committee Minutes of April 12, 2018 
 
REPORTS 
 
Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 (Pownall) 
 
The APC recommends approval of Development Variance Permit Application DVP00022 
with the following comments: 
  

 SCRD conditions are met. 
 No strenuous objections are received from neighbours once they have been notified. 
 The APC would like information regarding any covenants on title for all referrals in 

the future. 
 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Area A Director Mauro provided a verbal report of his activities. 

NEXT MEETING June 27, 2018  

ADJOURNMENT 7:40 p.m. 

 

 

248



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT

AREA B - HALFMOON BAY
ADVISORY PLANNING COMMISSION

May 22, 2018

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE AREA B ADVISORY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
HELD IN THE COOPERS GREEN COMMUNITY HALL AT COOPERS GREEN PARK, 5500
FISHERMAN ROAD, HALFMOON BAY, BC

PRESENT: Chair Frank Belfry

Members  
 

Area B Director

ALSO PRESENT: Recording Secretary Katrina Walters

REGRETS: Members  

 

CALL TO ORDER 7:00 p.m.

AGENDA The agenda was adopted with the following amendments:

Business Arising from Minutes and Unfinished Business

Zoning Bylaw 310 Advisory Meeting Summit

MINUTES

Area B Minutes

The Area B APC minutes of April 24, 2018 were adopted as presented.

Barbara Bolding
Guy Tremblay
Bruce Thorpe
Alda Grames
Jim Noon

 

REGRETS 
Len Pakulak
Eleanor nz 
Joan Harvey 

Elise Rudland
Marina Stjepovic
Lorn Campbell
Eleanor Lenz

Garry Nohr

ANNEX P

249



Area B Advisory Planning Commission Minutes - May 22, 2018  Page 2 
 
Minutes  

The following minutes were received for information: 

 Egmont / Pender Harbour (Area A) APC Minutes, April 25, 2018 
 Roberts Creek (Area D) APC Minutes, April 16, 2018 
 Elphinstone (Area E) APC Minutes, April 25, 2018 
 West Howe Sound (Area F) APC Minutes, April 24, 2018 
 Planning and Development Committee Minutes, April 12, 2018. 

 
BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Zoning Bylaw 310 Advisory Meeting Summit  

Zoning Bylaw 310 Advisory Meeting Summit changed to June 4th, 2018 and June 20th, 2018.  
For more information please refer to email send on May 18th, 2018 from Julie Clark. 
 
REPORTS 

 
Halfmoon Bay OCP Amendment Bylaw 675.6 and Zoning Amendment Bylaw 310.181-
Rockwater Resort Development 

The APC discussed the staff report regarding Halfmoon Bay OCP Amendment Bylaw 675.6 and 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw 310.181-Rockwater Resort Development.   

The following concerns/points/issues were noted: 

 Does the current sewage treatment plant meet the current standard now? Because there 
has been complaints about the smell. 

 There is a contradiction because this development is considered to be a new 
development and it proposes to use an existing ocean outfall; to me, the upgrade would 
be required to meet the Halfmoon Bay Liquid Waste Management Plan under the OCP 
which means that a new development may not utilize an existing ocean outfall. 

 There are a lot of other issues other than the issue of liquid waste disposal. 
 The Halfmoon Bay Liquid Waste Management Plan says that the goal is to produce a 

quality of water supporting shellfish harvesting. 
 Have great concerns on the Rockwater development.  The proposal does not fit with the 

existing OCP and the intent of having a hub destination on this property. 
 Suggest that the two properties be considered as one property. 
 Two APC members who were unable to be present at the meeting don’t support the 

proposal as presented. 
 Proposed parking does not seem adequate; current parking is inadequate already. 
 With a proposed total of 78 units; this equates to one unit per 385 square meters and the 

OCP allows one unit per 750 square meters. 
 Confused about parcel coverage as described on page 28 of the staff report; (parcel 

coverage is max. 27%).  Is this regarding subject parcel West of the public access road 
or combined subject parcel (both parcels together). 

 Summary of Concerns: the interpretation of the liquid waste management plan; density; 
residential use; parking; setbacks. 

 Also, the roadway itself and the lack of a clear definition of where the public access is: 
there is no demarcation when you get down to the restaurant of the demarcation of 

250



Area B Advisory Planning Commission Minutes - May 22, 2018  Page 3 
 

public road allowance.  It is really important to establish the boundaries between public 
and private property where Ole’s Cove road goes down to the water.  With the wedding 
tent there, people have been very confused when they go down there and don’t feel 
welcome as members of the public. 

 Since we are relating the density to the whole property; we should be relating the 
parking to the whole property. 

 Would like to request access to the site plan provided by the applicants. 
 It is so early on in the process; and to make a decision now, we don’t know enough. 
 The first question is: do we as an APC support an increase in density at this location? 

Consider the implications on road traffic; air traffic; waterway traffic etc….wonder about 
noise and safety. 

 Secondly, do we support increase in water consumption at this time? 
 Do we have enough information at this time to make informed comments? 
 Feel very strongly that the development should meet the 10/10 standards of the liquid 

waste management plan. 
 We need to pay attention to the OCP guidelines for 1 unit per 750 square meters and 

also about 50% open space. 
 Regarding public access, it is important that it be unfettered and clearly marked. 
 Have concerns that a variance be incorporated into the plan.  
 List of concerns: Liquid waste; Parking; Moorage; Air traffic; Density 1 unit for 750 

square meters as per the OCP; Lot coverage 50% as per the OCP; Landscaping along 
property lines as per OCP; Clarification of Public access and linking up public access 
across the waterfront; Setbacks from waterfront and adjacent properties. 

 If this is going to be a test case or precedent; look at and plan for basic ideas outlined in 
the OCP regarding public access and plans for linking up public access across the 
waterfront, etc.  If we are going to support rezoning, would like to see all of these things 
addressed. 

 Feel very strongly that the APC committee should be involved in the ongoing 
consultation process. 

 Feel that many of the issues brought forward today have been overlooked to date. There 
are fundamental questions on issues that require clarification: liquid waste management 
and parking. 

 Would also like to arrange another site visit prior to the next meeting. 
 As we get further along in the process, we should consider the visual impact of the 
building from the waterfront.  Because of the large scale of the proposal, it should be in 
keeping with the west coast style; materials, form, building scale. 

 Will we lose the tourist accommodation over time?  Supporting the residential 
component could be very negative; would rather see private residences on private land. 
Public access doesn’t mix well with residential. 

 Not prepared to make a decision until we have clarification on concerns. 
 
Recommendation No. 1.  Halfmoon Bay OCP Amendment Bylaw 675.6 and Zoning 

Amendment Bylaw 310.181-Rockwater Resort Development  

Regarding Halfmoon Bay OCP Amendment Bylaw 675.6 and Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
310.181-Rockwater Resort Development, the APC requests that a senior staff member 
knowledgeable with the development and the development process provide clarification and 
explanation to address the following concerns: 

 Liquid waste management 
 Parking 
 Moorage 

251



Area B Advisory Planning Commission Minutes - May 22, 2018  Page 4 
 

 Air traffic 
 OCP Density standard of 1 unit for every 750 square meters 
 OCP designated 50% lot coverage 
 Clarification of Public access 
 OCP guidelines for landscaping along property lines 

 
Recommendation No. 2.  Halfmoon Bay OCP Amendment Bylaw 675.6 and Zoning 

Amendment Bylaw 310.181-Rockwater Resort Development  

Regarding Halfmoon Bay OCP Amendment Bylaw 675.6 and Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
310.181-Rockwater Resort Development, the APC requests that a staff member come to the 
next APC meeting to address concerns outlined in Recommendation No.1. 
 
Recommendation No. 3.  Halfmoon Bay OCP Amendment Bylaw 675.6 and Zoning 

Amendment Bylaw 310.181-Rockwater Resort Development  

Regarding, Halfmoon Bay OCP Amendment Bylaw 675.6 and Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
310.181-Rockwater Resort Development, the APC requests that another site visit be arranged 
prior to the next meeting. 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
The Director’s Report was received. 
 
NEXT MEETING June 26, 2018 

ADJOURNMENT 8:50 p.m.  

252



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT

ROBERTS CREEK (AREA D) ADVISORY PLANNING COMMISSION

May 14, 2018

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE ROBERTS CREEK (AREA D) ADVISORY PLANNING
COMMISSION MEETING HELD IN THE ROBERTS CREEK LIBRARY READING ROOM
LOCATED AT 1044 ROBERTS CREEK ROAD, ROBERTS CREEK, B.C.

PRESENT: Chair Bill Page

Members Marion Jolicoeur
Mike Allegretti
Dana Gregory
Danise Lofstrom,
Nichola Kozakiewicz

ALSO PRESENT: Electoral Area D Director Mark Lebbell
Applicants Robert White

Brian Topping
Cheryl Topping

REGRETS: Members Heather Conn
Gerald Rainville

Recording Secretary Vicki Dobbyn

CALL TO ORDER  7:10 p.m.

AGENDA   The agenda was adopted as presented.

MINUTES

Area D Minutes

Roberts Creek (Area D) APC minutes of April 16, 2018 were approved as circulated.

Minutes

The following minutes were received for information:

 Egmont / Pender Harbour (Area A) APC Minutes of April 25, 2018
 Halfmoon Bay (Area B) APC Minutes of April 24, 2018
 Elphinstone (Area E) APC Minutes of April 25, 2018
 West Howe Sound (Area F) APC Minutes of April 24, 2018
 Planning and Community Development Committee Minutes of April 12, 2018

ANNEX Q

253



Roberts Creek (Area D) Advisory Planning Commission Minutes – May 14, 2018  
  Page 2 
 

 
REPORTS 
 
BC Timber Sales Operations 2018-2022 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
 APC supports the SCRD recommendations noted on page 1 of the report. 
 It should be added that watershed protection should include water source protection for the 

large number of residents who are not served by the SCRD-managed water supply but are 
dependent on surface and well water.  There is a large area above the Roberts Creek 
community being logged by multiple companies that will have an effect on surface and 
ground water.  

 More needs to be done at the Provincial level with all stakeholders regarding a coordinated 
plan for water source protection and for coastal land use management. 

 Logging in private managed forests needs to be brought under a standard set of logging 
conditions. 

 At lower elevations we are under-represented for parks and recreational forests.   
 District Lot 1313 should be left as a green mature forest.  It is easily accessible by a large 

number of people and has great value for tourism and recreation. 
 We recognize that logging is an integral part of our history and provincial prosperity, but there 

is a need for better integration with our growing community. Times are changing, our 
population is growing, we have a thriving ecotourism draw, and tree harvesting targets need 
to be adjusted in accordance with our current reality. 

 We appreciate that BCTS has reached out to the community in the recent meeting with APC 
members, to educate and listen to community concerns.  We look forward to further positive 
interactions and would encourage a larger consultation with a greater number of APC 
members in the future. 
 

Subdivision Application Revised Referral SD000036 (White) 2018-01477 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Robert White presented a summary of his application for subdivision, comparing the present 
version with what had been previously viewed by APC at their April 16, 2018 meeting.   
 
Recommendation No.1  Subdivision Application Revised Referral SD000036 (White) 2018-01477 
 
The APC recommended that Subdivision Application Revised Referral SD000036 (White) 2018-
01477 be supported, for the following reasons: 
 

 The panhandle driveway that existed in the previous version of this subdivision has been 
removed, thus eliminating the need for a frontage waiver. 

 Both lots have easy access from Hansen Road. 
 This is a simple subdivision of land and both lots meet the minimum area requirements.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

254



Roberts Creek (Area D) Advisory Planning Commission Minutes – May 14, 2018
Page 3

The Roberts Creek Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No.641.10, 2018 and Sunshine
Coast Regional District Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.310.179, 2018 (Topping – 2720 Lower
Road)

DISCUSSION

Brian and Cheryl Topping presented two possible layouts for subdivision of their 5800 square
meter property on 2720 Lower Road.  A key issue is the Residential E Land use designation,
that requires a minimum parcel size of 5000 square meters, due to a lack of soil depth and near
surface bedrock.  The question is whether the land is more suited to be classified Residential C,
which requires a minimum parcel size of 2000 square meters.

Recommendation No. 2: The Roberts Creek Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 
No.641.10, 2018 and Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No.310.179, 2018 (Topping – 2720 Lower 
Road) 

The APC recommended that subdivision be supported, for the following reasons:

 On the Topping property there is very little exposed rock (at one corner of the property
only) and significant depth of mineral soil elsewhere.

 Subdivision could create two properties of at least 2000 square meters.
 There are seven neighboring properties of about 2000 square meters or less near the

Topping property.  Although these subdivisions were done a long time ago, it does show
that a property of this size in this area can be supported by a standard septic field.

 As well, septic treatment design has improved significantly and can be designed to serve
smaller lots and various soil conditions.

 One APC member noted that he has a compact septic field and sewage treatment plant
on a 700 square meter property.

 The neighbors support the subdivision.
 Culverts are already in place from Lower Road to each subdivided parcel.

Recommendation No. 3: The Roberts Creek Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 
No.641.10, 2018 and Sunshine Coast Regional District Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No.310.179, 2018 (Topping – 2720 Lower 
Road)

The APC recommended that, subject to septic treatment design, one single family dwelling
(SFD) plus one auxiliary dwelling be approved for the subdivided properties, for the following
reasons.

 The preferred subdivision is with the larger piece 3400 square meters held by the
Toppings and the smaller triangular piece 2400 square meters made available for sale
(Proposal 2 in application).

 The area available for building on the triangular parcel will be restricted by setbacks and
screening from Lower Road and Woodley Road and by septic field requirements.  There
was a question whether some trees should be preserved in the west part of the triangle
to screen neighbors from Lower Road.

 An auxiliary dwelling would have less impact on the site than a second SFD.
 The auxiliary dwelling could be useful to create a rental unit and contribute to affordable

living on the Coast, as well as create a revenue stream for the property owners.

255



Roberts Creek (Area D) Advisory Planning Commission Minutes – May 14, 2018  
  Page 4 
 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
The Director’s Report was received. 
 
NEXT MEETING June 18, 2018  
 
ADJOURNMENT 8:45 p.m. 

256



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT

AREA E – ELPHINSTONE
ADVISORY PLANNING COMMISSION

May 30, 2018

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE AREA E ADVISORY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
HELD AT FRANK WEST HALL, 1224 CHASTER ROAD, ELPHINSTONE, BC

PRESENT: Chair Mary Degan

Members Nara Brenchley
Dougald Macdonald

ALSO PRESENT: Recording Secretary Diane Corbett
Public 1

REGRETS: Electoral Area E Director Lorne Lewis
Alternate Director Laurella Hay
Members Rod Moorcroft

Lynda Chamberlin
Rob Bone
Jenny Groves

ABSENT: Members Patrick Fitzsimons
Bob Morris

CALL TO ORDER 7:00 p.m.

AGENDA The agenda was adopted as amended:

 Add under Unfinished Business: Continued Review of Zoning Bylaw No. 310.

Chair Degan reminded members of the June 4, 2018 and June 20, 2018 advisory summit
meetings.

DELEGATIONS

Geraldine Bodmer regarding Subdivision Application Referral SD000044

Geraldine Bodmer distributed copies of a proposed subdivision plan and outlined reasons and
justification for a request to subdivide an RU1-zoned property into two lots. Many adjacent
properties had been subdivided. There had been no objection expressed by neighbouring
property owners. The proposal was approved by Vancouver Coastal Health.

ANNEX R

257



Elphinstone (Area E) Advisory Commission Minutes May 30, 2018 Page 2 
 
MINUTES 

Elphinstone (Area E) Minutes  

The Elphinstone (Area E) Advisory Planning Commission minutes of April 25, 2018 were 
approved as circulated. 

Minutes  

Minutes received for information included: 

 Egmont/Pender Harbour (Area A) APC Minutes of April 25, 2018   
 Halfmoon Bay (Area B) APC Minutes of April 24, 2018   
 Roberts Creek (Area D) APC Minutes of April 16, 2018   
 West Howe Sound (Area F) APC Minutes of April 24, 2018   
 Planning and Community Development Committee Minutes of April 12, 2018  

REPORTS 

Subdivision Application Referral SD000044 (Bodmer)  

The APC discussed the staff report regarding Subdivision Application Referral SD000044 
(Bodmer). Ms. Bodmer responded to inquiries from the APC. 

The following points were noted: 

 The proposal is straightforward. 
 It fits into the Official Community Plan.  
 No outstanding issues. 
 No objection. 
 Surrounding properties have been subdivided. 

Recommendation No. 1 Subdivision Application Referral SD000044 (Bodmer)  

The APC recommended that Subdivision Application Referral SD000044 (Bodmer) be 
supported for the following reasons: 

 The APC has no objections. 
 The proposal seems to fit all the requirements for a subdivision of this nature. 
 The proposal is in accordance with development in the area.  
 A lot of infrastructure has been put into place due to subdivision of the surrounding 

properties. 

BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Continued Review of Zoning Bylaw No. 310 

The APC continued considerations of the commentary and questions contained in the staff 
report on the Zoning Bylaw No. 310 Review, received by the APC at its meeting of March 28, 
2018, at which members considered questions on housing diversity. 

 

258



Elphinstone (Area E) Advisory Commission Minutes May 30, 2018 Page 3

There was ensuing discussion on the proposed new size of an auxiliary dwelling and needed
policies, such as protection of view corridors and consideration of impacts on neighbours; the
cost of housing; and tiny homes.

(Following are questions on “key opportunities” listed in the staff report and APC member
responses.)

Key opportunity: Residential Agriculture

9. Should the keeping of honeybees be permitted in all zones, except multi-family residential
zones, with appropriate regulations? If so, what regulations would you suggest? (parcel size,
setback, number of beehives)

 All of the above: parcel size, setback, number of beehives
 Setback should be around seven metres. It should be fenced.
 Number of hives should be relative to size of lot.
 One complaint about bees: if they are on a not commonly used pathway, they leave

a trail of excrement.
 The question needs to be answered by the Beekeepers Association of the Sunshine

Coast and the Agricultural Advisory Committee, who have expertise to know what
bees need, and who could advise to help set up regulations. SCRD should work in
tandem with organizations that know what bees need to be healthy.

 A main issue is the possibility of people with allergies getting stung; thus, the
suitability of setbacks.

 Honeybees are an essential part of food production. Keeping bees should be
encouraged as long as it is done humanely and safely.

 Concern: if there is transmission of disease. The owner would have to burn
everything. If there were a number of beekeepers in the area who were not careful,
this could cause trouble.

 There could be a licensing requirement, so it will be known where the hives are, and
so people do know what they are doing.

10. Should the keeping of hens be permitted in all zones, except multi-family residential zones,
with appropriate regulations? If so, what regulations would you suggest? (parcel size,
setback, number of hens)

 Four hens per lot are permitted in Vancouver on small lots; no roosters.
 Number of hens should be related to parcel size.  Hens are very quiet.
 Challenge: in a wildlife zone, roosters can protect the flock, but they can make a lot

of noise. Hens do attract wildlife, like bears, raccoons, and rats.
 Peacocks should not be allowed in all zones.
 There are practices that work best to minimize conflicts with wildlife. Have basic

guidelines as to how the keeping of hens is done. There are things to do to minimize
conflict with rats. There are methods for composting manure to keep the smell down.
Have a series of workshops showing good practices, set out by the Agricultural
Advisory Committee, based on what it takes to have a small flock.

 We are in a wildlife zone. Safety first. If anything is a wildlife attractant, you will
probably need an electric fence.

 Key with this is education. People are doing their best to be growing their own food.
SCRD should provide a series of guidelines: e.g., a brochure with “if you want to
keep chickens” guidelines.

 Whenever you allow this in denser areas, you need bylaw officers, systems for
dealing with problems. An easier solution: no chickens.

259



Elphinstone (Area E) Advisory Commission Minutes May 30, 2018 Page 4 
 
11. What are your thoughts on roosters? (permitted anywhere there are chickens, rural 

properties only, etc?)    

 Roosters protect chickens and produce fertile eggs. 
 Don’t need roosters to grow food.  
 Say no roosters outside ALR. 
 This cannot be restricted to ALR if we are going to produce food on the Sunshine 

Coast. Most of food grown here isn’t coming from ALR lands. Minimum lot size: 2 
acres. 

 Roosters: not in densely populated areas. 
 Minimum ½ acre; safer 2 acres; doesn’t have to be ALR land. 
 Roosters of domestic chickens could be a problem in residential areas.  

12. Should the Zoning Bylaw restrict the sale of the food produced on a property, such as eggs 
or honey?    

 Eggs are safe. But isn’t there trouble with botulism with honey? 
 If someone has a roadside stand, SCRD needs regulations regarding the setback, 

providing parking space or a safe place to pull off. 

13. Are there other barriers to producing food on the Sunshine Coast that the Zoning Bylaw 
should address, particularly on lands located outside of ALR?    

 Tree height – If growing something, it is all about sunlight. If interested in increasing 
food production, limit the size of trees. Say trees can’t be higher than homes. 

 Cost of land 
 Wildlife 
 Use public lands for growing food 
 Encourage community gardens 
 Swap currently forested lands and possibly Crown land designated ALR with other 

lands that are actually suited to such zoning with soil types more amenable to 
growing food.   

14. Do you have any additional thoughts on this topic?    

 Access to water 
 Work with the Vancouver Coastal Health unit to allow gray water systems. 

Encourage gray water systems. 
 Could do a lot with greenhouses to maximize food production. 
 Concern about cannabis production: smell has negative impact on some people. 
 For established veggie beds, maybe have growing corridors. 
 Encourage rainwater harvesting and storage.  
 Passive solar should be in new housing. 

Key opportunity: Home-Based Business 
 
15. What are the barriers to establishing a home occupation or business in the Sunshine Coast 

Regional District?    

 Currently none. No business license required. 
 Nothing to stop you working from home; but if you want customers coming, this may 

raise issues like noise, parking, etcetera. 

260



Elphinstone (Area E) Advisory Commission Minutes May 30, 2018 Page 5

16. What concerns could there be about a broader range of home occupations and businesses
being supported through the Zoning Bylaw?

 Cross of commercial and residential, and how busy it is, having someone coming
and going. The gym can be more disturbing than people playing piano.

 Size and scale
 Amount of traffic/customers; daycare for 2-4 kids is not so noticeable. As long as it is

small, and with people who live there.
 As soon as you get into employees, then you have to take in more business if you

are the owner. More traffic would be generated. It is fine if we are all dispersed, but it
becomes problematic if in a denser areas. Precedent suggests it doesn’t work in
densely crowded neighbourhoods.

 This could involve parcel size for particular businesses (e.g., if generating noise on
an ongoing basis, then need setback). Depends on impact of the home occupation.

 For retail, have some regulation regarding traffic flow.
 Different occupations will create different concerns. If it generates complaints from

neighbours, it is probably a wrong thing to have.
 Regional District doesn’t have business licenses. The Province won’t have someone

here regulating what is happening.
 Maybe look at other Regional Districts to see what legislation they have in place. See

what is working in other regions.

Key opportunity: Usability

18. Have you experienced any difficulties in understanding the zoning bylaw as it relates to
describing how you can use your property?

 Yes because, where I am, it is a sub-zone. The SCRD used to have Opus, which
was super-accessible and understandable. The new (online mapping) system is
harder to use.

 All of the Usability objectives (listed in staff report) are good (adding a purpose
statement to each zone; summarizing content into easy to interpret table; providing
more visual content to use as examples; clearly identifying principal permitted uses
and auxiliary permitted uses).

 Good to have a table for comparisons.
 Have a pamphlet on “the septic field and how to look after it”. When people buy

property, realtors could do more of an education.
 People need to have something simple, readable and understandable. Simplify it

down to the basics, easy to understand, the layperson’s guide.
 Develop brochures with frequently asked questions regarding things people

commonly encounter.

NEXT MEETING June 27, 2018

ADJOURNMENT 8:45 p.m.

261



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT

AREA F – WEST HOWE SOUND
ADVISORY PLANNING COMMISSION

May 22, 2018

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE WEST HOWE SOUND (AREA F) ADVISORY PLANNING
COMMISSION MEETING HELD AT ERIC CARDINALL HALL, 930 CHAMBERLIN ROAD, WEST
HOWE SOUND, BC

PRESENT: Chair Fred Gazeley

Members Bob Small
Laura Houle
Susan Fitchell
Maura Laverty

ALSO PRESENT: Director Ian Winn
Recording Secretary Diane Corbett

REGRETS: Members Doug MacLennan

CALL TO ORDER  7:04 p.m.

AGENDA   The agenda was adopted as presented.

MINUTES

West Howe Sound (Area F) Minutes

The West Howe Sound (Area F) APC minutes of April 24, 2018 were approved as circulated.

Minutes

The following minutes were received for information:

 Egmont/Pender Harbour (Area A) APC Minutes of April 25, 2018
 Halfmoon Bay (Area B) APC Minutes of April 24, 2018
 Roberts Creek (Area D) APC Minutes of April 16, 2018
 Elphinstone (Area E) APC Minutes of April 25, 2018
 Planning and Community Development Committee Minutes of April 12, 2018

ANNEX S

262



West Howe Sound (Area F) Advisory Planning Commission Minutes of May 22, 2018 Page 2

BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS

West Howe Sound (Area F) APC Minutes of April 24, 2018

There was further discussion of eelgrass mapping and BC Timber Sales. It was noted there is a
lot of independent information on eelgrass mapping in this region that needs to be amalgamated.

Chapman Creek Water Treatment Plant Tour Movie

It was suggested that the SCRD do a video tour of the Chapman Creek Water Treatment Plant
to enhance public awareness of the water system.

REPORTS

Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Regarding Langdale Ferry Terminal
Pedestrian Walkway – Electoral Area F

The APC discussed the staff report regarding Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry
Services Inc. regarding Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway.

The following points were noted:

 Maps and diagrams are hard to read. Maybe have one map per page, or provide a larger
map to the APC Secretary to bring to the meeting.

 It would have been helpful for the APC to receive the whole plan to understand how this
fits with the rest of the plan. There was uncertainty about how temporary this would be.

 What did the site visit for the marine environmental assessment entail? Were they there
at low tide? Site visit indicated all they saw were crows and gulls. There are all kinds of
birds that are there.

 Concern that the application area is huge, way past the end of the dock. Why would they
need all that area? Worry about what they will do in the future.

 Questions about access issues for various user groups.
 Item should be referred to all the other APCs and to Islands Trust.
 BCF is excellent in helping elderly people, who can be driven down to the waiting area,

where BCF staff will help with a wheelchair; hopefully that continues.

Recommendation No. 1 Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Regarding 
Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway - Electoral Area F

The APC recommended that Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc.
regarding Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway – Electoral Area F be supported, with
the following concerns:

 access to and from the ferry for Stormaway riders, handicapped people, dog walkers,
and bicycles;

 size of the application area;
 output of marine environmental assessment regarding birds; and
 suggest referral of the application to all SCRD APCs and Islands Trust.

263



West Howe Sound (Area F) Advisory Planning Commission Minutes of May 22, 2018 Page 3

Recommendation No. 2 Provincial Referral CRN00054 for BC Ferry Services Inc. Regarding 
Langdale Ferry Terminal Pedestrian Walkway - Electoral Area F

The APC recommended support for the “recommendation to submit a request for project review 
by the Department of Fisheries and Oceans to determine if the project will cause serious harm
and federal authorization is required under the Fisheries Act, 2012.” 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The Director’s report was received.

NEXT MEETING June 26, 2018

ADJOURNMENT 8:18 p.m.

264



*

RECEIVED
Ministre do I’Environnement et Minister of Environmnt

du Changement climatique and Climate Chang MAY 2 4 2018
Ottawa,Canada K1AOH3 I CHIEF ADMiNISTRATIVE

L_______

______

RECEIVED
MAY 2 42018

MAY 162018 S.C.R.D.
Mr. Bruce Mime
Chair
Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Road M?STER FILE COP’
Sechelt BC VON 3A1

Dear Mr. Milne:

Thank you for your letter of January 23, 2018, regarding the BURNCO Aggregate
Mine Project proposed in Howe Sound, British Columbia (B.C.).

In your letter, you identify concerns from the Sunshine Coast Regional District of
issues raised by your constituents that have not been adequately addressed
along with concerns regarding the federal environmental assessment process
and the professional reliance model. I understand that in some areas of natural
resource management, the Province of B.C. relies upon the opinions of qualified
professionals who are governed by professional standards and codes of ethics,
rather than conducting an independent analysis of a proponent’s plans or project
designs. The federal environmental assessment process does not use a
professional reliance model.

The Government of Canada is committed to ensuring that environmental risks
linked to development are addressed during environmental assessments.
Federal environmental assessments include information and analyses prepared
by qualified professionals, but this information undergoes a rigorous review and
assessment by government experts. The information is made available and
Indigenous Peoples and members of the public are able to review and provide
comments on the materials. The Canadian Environmental Assessment Agency
hosted several public comment periods over the course of the environmental
assessment to understand and address concerns from Indigenous Peoples and
the public, including a comment period on the Comprehensive Study Report held
from December 4, 2017, to January 26, 2018. I considered these comments,
including those provided by the Sunshine Coast Regional District, in making my
environmental assessment decision.

.12

IICanada

ANNEX T

265



-2-

Your comments have also been provided to Fisheries and Oceans Canada for its
consideration in any monitoring and follow-up from the environmental
assessment and should the proponent, BURNCO Rock Products Ltd., apply for a
permit under the Fisheries Act.

On February 8, 2018, I announced proposed changes to federal environmental
assessment legislation, shifting from environmental assessments to impact
assessments with a focus on sustainability to look at the environmental,
economic, social and health impacts, as well as a gender-based analysis of
proposed projects.

Impact assessments would start with better information as identified through the
early planning process. The government would proactively conduct regional and
strategic assessments, outside the scope of individual project assessments, to
help better understand changes in ecosystems that have arisen from a variety of
activities overtime. Proposed changes to legislation are being considered by
Parliament. The Agency is also consulting Canadians on the proposed approach
for regulatory changes. I encourage the Sunshine Coast Regional District to
review these consultation papers at canada.ca/environmentafreviews.

I appreciate your taking the time to write and encourage your continued
participation in environmental assessments.

Sincerely,

The Honourable Catherine McKenna, P.C., M.P.

266



Review of Environmental and Regulatory Processes - Canada.ca Page 1 of 12

I,’ Government
of Canada

Gouvernement
du Canada

Home -* Environment and natural resources

-b Environmental conservation and protection • Projects and environmental assessments

Better rules to protect Canada’s
environment and grow the economy

The Government of Canada is delivering on its commitment to bring forward better rules
for the review of major projects.

In February 2018, the government introduced proposed legislation (Bills C-68 and C-69)
that would put in place better rules to protect our environment, fish and waterways,
and rebuild public trust in how decisions about resource development are made. With
these proposed better rules, Canadians, companies, and investors can be confident good
projects would be built in a way that protects our environment while creating
jobs and growing our economy.

Stay informed about the status of the proposed legislation by visiting the newsroom and
downloads sections below, and learn about ways to get involved as the proposed
legislation goes through the Parliamentary process:

‘tYccl

Cleaner environment. Stronger economy.

https://www.canada.ca/enlservices/environment’conservation/assessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018
267



Review of Environmentai and Regulatory Processes - Canada.ca Page 2 of 12

https://www.canada.c&e&sen’ices/environment/conservation/assessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018
268



Review of Environmental and Regulatory Processes - Canada.ca Page 3 of 12

https://www.canada.ca/enlservices/environment/conservationlassessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018269



n_...j._.. A rin
flA vnvv UI tAlvLLu,uIajlLaL aim aguiatuiy I tUt333 - t.aIIaUa.a I .1 UI L/..

Why we did this
In the fall 2015 Speech from the Throne, the government made a promise to Canadians to
review environmental and regulatory processes to address concerns about previous
reforms. The government put in place interim principles for project reviews in January
2016, then launched a comprehensive process in June 2016 to review existing laws and
seek Canadians’ input on how to improve our environmental and regulatory system.

The proposed new system has been informed by two Expert Panels, two parliamentary
committees, as well as extensive consultations with Indigenous peoples, industry,
provinces and territories, and the public over the past 14 months.

Read more about the different aspects of the
reviews:

I’-

https://www.canada.c&en/services/environment’conservationlassessments/environmental-r... 5/24/201 8270



Review of Environmental and Regulatory Processes - Canada.ca Page 5 of 12

A proposed new impact
assessment system

The Government of Canada is

proposing better rules for major project

reviews to protect Canada’s
environment and grow the economy.
These better rules reflect values that

are important to Canadians —

including early, inclusive and
meaningful public engagement; nation

to-nation, Inuit-Crown, and
government-to-government
partnerships with Indigenous peoples;
timely decisions based on the best
available science and Indigenous
traditional knowledge; and
sustainability for present and future

generations.

A new Canadian Energy
Regulator

A modern energy regulator has an
essential role to play in ensuring
access to safe, affordable and reliable
energy and guiding Canada’s
transition to a low-carbon economy.
This would ensure that good projects
go ahead with timely decisions that
reflect common values and shared
benefits. This new Canadian Energy
Regulator would be built on: modern
effective governance, more inclusive
engagement, greater Indigenous
participation, stronger safety and
environmental protection, and more
timely decisions.

___fr “—

- e

I

https://www.canada.ca!en/services/environment’conservationlassessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018271



I n i
aeview UI CLIVIIULLIIICIILdL aiiu icguiatuiy ULULWSSCS - caLiaua.ua rugu U UI IL

Restoring lost protections to
fish and fish habitat

We are strengthening the protection of

all fish and fish habitat for future
generations. Legislative amendments
would restore lost protections by

protecting all fish and fish habitats;
strengthen the role of Indigenous
peoples in project reviews, monitoring

and policy development; and allow for

better management of large and small
projects that may be harmful to fish or
fish habitat through a new permitting

system and codes of practice.

Protecting Canada’s navigable
waters

To protect the public right of
navigation, we are bringing forward the

Canadian Navigable Waters Act.
Navigation protections would expand

to cover all of Canada’s navigable
waters — covering our vast network of
rivers, lakes and canals. New modern
safeguards would create greater
transparency, and give local
communities a say in projects that
could affect their navigation. This
includes a greater level of oversight for
navigable waterways that are most
important to Canadians and to
Indigenous peoples, including eligible

Heritage and wild and free-flowing
rivers.

Learn more about what the changes may mean to
you:

https://www.canada.c&e&sewices/environment/conservationlassessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018
272



Review of Environmental and Regulatory Processes - Canada.ca Page 7 of 12

https://www.canada.caJenlservices/environment/conservationlassessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018273



In I n .. - - n.nL’1n
nrvicw UI ILIIVIIUIILLLCLILdL allu acguiatuiy I 1ULCC - ta11aua.i.a I ag 0 VI 14

Better rules would lead to more timely
and predictable project reviews, and
would encourage investment in
Canada’s natural resources sectors.
Project reviews would be rigorously
managed to ensure that they are more
timely. Companies would know what is
required from them at the outset,
giving them the clarity they need,
including what is required for
Indigenous engagement. A revised
project list based on clear criteria
would identify which types of projects
would require a review, offering
greater clarity about how the new
rules apply.

• Greater efficiency and
consistency: a single agency
would lead all impact
assessments for major projects,
working closely with regulatory
bodies

• Better early planning and
engagement to improve project
design and provide certainty

• Greater coordination with
provinces and territories to
reduce red tape and duplication

• Greater transparency,
predictability and timeliness in
decision-making

• Continued government
responsibility for final decisions

Learn more about what the changes may mean to you

-

Companies How would these
changes affect you?

https://www.canada.calenlservices/environment/conservation/assessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018274



Review of Environmental and Regulatory Processes - Canada.ca Page 9 of 12

The Government of Canada is
committed to renewing its nation-to
nation, Inuit-Crown, and government-
to-government relationship with
Indigenous peoples based on the
recognition of rights, respect,
cooperation and partnership.
Reconciliation must guide
partnerships with Indigenous peoples.
We would recognize and respect the
rights, culture and interests of
Indigenous peoples, their deep
connection to their lands, territories

and resources, and their desire to
participate as partners in the
economic development of their

territories.

• New partnerships based on
recognition of Indigenous rights
and interests up front

• Legislated requirement to
consider impacts on Indigenous
rights and culture in decision
making

• Opportunities for Indigenous
jurisdictions to exercise powers
and duties under the Act

• Legislated provisions for greater
Indigenous expertise on
assessment boards and review
panels

• Increased support for Indigenous
participation and capacity
development

Indigenous How would these

Communities changes affect you?

https://www.canada.c&enlservices/environmentlconserwation/assessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018275



• rr’ • In l.. fl.. - n_.j -- n•.ln_L’ln
I\cv1cw UI 1L1LVUUiU1ICiitL ala! acuiauiy I tUi.CC - tallaua.’.a I ag IU UI I

As proposed in the new rules, we
would work in partnership with
Indigenous peoples from the start
through early and inclusive
engagement so we can get to better
project decisions. Indigenous
traditional knowledge would be
protected and it would be mandatory
to consider it along other sources of
science and evidence to inform
decision-making.

[ Learn mare about what the changes may mean to you

Developing resources while protecting
the environment requires taking a big-
picture look at a project’s potential
impacts. Reviews would consider not

How would these
changes affect you?

• A single Agency, the Impact
Assessment Agency of Canada,

•
-

- .rS_3

;, .

iLl’

1.
I

Canadians

:339

https://www.canada.calen/services/environmentlconservationlassessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018276



Review of Environmental and Regulatory Processes - Canada.ca Page 11 of 12

just impacts on our environment, but

also on social and health aspects,
Indigenous peoples, jobs and the
economy over the long-term. We
would also conduct gender-based
analyses and ensure that Canadians’
views are heard from the start.

to lead all impact assessments
for major projects

• A new Canadian Energy
regulator

• Canadians’ views to be heard
from the start, and improved
participant funding programs

• Increased online access to
science and evidence

• Easy-to-understand summaries
of decisions to be made publicly
available

• Gender-based plus analyses to
better understand impacts on
communities

• New navigation protections to
apply to all of Canada’s
navigable waters

• Strengthening the protection of
all fish and fish habitat for future
generations

F Learn more about what the changes may mean to you

Videos

https://www.canada.calenlservices/environment/conservationlassessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018277



n • nfl • .1 In I n fl I n In
ThtVICW UI LL1VL1U1II1LC1fld1 dIRI icguLaLUiy I1UtCSC - taIIaua.ta ragu LL UI IL

Transcript

Date modified:

2018-04-24

https://www.canada.c&enlservices/environment’conservationlassessments/environmental-r... 5/24/2018278


	2018-Jun-14 PCD Agenda Package - PART 1 ANNEX A - F
	2018-Jun-14 PCD Agenda Package - PART 2 ANNEX G - T
	2018-Jun-14 PCD Agenda Package - PART 2 ANNEX G - T




